
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive 
December 2, 2014 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 6:00 PM

1 CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

2. HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS

3. PRESENTATIONS
a. Association of Old Crows - Steve Bristow (Treasurer)
b. Annual Holiday Wreath Presentation to the City of Oak Harbor by Boy Scout Troop 59
c. Proclamation in Recognition of National Impaired Driving Prevention Month - December 

2014 (JoAnn Hellmann, Director of the Impaired Driving Impact Panel of Island County)

Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive 
December 2, 2014 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 6:00 PM

1 CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

2. HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS

3. PRESENTATIONS
a. Association of Old Crows - Steve Bristow (Treasurer)
b. Annual Holiday Wreath Presentation to the City of Oak Harbor by Boy Scout Troop 59
c. Proclamation in Recognition of National Impaired Driving Prevention Month - December 

2014 (JoAnn Hellmann, Director of the Impaired Driving Impact Panel of Island County)

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held November 18, 2014; and Council Workshop and

Joint Meeting between City Council and Planning Commission held on November 19, 
2014.

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Payroll Checks.
c. Approve Contract for 2015 Island County Basic 2% Hotel-Motel Lodging Tax Revenues

awarded to the City of Oak Harbor for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon
Project in the amount of up to $7,000.

d. Resolution 14-50: Surplus Authorization-Marathon Shirts.
e. Authorize the Mayor to sign a Contract Extension with Jack Kerr for Public Defense

Screening Services.

7. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held November 18, 2014; and Council Workshop and 

Joint Meeting between City Council and Planning Commission held on November 19, 
2014.

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Payroll Checks.
c. Approve Contract for 2015 Island County Basic 2% Hotel-Motel Lodging Tax Revenues

awarded to the City of Oak Harbor for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon 
Project in the amount of up to $7,000.

d. Resolution 14-50: Surplus Authorization-Marathon Shirts.
e. Authorize the Mayor to sign a Contract Extension with Jack Kerr for Public Defense 

Screening Services.

7. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

1



8. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 14-44: Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for the 2% Grant 

Applications.
b. Resolution 14-42: Update City Employee Policy Manual Section 5.01 Health and Welfare

Benefits.
c. Resolution 14-49: 2015 Non-Represented Staff Market Adjustments

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS
a. Ordinance 1705: Adoption of the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget.
b. Ordinance 1708: 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments and 2015-2020 Capital

Improvement Plan (CIP).

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

11. NEW BUSINESS
a. Wastewater Treatment Plant - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment 

No. 10
b. Wastewater Treatment Plant - General Contractor/Construction manager GMP 

Amendment No. 1

12. ADJOURNMENT

8. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 14-44: Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for the 2% Grant 

Applications.
b. Resolution 14-42: Update City Employee Policy Manual Section 5.01 Health and Welfare 

Benefits.
c. Resolution 14-49: 2015 Non-Represented Staff Market Adjustments

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS
a. Ordinance 1705: Adoption of the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget.
b. Ordinance 1708: 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments and 2015-2020 Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP).

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

11. NEW BUSINESS
a. Wastewater Treatment Plant - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment 

No. 10
b. Wastewater Treatment Plant - General Contractor/Construction manager GMP 

Amendment No. 1

12. ADJOURNMENT

As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the
meeting begins. During the meetings Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input 
regarding subjects of concern or interest that are not on the agenda.

For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet 
located in the Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure
your comments are recorded properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit your comments to three minutes in order that other citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

Thank you for participating in your City Government!

As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the 
meeting begins. During the meetings Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input 
regarding subjects of concern or interest that are not on the agenda.

For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet 
located in the Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure 
your comments are recorded properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit your comments to three minutes in order that other citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

Thank you for participating in your City Government!

2



3



Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

November 18, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Rick Almberg City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell  Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Public Works Director Cathy Rosen  
Councilmember Bob Severns  Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Human Resources Director Sara Piccone 

Exec. Assist. to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao was absent. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 

Councilmember Beth Munns gave the invocation, and Mayor Scott Dudley lead the pledge of 
allegiance. 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 

Councilmember Hizon read the Proclamation of DECA (Distributive Education Clubs of Ameri-
ca) Week for the week of November 17th. 

Lauren Plush, DECA member, received the Proclamation and shared her experience with 
DECA.   

PRESENTATION 

Branden Dawson, from North Sound Chapter of DeMolay, presented a brief history and services 
provided by the Order of DeMolay- a fraternity for young men.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion 
  Seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously approved. 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the citizen comment period at 6:14 p.m. 

4



 
 
Citizens Speaking 
 

Matthew Plush 
Skip Pohtilla 

 
Mayor Dudley closed the comment period at 6:19 p.m. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
a.   Minutes of the Special and Regular City Council meeting held on November 5, 2014. 
b.   Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers. 
c. Appointment of Penny Perka to the Oak Harbor Youth Commission for a term of 

three (3) years beginning December 2014 and ending December 2017. 
d.  Reappointment of Marshall Goldberg to the Oak Harbor Library Board for a term of 

five (5) years expiring December 2019. 
e.   Resolution 14-45:  Utility Tax for Arts Acquisition Fund #115. 
f.    Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Renewal for 3-year term 
g. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the Public 

Works Truck Scale. 
h. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the 42’ Storm-

water Outfall at Windjammer Park. 
i. Leave a Book/Take a Book Program at Windjammer Park. 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented,  
          seconded by Councilmember Severns.  Councilmember Servatius moved to amend  
          the main motion to pull item 6.h.  The main motion as amended was seconded by  
          Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved.    
 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen answered Councilmember Servatius’ questions regarding  
Consent Agenda item 6.h. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Consent Agenda item 6.h, motion 
          seconded by Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved.  
 
 

MAYOR, STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
Finance Director Doug Merriman announced upcoming meetings on November 19, 2014: 
 
Investment Committee at 2:00 p.m.  
City Council Workshop from 3:00 to 5:00 p.m. 
Joint Meeting with the City Council and Planning Commission at 5:00 p.m. 
 
2015 Whidbey Island Marathon Race Director Elks Lodge - Melissa Riker provided an update 
on the Marathon planning.   
 
Mayor 
 

5



No comments. 

Councilmembers 

Councilmember Almberg wished our City Manager Larry Cort God speed and a quick return. 

Councilmembers Severns and Servatius echoed Councilmember Almberg’s sentiments toward 
Dr. Cort.  

Councilmember Munns encouraged citizens to donate food to the Help House.  

Councilmember Severns announced that the Economic Development Committee will meet for 
lunch on November 19, 2014.  

Councilmember Hizon announced that the presentation by Dr. Lee, About Teens and Drug Use, 
held last week was a very successful and well-attended event. 

Councilmember Servatius explained that the best way for the public to reach the Council is to 
email them at council@oakharbor.org.  Mr. Servatius provided an update on the interview pro-
cess for the Interim Executive Director for Island Transit. 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution 14-40:  2015 Legislative Priorities  
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the staff report.  Mr. Merriman played a video from 
AWC Trust reflecting legislative challenges Washington State faces in the near future.  

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 6:43 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 6:43 p.m. 

Councilmembers Hizon, Severns, Almberg, Campbell, Munns and Servatius commented on the 
upcoming 2015 legislative priorities.  

Councilmember Servatius asked City Attorney about the 2014 Legislative Priorities, no. 11, “Re-
frain from supporting any Legislative proposal that requires the election of all municipal court 
judges.”   

Resolution 14-40:  2015 Legislative Priorities 

Motion:   Councilmember Severns moved to adopt Resolution 14-40.  Motion Seconded by 
 Councilmember Munns, carried unanimously. 

Resolution 14-46:  Remove restriction on Pioneer Plaza funds designation for lodging tax reve-
nues. 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the staff report. 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 6:58 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 6:58 p.m. 

6

mailto:council@oakharbor.org


Councilmember Servatius asked questions about the topic to Mr. Merriman.  Councilmember 
Servatius suggested opening public comment period. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened a second public comment period at 7:00 p.m., no comments, closed at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Munns asked about additional earmarked funds. 
 
Councilmember Almberg and Servatius asked follow-up questions to Mr. Merriman. 
 
Resolution 14-46:  Remove restriction on Pioneer Plaza funds designation for lodging tax 
revenues. 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Resolution 14-46.  Motion Seconded by  
      Councilmember Almberg, carried unanimously. 
 
Resolution 14-47:  HDPD Health Savings Account Funding for 2015 
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 7:15 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 7:15 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Severns asked about the percentage the City pays the employee’s family  
insurance premiums. 
 
Councilmember Almberg asked about 2013 HSA benefits. 
 
Councilmember Servatius spoke in support of the item.   
 
Resolution 14-47:  HDPD Health Savings Account Funding for 2015 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 14-47.  Motion Seconded by  
      Councilmember Munns, carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Gray & Osborne Professional Services 
Agreement for the Water System Plan. 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 7:23 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 7:23 p.m. 
 
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Gray & Osborne Professional Ser-
vices Agreement for the Water System Plan. 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to authorize the mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to  
     the Gray & Osborne Professional Services Agreement for the Water System Plan.   

7



     Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.  
 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consulting for the 
Stormwater Management Plan.  
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley opened the meeting for public comments at 7:27 p.m., no comments, 
closed at 7:27 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Severns asked about the use of the remaining grant funds for the Stormwater 
Management Plan. The total grant for this project is $50,000.00.  $22,518.00 of the grant funds 
will be used to pay BHC Consulting to develop the Stormwater Management Plan and the re-
mainder of the funds will be applied to related staff time. 
 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with BHC Consulting for 
the Stormwater Management Plan.  
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the mayor to sign a Professional  
     Services Agreement with BHC Consulting for Engineering Services related to  
     developing a Stormwater Management Plan in the amount of $22,518.00.  Motion  
     seconded by Councilmember Severns, unanimously passed.   
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councilmember Hizon moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously 
carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:31 p.m.   
 
             Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

8



Oak Harbor City Council 
Workshop Meeting Minutes 

November 19, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Accountant Tallie Boyer 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Project Engineer John Piccone 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Exec. Assist. to Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 

Human Resources Director Sara Piccone 
Fire Chief Ray Merrill 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao was absent.  Carollo Engineer Brian Matson 

AGENDA 

Departmental Briefings 
None. 

Pending Agenda Items 

1. Discuss Carollo Engineering Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 10 for the
Waste Water Treatment Plant

Project Engineer John Piccone introduced the Carollo Engineering Consultant Agree-
ment item and provided a staff summary.   

Councilmembers asked follow-up questions.  Mr. Madsen engaged in the discussion as well. 

2. Authorize the Mayor to Sign Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment No. 1 to the
Agreement with Hoffman Construction for the Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet
equipment

9



            Project Engineer John Piccone provided a staff summary, explaining the history of the 
base agreement and the need for Amendment No. 1.  
 
Discussion among Councilmembers and Staff. 
 
 

3. Resolution 14-42:  Update City Employee Policy Manual - Section 5.01 Health and Wel-
fare Benefits 
 
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone provided a summary of Resolution  

14-42 and presentation a power point outline. 
 
The Affordable Care Act (ACA) mandates that large employers (over 50 employees) of-
fer affordable health care to fulltime employees who work at least 30 hours or more per 
week. 
 
In order to comply with the ACA, Resolution 14-42 seeks to establish an hour tracking 
system for hourly employees.  A large group of employees this will apply to will include: 
Paid on Call Fire Fighters and Members of City Council, as well as some temporary or 
seasonal employees.  
 
Discussion among Councilmembers and Staff. 
 
 

4. Ordinance 1709: GASB 54 
 

Finance Director Doug Merriman provided a summary of Ordinance 1709. 
 
Discussion among Councilmembers and Staff. 
 
 

5. 2015-2016 Budget Ordinance and 2015-2020 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
 

Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the staff summary. 
 
Discussion among Councilmembers and Staff. 
 
Councilmember Munns commented on making sure there is adequate staffing at the 
City.  Mayor Dudley acknowledged her concern.  Ms. Munns would like to see a record 
of what staffing positions are currently vacant.  
 
Councilmember Hizon asked for an honest assessment of what positions are needed 
based on City priorities.  
 
Mr. Merriman explained that the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget must be adopted before the 
end of 2014. 

10



Mayor Dudley suggested Council move the Budget Ordinance to December 16th Regu-
lar Council Meeting. 
 
2015-2020 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
 
         Development Services Director Steve Powers provided summary of the 2015-
2020 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), then Council had an opportunity to comment or 
ask questions regarding the CIP.  Director Powers passed out the CIP project list for the 
Council. 
 

Emerging Issues 
None. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley adjourned the meeting at 4:38 p.m.   
 
 
            Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

11



Oak Harbor Joint City Council and 
Planning Commission Workshop Meeting Minutes 

November 19, 2014 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Beth Munns  City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Development Serv. Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Development Serv. Admin. Kathy Gifford 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Senior Planner Cac Kamak 
Councilmember Tara Hizon   Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg 
Councilmember Bob Severns  City Clerk Anna Thompson  

Planning Commissioners: 
Sandi Peterson 
Cecil Pierce  
Michael Piccone  
Ana Maria Schlecht 
Greg Wasinger, Vice-Chair 
Keith Fakkema, Chair  

Planning Commissioner Bruce Freeman and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao were absent. 

AGENDA 

1. Discussion regarding County wide planning policies and Comprehensive Plan
Vision Statement

Senior Planner Cac Kamak opened the discussion by reviewing the original vision 
statement passed by the Council in 1993. 

Mr. Kamak asked that the each of the Councilmembers and Commissioners rank the 
vision statements by order of priority he or she deems fit.  Afterward, the Councilmem-
bers and Commissioners discussed the ranks they assigned to each statement and 
why.  

Development Services Director added that although some of the vision statements lan-
guage is outdated, he suggested looking at the purpose and goal of the statement in 
terms of ranking.  

12



Steve Powers, Development Director, introduced the next topic: County-wide planning 
policies.  The policy is intended to help meet GMA requirements and ensure all four ju-
risdictions on Whidbey Island are consistent with Island County policies and common 
interests. 
 
Mr. Powers asked that the Council and Planning Commission comment on how Oak 
Harbor can participate.   Cac Kamac explained the County-wide policies handout. 
 
Discussion among City staff, City Council and Planning Commission members regard-
ing County-wide planning policies and how Oak Harbor can become involved. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Mayor Scott Dudley adjourned the meeting at 6:07 p.m. 
 
 
            Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

13



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Payroll Checks. 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment.  The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Payroll Checks. 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment.  The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

DISCUSSION
Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:
- Voucher numbers 160447 through 160611 in the amount of $790,797.52.
Approval of Payroll Check Numbers:
- Direct Deposit Check numbers 32917 through 33069.
- EFT check numbers 664-668.
- Payroll Check numbers 97623 - 97671.

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:
Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and 

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

DISCUSSION
Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:
- Voucher numbers 160447 through 160611 in the amount of $790,797.52.
Approval of Payroll Check Numbers:
- Direct Deposit Check numbers 32917 through 33069.
- EFT check numbers 664-668.
- Payroll Check numbers 97623 - 97671.

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:
Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and 

  6.

14



Check Numbers listed in the December 2, 2014 Regular Agenda.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

Check Numbers listed in the December 2, 2014 Regular Agenda.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

15



11/21/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:44:14PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160447 11/21/2014 0007488  BAYLISS, PAT Ref000215219 UB Refund Cst #00159640  1.77

Total :  1.77

 160448 11/21/2014 0007671  FAIRWAY POINT HOA Ref000219603 UB Refund Cst #00157326  29.20

Total :  29.20

Bank total :  30.97 2 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 30.97Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2

1Page:

16



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160449 11/25/2014 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 111714 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  342.00

Total :  342.00

 160450 11/26/2014 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 21825 JANITORIAL SERVICES  315.25

 2,813.06JANITORIAL SERVICES21901

Total :  3,128.31

 160451 11/26/2014 0007332  ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS INV154449 UNIFORM ITEMS/SCHRICKER  110.65

 122.73BELT LINER/BOX/KRYSINSKIINV154452

 624.88UNIFORM ITEMS/SCHRICKERINV154738

 728.20UNIFORM ITEMS/KRYSINSKIINV154740

 16.15NAME STRIPS/KRYSINSKIINV155165

 16.15LETTERS/SCHRICKERINV155167

 488.92WIRE MICINV155311

 190.04SHIRTINV156041

 244.58CARRIERINV157654

 49.90BELT/BUCKLEINV158113

Total :  2,592.20

 160452 11/26/2014 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 72240419 BATTERIES  45.73

Total :  45.73

 160453 11/26/2014 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 24543 KEY  2.72

Total :  2.72

 160454 11/26/2014 0000712  AMERIGAS 3034315166 PROPANE/MARINA  63.11

Total :  63.11

 160455 11/26/2014 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 35603 NOV 2014/WEB HOSTING  75.00

 46.25WEBSITE SERVICES46867

Total :  121.25

 160456 11/26/2014 0005001  ARAMARK 938116000 UNIFORM SERVICES  986.34

Total :  986.34

 160457 11/26/2014 0007351  ARCHIVESOCIAL 1351 ARCHIVING SERVICES  1,788.00

1Page:

17



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,788.00 160457 11/26/2014 0007351 0007351  ARCHIVESOCIAL

 160458 11/26/2014 0006865  ARMADA 111914 COLLECTION FEES/24-027000-13/14-132000-1  349.72

Total :  349.72

 160459 11/26/2014 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 157116 PEST CONTROL  108.70

Total :  108.70

 160460 11/26/2014 0002052  ASCENTIS SOFTWARE AI-011314 ANNUAL SUPPORT  733.73

Total :  733.73

 160461 11/26/2014 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0661301-IN FUEL  8,925.58

Total :  8,925.58

 160462 11/26/2014 0007688  AUTOZONE 3385508171 BEARING  32.66

Total :  32.66

 160463 11/26/2014 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 154664 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE  460.81

 2,288.04RTU REPAIR155142

 830.34HEATING REPAIR155143

 474.86FAN REPAIR155532

Total :  4,054.05

 160464 11/26/2014 0000081  BAY PRINTING 23188 MEMBERSHIP CARDS  157.62

Total :  157.62

 160465 11/26/2014 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 153970 CONTROL  202.89

Total :  202.89

 160466 11/26/2014 0004642  BRAINARD, JENNIFER 11 MUNICIPAL COURT PRO TEM  660.72

Total :  660.72

 160467 11/26/2014 0006769  BRAUN CONSULTING GROUP 1784 OCT 2014/RETAINER  2,650.00

Total :  2,650.00

 160468 11/26/2014 0001074  BRAUNSTEIN, BRIAN EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  21.50

Total :  21.50

2Page:

18



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160469 11/26/2014 0000137  BRIM TRACTOR COMPANY IM78251 FLEXIBLE CO  58.11

Total :  58.11

 160470 11/26/2014 0007665  BURNETT, ELKA 959 MOORAGE REFUND  16.52

Total :  16.52

 160471 11/26/2014 0002993  CAMPBELLS LODGE, INC 280025 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/GREEN  369.20

 231.30HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/SCHROER370220

Total :  600.50

 160472 11/26/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 182304395211 SUPPLIES  1,738.66

 547.70SUPPLIES183819295211

Total :  2,286.36

 160473 11/26/2014 0006215  CAROLLO 0137769 PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT DESI 107,825.01

 193,497.80PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT DESI0138173

Total :  301,322.81

 160474 11/26/2014 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 111014 PUBLIC DEFENSE  600.00

Total :  600.00

 160475 11/26/2014 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  10.60

 81.98NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 200.89NATURAL GAS/20811829220273

 29.95NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 10.00NATURAL GAS/TREATMENT PLANT18583000007

 512.12NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 102.98NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 191.37NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 107.21NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 26.03NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 554.05NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 36.42NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 61.96NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

3Page:

19



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160475 11/26/2014 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  1,967.96

 160476 11/26/2014 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 27662 TOWING  194.57

Total :  194.57

 160477 11/26/2014 0007271  CK ELECTRIC SERVICES, INC 4096 FAN RELAY  163.05

Total :  163.05

 160478 11/26/2014 0000177  CLEMENTS, MICHAEL G. EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  109.00

Total :  109.00

 160479 11/26/2014 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 112114 PETTY CASH  25.00

Total :  25.00

 160480 11/26/2014 0007655  COBAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC 8875 IR CAMERA  861.99

Total :  861.99

 160481 11/26/2014 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 48157 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES  495.49

Total :  495.49

 160482 11/26/2014 0007694  COFFMAN, BRENT 5343 MOORAGE REFUND  73.36

Total :  73.36

 160483 11/26/2014 0005773  COMCAST 8498300290363841 INTERNET  213.98

Total :  213.98

 160484 11/26/2014 0002954  COMMERCIAL PLUMBING, INC 205381 CLEANOUT/VIDEO INSPECTION  1,020.97

Total :  1,020.97

 160485 11/26/2014 0007692  CONTECH ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS 901111213024 CARTRIDGE  157.62

Total :  157.62

 160486 11/26/2014 0007690  CORT, DOROTHY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  17.00

Total :  17.00

 160487 11/26/2014 0001045  CRIME PREVENTION, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF110114 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  50.00

4Page:

20



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  50.00 160487 11/26/2014 0001045 0001045  CRIME PREVENTION, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF

 160488 11/26/2014 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-31818 CONNECTOR/SENSOR  182.02

 172.14HEATER005-5970

 48.61HEATER013-78425

Total :  402.77

 160489 11/26/2014 0000235  DAVIDO CONSULTING GROUP, INC 14040 PROF SVC/STORMWATER SYSTEM DESIGN  116.00

Total :  116.00

 160490 11/26/2014 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 371627 REMOTE MOUNT KIT  463.60

Total :  463.60

 160491 11/26/2014 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 14-20812 TESTING  28.00

 18.00TESTING14-22022

 300.00TESTING14-22752

Total :  346.00

 160492 11/26/2014 0000278  EMERALD SERVICES, INC I298517 RECYCLING  45.00

Total :  45.00

 160493 11/26/2014 0001666  ENVIRO-CLEAN EQUIPMENT 4728588 SENDER  225.59

Total :  225.59

 160494 11/26/2014 0007691  FAIRFIELD INN & SUITES 4347700002724 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/WELSHANS/BEBEE  249.44

Total :  249.44

 160495 11/26/2014 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK18551 PLIERS/KEYSTK  31.41

 23.90FASTENERSWAOAK18651

 12.07BALL VALVEWAOAK18672

 8.09HEX DIESWAOAK18735

 9.69NYLOKNUTWAOAK18757

Total :  85.16

 160496 11/26/2014 0006618  FBI-LEEDA 41015-15 MEMBERSHIP/GREEN  50.00

Total :  50.00

 160497 11/26/2014 0000954  FIRE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF2015-223 MEMBERSHIP DUES  1,000.00

5Page:

21



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,000.00 160497 11/26/2014 0000954 0000954  FIRE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF

 160498 11/26/2014 0003413  FIRE SERVICE BOOKSTORE 300005610 ESSENTIALS OF FIREFIGHTING EXAM PREP  55.75

Total :  55.75

 160499 11/26/2014 0006592  FIRST PROTECTION FIRE & SAFETY 22047 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES  3,146.76

Total :  3,146.76

 160500 11/26/2014 0004971  FREEMAN, DENISE L 2014-63 JUMPSUIT/ARGYRO  523.51

Total :  523.51

 160501 11/26/2014 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  239.74

 80.63CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 68.09CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 66.15CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1572

 68.37CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 62.61CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 47.06CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190

 62.68CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 67.94CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 184.36CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 71.10CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 40.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 31.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  1,090.34

 160502 11/26/2014 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 100712 FENCE BRACKETS/NAILS/PULLER/TREATED  51.68

Total :  51.68

 160503 11/26/2014 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 101643 SWITCH  32.64

Total :  32.64

 160504 11/26/2014 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  705.00

 94.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  799.00

 160505 11/26/2014 0004784  GLUTH, BRAD TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  6.00

6Page:

22



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  6.00 160505 11/26/2014 0004784 0004784  GLUTH, BRAD

 160506 11/26/2014 0000349  GRAINGER 9586437478 EYEWASH STATION  239.14

Total :  239.14

 160507 11/26/2014 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13518.00-18 PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS  14,939.78

Total :  14,939.78

 160508 11/26/2014 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8297 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  1,050.00

Total :  1,050.00

 160509 11/26/2014 0007689  HANCOCK, HELEN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  46.00

Total :  46.00

 160510 11/26/2014 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I3792181 REPAIR KIT  72.28

Total :  72.28

 160511 11/26/2014 0005515  HDR ENGINEERING, INC 00425788-H UTILITY RATE AND FEE UPDATE  1,787.83

Total :  1,787.83

 160512 11/26/2014 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 574179 SOCKET TOOL  374.79

 30.40METRIPACK574188-2

Total :  405.19

 160513 11/26/2014 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 3022353 MEMBERSHIP/MERRILL  100.00

Total :  100.00

 160514 11/26/2014 0005884  ISLAND COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES 3RD QTR 2014 3RD QTR 2014/PROFIT EXCISE LIQUOR TAX  980.24

Total :  980.24

 160515 11/26/2014 0002383  ISLAND COUNTY SHERIFF 110414 REIMBURSEMENT  185.17

Total :  185.17

 160516 11/26/2014 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 100114A SEP 2014/COLLECTION CHARGES  13,548.85

 11,186.81OCT 2014/COLLECTION CHARGES110414

 102.41RECYCLING3781637

Total :  24,838.07

7Page:

23



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160517 11/26/2014 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114509195163 HEP VACS  80.00

Total :  80.00

 160518 11/26/2014 0001354  ISLAND FAMILY HEARING CLINIC 16029 HEARING TESTS  100.00

Total :  100.00

 160519 11/26/2014 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 228765 WATER  12.30

 12.30WATER229043

Total :  24.60

 160520 11/26/2014 0006771  JURASSIC PARLIAMENT 3958 TRAINING SERVICES  2,052.74

Total :  2,052.74

 160521 11/26/2014 0006362  KBA, INC 3001925 PROF SVC/WINDJAMMER PARK STORMWATER  1,300.08

Total :  1,300.08

 160522 11/26/2014 0000476  KERR, JACK 11-14 NOV 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 160523 11/26/2014 0000490  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF317583490 PENALTIES ASSESSED  350.00

 250.00PENALTIES ASSESSED317583631

Total :  600.00

 160524 11/26/2014 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5102776MB ASPHALT  403.88

Total :  403.88

 160525 11/26/2014 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 12 INTERPRETER  158.00

Total :  158.00

 160526 11/26/2014 0007693  LATHAM, JAMES 1281 MOORAGE REFUND  402.42

Total :  402.42

 160527 11/26/2014 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400156702 TIRES  218.31

Total :  218.31

 160528 11/26/2014 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGE 1404645-20141031 OCT 2014/MINIMUM COMMITMENT  54.35

Total :  54.35

8Page:

24



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160529 11/26/2014 0006867  LIFELINE TRAINING 21559 REGISTRATION/LOLMAUGH  199.00

Total :  199.00

 160530 11/26/2014 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2118936-00 FIELD SERV KIT  122.90

Total :  122.90

 160531 11/26/2014 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00062435 MP/SMNPT  125.49

 813.89BROOM00062452

Total :  939.38

 160532 11/26/2014 0002448  LOPER, MARGARET B 1 TRAVEL REFUND  17.00

Total :  17.00

 160533 11/26/2014 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  105.00

Total :  105.00

 160534 11/26/2014 0000524  LYNDEN ICE 112006789 ICE  97.20

Total :  97.20

 160535 11/26/2014 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 91871 YARD WASTE  175.00

 22.81SOIL92707

 14.67SOIL92830

Total :  212.48

 160536 11/26/2014 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 175804 GROCERIES  314.66

 382.01GROCERIES191659

Total :  696.67

 160537 11/26/2014 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P36805 OCT 2014/POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTS  2,944.12

Total :  2,944.12

 160538 11/26/2014 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 36805 OCT 2014/MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS 1,073.16

 1,423.43STORAGE FOR UTILITY BILLSN141870

Total :  2,496.59

 160539 11/26/2014 0000040  MATRIX 608304553 LONG DISTANCE  410.13

Total :  410.13

9Page:

25



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160540 11/26/2014 0007450  MAZZOLI, KELLYE 111414 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160541 11/26/2014 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  37.23

Total :  37.23

 160542 11/26/2014 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 111714 NOV 2014/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 160543 11/26/2014 0000568  MIDWAY MUFFLER & TIRE 93862 WHEEL ALIGNMENT  76.08

 76.08WHEEL ALIGNMENT93909

Total :  152.16

 160544 11/26/2014 0005266  MOFFATT & NICHOL ENGINEERS 707100 PROF SVC/STORMWATER OUTFALL  877.08

Total :  877.08

 160545 11/26/2014 0005445  MONTOYA, MATTHEW J 111 NOV 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE  8,000.00

Total :  8,000.00

 160546 11/26/2014 0000601  NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION 6293290Y 921 GUIDE FOR FIRE AND EXPLOSI  169.15

 46.751521 FIRE DEPARTMENT SAFETY OF6383995Y

Total :  215.90

 160547 11/26/2014 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCS0240697 BELTS  95.69

Total :  95.69

 160548 11/26/2014 0000630  NORTHEND TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC 1030485 HOOK LOADERS  150,945.22

 50,908.59SANDERS1030486

 28,199.56SNOW PLOWS1030487

 6,130.68WET SYSTEM1030488

 1,250.47ASPHALT DOORS1030489

Total :  237,434.52

 160549 11/26/2014 0003946  OAC SERVICES, INC 128815 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR WWT  225.00

Total :  225.00

 160550 11/26/2014 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 245530 ELBOW/CONDUIT  8.67

 15.21DEADBOLT247366

10Page:

26



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160550 11/26/2014 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 19.56CULTIVATOR WOOD247544

 10.86OUTLET TESTER247631

 60.81SNAP/LINK247639

 11.95QUICK LINK247642

 3.91TUBE247649

 30.43HEAT TAPE247734

 16.31HEAT TAPE247745

 32.58EXT CORD247757

 2.71BLANK COVER247762

 23.77ACID/PAINT MARKER247767

 37.46PASTE/VALVE247809

 30.40TUBE/BATTERY247829

 27.16HEAT TAPE247867

 36.00BOLT/FASTENERS248025

 26.34LINK/PULLEY/CABLE/FASTENERS248054

 14.33ANTIFREEZE248108

 52.49CLEANER/PIPE/COUPLE/ELBOW248206

 23.90VALVE248229

-14.13VALVE/FAUCET248233

Total :  470.72

 160551 11/26/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-218785 FILTERS  48.32

 57.46SERIES IGNITION001-220811

 78.44FILTERS001-220903

 24.34FILTERS001-220942

 16.58AIR TOOL LIBRICANT001-221051

 43.52SPARK PLUGS001-221280

 13.22FILTERS001-221617

 18.00FILTERS001-221628

 6.28VT EMISSION HOS001-221682

 4.47SPARK PLUG001-221809

 14.69CLEANER001-221831

 13.37AIR BAG LAMP001-221993

 58.72PIPE001-222007

 128.78MTP 24001-222040

 51.67FILTERS001-222048

11Page:

27



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160551 11/26/2014 (Continued)0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER

 326.09DEP001-222199

 53.35BLOWER/AIR BAG SENSOR001-222208

-298.90DEP001-222249

 24.40FILTERS001-222252

 10.54DRIP PANS001-222429

 10.54DRIP PANS001-222430

Total :  703.88

 160552 11/26/2014 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000140019 NOV 2014/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  6,708.33

Total :  6,708.33

 160553 11/26/2014 0006980  OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH DYNAMICS 39323 QFIT ANNUAL CALIBRATION  960.00

Total :  960.00

 160554 11/26/2014 0000666  OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE 716125 PROF SVC/SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL COMMUNI 552.50

 409.50PROF SVC/TRAVELERS V PERTEET716126

Total :  962.00

 160555 11/26/2014 0000688  OVERHEAD DOOR CO JS64652 DOOR REPAIRS  1,032.65

 342.41DOOR REPAIRSTS64544

Total :  1,375.06

 160556 11/26/2014 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0082394 TIRES  1,926.42

 143.22TIRES0082523

 71.61TIRES0082712

 71.61TIRES0082713

 920.95TIRES0082753

Total :  3,133.81

 160557 11/26/2014 0001596  PACIFIC TORQUE, LLC 094996 SENSOR  97.84

Total :  97.84

 160558 11/26/2014 0005551  PAPE MACHINERY EXCHANGE 9223456 NOZZLES  109.51

Total :  109.51

 160559 11/26/2014 0001615  PART WORKS, INC 393202 WATER DIAPHRAM  37.27

12Page:

28



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  37.27 160559 11/26/2014 0001615 0001615  PART WORKS, INC

 160560 11/26/2014 0001349  PARTNER CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS 6848 TACK/DETACK  3,978.42

Total :  3,978.42

 160561 11/26/2014 0000709  PERS 01075166 OCT 2014/UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98

Total :  26.98

 160562 11/26/2014 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 233007 SHIPPING  50.00

Total :  50.00

 160563 11/26/2014 0005647  PORTER, DAVID 982704 BANNER REPAIRS  228.27

Total :  228.27

 160564 11/26/2014 0000730  POWELL, JANIS 1 DRIVING SERVICES  96.00

 78.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  174.00

 160565 11/26/2014 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0021906-IN BARRICADES  97.57

Total :  97.57

 160566 11/26/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/DISPLT  1,464.12

 10.21ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST WIND200000919684

 2,657.71ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 11.20ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR EBATH200001097589

 13.37ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 223.31ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 88.95ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 147.04ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D200002036917

 23.12ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.82ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT200002037261

 90.38ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501

 10.21ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 11.12ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 194.351500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTST200002723381

 16.94ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 140.71ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 16.27ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE200004342099

13Page:

29



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160566 11/26/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 147.67ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

 97.03ELECTRICITY/1019 SW SWANTOWN AVE200004839284

 10.21ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.21ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 11.86ELECTRICITY/WKITCH200005461666

 14.14ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 202000056103952

 6,283.32ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094

 169.96ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135

 189.78ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.21ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 20.77ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 36.52ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 108.85ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 25.86ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 99.50ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR200010530240

 10.87ELECTRICITY/PARKS200010530802

 236.47ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRRIG200010531172

 177.54ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354

 121.70ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 38.05ELECTRICITY/BALLPK200010699706

 1,275.15ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 22.28ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 12.85ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,215.65ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 19.31ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 2,338.30ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 112.27ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 64.96ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 859.87ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 117.99ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 66.21ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 299.89ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

14Page:

30



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160566 11/26/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 633.58ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 126.67ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 70.69ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD200017653656

 168.87ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 11.94ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,583.92ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 63.01ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 45.81ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 26.30ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 629.83ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 11.19ELECTRICITY/KITEST200020308330

 25.99ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 26.14ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 23.61ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 62.94ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 32.18ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 263.22ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 122.75ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER220000598098

 60.44ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337

 13.33ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & SW CAR220002247165

 671.22ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 646.87ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 390.28ELECTRICITY/SW BEEKSMA DR300000005003

 27.51ELECTRCITY/2220 SW VISTA PARK DR300000009906

 61.53ELECTRICITY/NE 11TH AVE300000010409

 301.52ELECTRICITY/INTSCTN OF MIDWAY & NE 8 AVE300000010458

 196.65ELECTRICITY/900 SE MIDWAY BLVD LITE300000010516

Total :  25,694.93

 160567 11/26/2014 0002997  QUINTON DESIGN & ELECTRICAL 2639 COMPRESSOR REPAIRS  482.85

Total :  482.85

 160568 11/26/2014 0002806  RADIA 416734-RADA INMATE SERVICES  626.40

 200.00INMATE SERVICES854407-RADA

Total :  826.40

15Page:

31



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160569 11/26/2014 0001996  RED LION BELLEVUE INN 27005141 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/SABALAUSKY  244.82

Total :  244.82

 160570 11/26/2014 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 111814 SALES/USE TAX  48,340.24

Total :  48,340.24

 160571 11/26/2014 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1360 TAPING SERVICES  3,569.59

Total :  3,569.59

 160572 11/26/2014 0005827  ROBINSON, JACK TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  248.50

Total :  248.50

 160573 11/26/2014 0000780  SABALAUSKY, JANET TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  105.55

Total :  105.55

 160574 11/26/2014 0000796  SCHROER, PAUL TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  115.00

Total :  115.00

 160575 11/26/2014 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-414076 RESISTOR  23.22

 383.31MOTOR/RELAYS6-414080

 195.81PAD SET/ROTORS6-466860

Total :  602.34

 160576 11/26/2014 0000809  SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND OH10-2014 OCT 2014/SENIOR SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 160577 11/26/2014 0003782  SHARP ELECTRONICS CORPORATION C816392-701 OCT 2014/MAINTENANCE CONTRACT  3.14

Total :  3.14

 160578 11/26/2014 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 0000000065163545410 FUEL  264.37

 302.85FUEL0000000065163545411

Total :  567.22

 160579 11/26/2014 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9404424332 SHREDDING  52.97

 68.20SHREDDING9404424464

Total :  121.17

 160580 11/26/2014 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-295317 LED BEACON  212.48

16Page:

32



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160580 11/26/2014 (Continued)0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC

 224.63TOOLBOX14-295608-1

 275.79SPRING BRAKE KIT14-296046

 54.89TIRES14-296129

 91.76WRENCH14-296356

 89.81DOUBLE FACE/LENS14-296476

-224.63TOOLBOX14-296548

 224.63TOOLBOX14-296549

 224.63TOOLBOX14-296550

 75.89DAMPENER14-296657

Total :  1,249.88

 160581 11/26/2014 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 413405 PST WINTER MIX  838.08

 28.64PROPANE415763

 15.61PROPANE415975

Total :  882.33

 160582 11/26/2014 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW597578 PH-GRACE ANGLICAN  82.24

 52.33RFP PUBLIC DEFENSEWCW597658

 102.17PUBLIC MTG 11/25/14WCW598810

 57.32PH ORD 1708/1705WCW598882

 63.55ORD SUMMARY 1702/1703/1706WCW599052

Total :  357.61

 160583 11/26/2014 0000851  SPRINT 182311697 LONG DISTANCE  5.74

Total :  5.74

 160584 11/26/2014 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3246021968 CASSETTE  74.22

 40.49STAMPER3247477895

 54.95DTYDATE3247477896

 41.68STAMP/ERASERS/COVER STOCK3247477899

 365.04REFILLS/DESKPADS3248244688

Total :  576.38

 160585 11/26/2014 0000856  STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE L105548 2014 AUDIT SERVICES FOR 2013  4,194.20

Total :  4,194.20

17Page:

33



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 160586 11/26/2014 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  120.00

Total :  120.00

 160587 11/26/2014 0001287  SUNCRUISER MAGAZINE 3431 ADVERTISING  825.00

 825.00ADVERTISING4364

Total :  1,650.00

 160588 11/26/2014 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1007975 PEST EXTERMINATION  30.44

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1007979

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1007981

 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1007995

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1036840

 54.35PEST EXTERMINATION1037638

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1038040

Total :  321.77

 160589 11/26/2014 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA 111414 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 160590 11/26/2014 0007696  TSSI PIN160960 BAGS  305.77

Total :  305.77

 160591 11/26/2014 0006331  ULINE 62465434 BOTTLES/JUGS  86.85

Total :  86.85

 160592 11/26/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304679 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  714.95

Total :  714.95

 160593 11/26/2014 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 495925 ROTO-FLOAT  326.75

Total :  326.75

 160594 11/26/2014 0007695  UTILITY SERVICES ASSOCIATES 124540 WATERLINE SURVEY  1,095.85

Total :  1,095.85

 160595 11/26/2014 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9735127125 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  4,618.84

Total :  4,618.84

 160596 11/26/2014 0002600  VERNON PUBLICATIONS, LLC INV01652 ADVERTISING  330.00

18Page:

34



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  330.00 160596 11/26/2014 0002600 0002600  VERNON PUBLICATIONS, LLC

 160597 11/26/2014 0000978  WALLACE, RICHARD EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  77.93

Total :  77.93

 160598 11/26/2014 0001043  WASHINGTON STATE BAR ASSOC 111414 LICENSE FEES/LEWIS  355.00

 355.00LICENSE FEES/ESPARZA111414A

Total :  710.00

 160599 11/26/2014 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I15003122 BACKGROUND CHECKS  726.00

Total :  726.00

 160600 11/26/2014 0002032  WASHINGTON WASTEWATER PERSONNL 112114 APPLICATION/ROBINSON  15.00

Total :  15.00

 160601 11/26/2014 0000245  WASTEQUIP-WEST COAST 14607295 TARP  298.87

Total :  298.87

 160602 11/26/2014 0007697  WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 74948310 TAPE  480.28

Total :  480.28

 160603 11/26/2014 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF29 PROF SVC/GENERAL 2014  5,811.89

Total :  5,811.89

 160604 11/26/2014 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC S831924 HOSE  145.21

 13.14FREIGHTS831976

 177.82LOAD CTRS835573

-231.48CREDITT641722

Total :  104.69

 160605 11/26/2014 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 229019 HUB CAP  36.95

 1.96TUBING230263

 12.57BRAKE TUBE230302

Total :  51.48

 160606 11/26/2014 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 47327 BUSINESS CARDS  3,290.99

 56.44SELF INKING STAMP47354

19Page:

35



11/26/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

 2:59:51PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  3,347.43 160606 11/26/2014 0001017 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS

 160607 11/26/2014 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3779536 CURRENT NET CHARGES  41.45

Total :  41.45

 160608 11/26/2014 0004247  WINKEL, TOM 4033 MOORAGE REFUND  172.32

Total :  172.32

 160609 11/26/2014 0006969  WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP 1578897 STREAMLIGHT  485.00

Total :  485.00

 160610 11/26/2014 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701801759 SEP 2014/COPIER RENTAL  4,351.42

Total :  4,351.42

 160611 11/26/2014 0001067  ZEP SALES & SERVICE 9001304470 PREM C-PULL TWL/DUMPSTER FAIR  1,573.97

Total :  1,573.97

Bank total :  790,766.55 163 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 790,766.55Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 163

20Page:

36



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Approve Contract for 2015 
Island County Basic 2% Hotel-
Motel Lodging Tax Revenues 
awarded to the City of Oak 
Harbor for the Whidbey Island 
Marathon/ Half Marathon 
Project in the amount of up to 
$7,000.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
Approval of a contract with Island County to receive funds from the Island County Basic 2% Hotel-
Motel Tax Revenues - 2015 Tourism Program.  The award is to support the City of Oak Harbor -
Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon project.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Approve Contract for 2015 
Island County Basic 2% Hotel-
Motel Lodging Tax Revenues 
awarded to the City of Oak 
Harbor for the Whidbey Island 
Marathon/ Half Marathon 
Project in the amount of up to 
$7,000.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
Approval of a contract with Island County to receive funds from the Island County Basic 2% Hotel-
Motel Tax Revenues - 2015 Tourism Program.  The award is to support the City of Oak Harbor -
Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon project.Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon project.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
The City will receive up to $7,000 for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon to help offset costs 
related to effectively marketing the Whidbey Island Marathon event through a comprehensive and 
coordinated strategy.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The City of Oak Harbor has applied for 2015 Island County Basic 2% Hotel-Motel Lodging Tax 
Revenues to support the marketing efforts of the Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon.  The Board 
of Island County Commissioners has approved final project funding for 2015 projects on November 10, 
2014, at their regular meeting.  Funding amounts are based on the Island County 2% Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee recommendation and the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon will be eligible 
for reimbursement of up to $7,000 in related marketing expenses.  Specifically, the award is for the media 
marketing plan to help promote the event off Island which includes:

 Race Center Magazine with coverage in WA, OR, ID, MT and Northern CA
 Northwest Runner Magazine, Pacific Northwest


Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon project.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
The City will receive up to $7,000 for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon to help offset costs 
related to effectively marketing the Whidbey Island Marathon event through a comprehensive and 
coordinated strategy.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The City of Oak Harbor has applied for 2015 Island County Basic 2% Hotel-Motel Lodging Tax 
Revenues to support the marketing efforts of the Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon.  The Board 
of Island County Commissioners has approved final project funding for 2015 projects on November 10, 
2014, at their regular meeting.  Funding amounts are based on the Island County 2% Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee recommendation and the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon will be eligible 
for reimbursement of up to $7,000 in related marketing expenses.  Specifically, the award is for the media 
marketing plan to help promote the event off Island which includes:

 Race Center Magazine with coverage in WA, OR, ID, MT and Northern CA
 Northwest Runner Magazine, Pacific Northwest


 6.

37



 On the Run Events website national/ international race participant running website 
 Competitor Magazine web ads (Rock-n-Roll Marathon Series owners) 
 Victoria Marathon Guide 
 Get Out There Magazine, British Columbia 
 Registration Brochures distributed around the country at race events and running stores 
 Seattle Marathon, Victoria Marathon, and Portland Marathon 2-day booth display to distribute 

race registrations, brochures, and information about Whidbey Island Marathon 
 Website and e-mail mass marketing 

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW
N/A

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
N/A

CONCLUSION
Approval of this contract will financially support the marketing efforts of the City of Oak Harbor 
Whidbey Island Marathon.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Contract for 2015 Island County Basic 2% Hotel-Motel Lodging Tax Revenues awarded 
to the City of Oak Harbor for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon Project in the amount of up 

 On the Run Events website national/ international race participant running website 
 Competitor Magazine web ads (Rock-n-Roll Marathon Series owners) 
 Victoria Marathon Guide 
 Get Out There Magazine, British Columbia 
 Registration Brochures distributed around the country at race events and running stores 
 Seattle Marathon, Victoria Marathon, and Portland Marathon 2-day booth display to distribute 

race registrations, brochures, and information about Whidbey Island Marathon 
 Website and e-mail mass marketing 

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW
N/A

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
N/A

CONCLUSION
Approval of this contract will financially support the marketing efforts of the City of Oak Harbor 
Whidbey Island Marathon.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Contract for 2015 Island County Basic 2% Hotel-Motel Lodging Tax Revenues awarded 
to the City of Oak Harbor for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon Project in the amount of up to the City of Oak Harbor for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon Project in the amount of up 
to $7,000 for marketing support.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Letter- Island County Awarding 2% Funds to City of Oak Harbor
2. Letter- Island County Awarding 2% Funds Contract Explanation
3. Contract- 2015 Island County 2% Tax Revenues Awarded to City of Oak Harbor

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
N/A

to the City of Oak Harbor for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon Project in the amount of up 
to $7,000 for marketing support.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Letter- Island County Awarding 2% Funds to City of Oak Harbor
2. Letter- Island County Awarding 2% Funds Contract Explanation
3. Contract- 2015 Island County 2% Tax Revenues Awarded to City of Oak Harbor

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
N/A

38



39



40



   

 

 

 

November 17, 2014  

  

 

 

To: Recipients of Island County 2% Hotel-Motel Tax funds – 2015 Program Year 

 

From:  Pam Dill, Administrative Secretary 

  Island County Commissioners’ Office 

 

Subject: Contract for 2015 Program Year 

 

Attached is a D R A F T contract.   Please fill in the blanks on Page 1 and on Schedule A of Page 4 as noted 

below: 

 

 Page 1.  COMPENSATION.    Fill in the frequency of the billing that would work best for you, either 

Monthly, Quarterly, or Semi-Annually.   Keep in mind that it takes the County approximately two to three 

weeks to process vouchers after receiving a bill.  Invoices should describe services that have been performed, 

the date of services, and the amount.    

 

 Page 4.   SCOPE OF WORK.  I have incorporated the information from your application into the Scope 

of Work. Please review and make any changes you feel are necessary.   Once I get your approval I will send the 

contract to risk and legal and then I will forward to you for signature. When I receive the final signed contract 

back from your organization, I will have it scheduled for Board of Island County Commissioners signature at a 

regular Monday Commissioners’ meeting.   

 

Thank you in advance for your expedited review.    If you have any questions, please give me a call at the 

Commissioners’ Office in Coupeville – Phone # 360-679-7353 or by email at  

pamd@co.island.wa.us 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Pam 

41

mailto:pamd@co.island.wa.us


Contractor:  City of Oak Harbor 

Project:    Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon 

Total Amount:  $ 7,000.00 

ISLAND COUNTY 

CONTRACT FOR 2% HOTEL-MOTEL LODGING TAX REVENUES 

2015 TOURISM PROGRAM YEAR 

THIS AGREEMENT between ISLAND COUNTY (the County) and the City of Oak Harbor, a governmental 

subdivision of the State of Washington (the Contractor), WITNESSETH, that the parties agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services to be Performed by Contractor.    As defined in Schedule A, attached hereto.

2. Time of Performance.  The Contractor is to complete the work required by this contract no later than December

31, 2015. 

3. Compensation.  Total payment will be made by the County to the Contractor for said services after the services

have been provided, not to exceed the amount in Schedule A, attached hereto.  _______, the Contractor shall 

submit detailed bills for services already provided and the County will make payments to the Contractor within 

30 days of receipt, upon the County’s verification of the billing. 

4. Records and Report.

A.  Contractor must maintain adequate records to support billings, including its matching contribution, if any.  

The County and any of its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents, or 

papers and records of the Contractor which are directly related to this contract for the purposes of audit 

examinations, excerpts, or transcripts.  Expenditures under this contract which are determined by audit to be 

ineligible for reimbursement and for which payment has been made to the Contractor shall be refunded to the 

County by the Contractor. 

42



 2 

5. Changes.  This contract may be modified as to terms of performance, terms of agreement compensation, or other 

matters upon mutual agreement of the parties, and shall become effective only upon written amendment to this 

contract, such amendment to be executed by both parties. 

6. Hold Harmless/Indemnity.  The Contractor shall protect, save harmless, indemnify, and defend, at its own 

expense, Island County, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees and agents, from any loss or 

claim for damages of any nature whatsoever, arising out of the performance of this contract, including claims by 

Contractor’s employees or third parties, except for those damages solely caused by the negligence or willful 

misconduct of Island County, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees or agents.  The Contractor 

will also indemnify and reimburse the County for any funds paid to the Contractor for uses that failed to meet 

allowable uses under the statutes for the 2% Hotel/Motel Tax revenue program. 

7. Independent Contractor.  Contractor is an independent contractor, not part of Island County government.  

Contractor will not hold itself out or represent that it is a part of County government nor an agency of the 

County. 

8. Notification in Printed Material.  Any printed materials produced after the date of execution of this agreement 

by Contractor or Contractor’s agent pursuant to this Agreement must contain a notification that the project is 

funded totally or in part, as applicable, by the Island County Public Facilities and/or Tourism Fund. 

9. Legal Requirements.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws in 

performing this contract. 

10. Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  In the services, programs, and/or activities 

funded through this agreement, the Contractor must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 

USC Sections 12101-12213, also referred to as the “ADA,” and the rules, 28 CFR Part 35, to the same extent 

that the County would be required to comply.  This Act provides comprehensive civil rights protections to 

43



 3 

qualified individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public accommodations, state and local 

government services and telecommunications. 

11. Termination.  If the Contractor breaches any of its obligations hereunder, and fails to cure the same within five 

days of written notice to do so by the County, the County may terminate this contract, in which case the County 

shall pay the Contractor only for the costs of services accepted by the County, in accord with Schedule A. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

 

 

________________________________ ________________________________________ 

ORGANIZATION    NAME 

 

 

________________________________ ________________________________________ 

DATE      TITLE 

 

 

 

       * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

       

 

DATE:  ____________                                  BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

     ISLAND COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Jill Johnson, Chair 

 

 

      

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



 4 

 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE A 

 

 

ISLAND COUNTY HOTEL-MOTEL – PUBLIC FACILITIES FUND 

ACTIVITY FUNDED BY 2% LODGING TAX REVENUES 

 

PROJECT BUDGET SHEET & 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

2015 TOURISM PROGRAM YEAR 

 

GRANTEE:     City of Oak Harbor      

 

PROJECT:   Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon      
    

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

The Whidbey Island Marathon is an annual event that draws nearly 2,000 runners in April of each year, many of 

whom arrive from locations around Washington, the United States and several foreign countries. Off-island 

marketing is essential to attracting these off-island participants. 

 

The Scope of Work for our 2015 Tourism Program Year is focused on effectively marketing the event through a 

comprehensive and coordinated strategy. The media marketing plan to help promote the event off Island is listed 

below.    
 

 Race Center Magazine with coverage in WA, OR, ID, MT and Northern CA    

 Northwest Runner Magazine, Pacific Northwest    

 On The Run Events website national/international race participant running website    

 Competitor Magazine web ads (Rock-n-Roll Marathon series owners)   

 Victoria Marathon Guide    

 Get Out There Magazine, British Columbia   

 Registration Brochures distributed around the country at race events and running stores.    

 Seattle Marathon, Victoria Marathon, and Portland Marathon 2-day booth display to distribute race 

registrations, brochures and information about Whidbey Island Marathon.    

 Website and e-mail mass marketing.   

      

BUDGET 

 

 

DESCRIPTION                   ISLAND  COUNTY 

45



 5 

 

  

 Whidbey Island Marathon/Half Marathon       $7,000.00  
         

  

TOTAL         $ 7,000.00      

46



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. d.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-50: Surplus 
Authorization-Marathon Shirts.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill seeks authorization to surplus approximately 1,850 marathon shirts to be used for 
marketing and advertisement purposes.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. d.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-50: Surplus 
Authorization-Marathon Shirts.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill seeks authorization to surplus approximately 1,850 marathon shirts to be used for 
marketing and advertisement purposes.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENTSUMMARY STATEMENT
Each year a new shirt is designed for those that register for the Whidbey Island Marathon.  Each shirt has 
the specific date of the marathon and therefore, can’t be reused.  Staff has attempted to sell these shirts at
previous Whidbey Island Marathon Expos; however, there is very little interest in them.    

Therefore, staff is requesting to surplus approximately 1,850 marathon shirts to be used for marketing and 
advertisement purposes by handing them out at events in order to give the Whidbey Island Marathon 
more exposure.

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to approve Resolution 14-50.  

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Each year a new shirt is designed for those that register for the Whidbey Island Marathon.  Each shirt has 
the specific date of the marathon and therefore, can’t be reused.  Staff has attempted to sell these shirts at 
previous Whidbey Island Marathon Expos; however, there is very little interest in them.    

Therefore, staff is requesting to surplus approximately 1,850 marathon shirts to be used for marketing and 
advertisement purposes by handing them out at events in order to give the Whidbey Island Marathon 
more exposure.

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to approve Resolution 14-50.  

   6.

47



ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 14-50

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 14-50

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

48



Resolution 14-50:  Surplus Whidbey Island Marathon Shirts 
Page 1 of 1 
 

 
RESOLUTION 14-50 

 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING APPROXIMATELY ONE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED AND FIFTY 

(1850) WHIDBEY ISLAND MARATHON SHIRTS TO BE SURPLUSED AND AUTHORIZING THEIR 

DISTRIBUTION AS A MARKETING TOOL 

 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.11.010 allows code cities to dispose of personal property of any kind for the common 

benefit; and 

 

WHEREAS, Oak Harbor Municipal Code 2.320.030 provides for the disposal of City owned personal property 

by the Mayor’s designated purchasing coordinator; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City has approximately one thousand eight hundred and fifty Whidbey Island Marathon shirts 

from previous marathons; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Whidbey Island Marathon shirts serve as a powerful marketing and advertising tool and 

distribution at a variety of running events will promote the Marathon; and  

 

WHEREAS, marketing the Whidbey Island Marathon is a priority, as it generates revenue for the City of Oak 

Harbor by filling hotel rooms and creating business for stores and restaurants. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that . 

 

1. The approximately one thousand eight hundred and fifty (1850) Whidbey Island Marathon shirts from 

previous marathons are hereby surplused for distribution as a marketing tool by the Race Director at 

various running events.    

 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this ______ day of ________________, 2014. 

        

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

 

__________________________ 

      SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

 

 

Attest:       Approved as to form: 

 

 

___________________________  _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk   Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

49



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. e.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign a 
Contract Extension with Jack 
Kerr for Public Defense 
Screening Services. 

FROM: Larry Cort, City Administrator 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill seeks City Council approval of a Contract Renewal for Public Defense Administration 
Services.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. e.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Authorize the Mayor to sign a 
Contract Extension with Jack 
Kerr for Public Defense 
Screening Services. 

FROM: Larry Cort, City Administrator 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill seeks City Council approval of a Contract Renewal for Public Defense Administration 
Services.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTIONFISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
$1,400 per month or $16,800 per year
Fund: 001 General (Court)

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the 6th Amendment to the United States Constitution, every person charged with a crime for 
which jail time is a potential penalty and who is unable to pay the cost of an attorney is entitled to have an
attorney appointed to represent them at public expense.  Washington law (Chapter 10.101 RCW) places
an obligation to pay for public defense services for indigent defendants upon the charging jurisdiction. 
Therefore, the City is required to determine whether a person qualifies for a public defense.

The City’s current Agreement for Public Defense Administration Services is with Jack Kerr, and will 
expire on December 31, 2014.  Mr. Kerr has served as the Public Defense Administrator since January
1, 1999 and review of the services, as required and provided by Mr. Kerr, indicates that they are of the 
highest quality. Mr. Kerr is agreeable to a one-year renewal of his current contract under identical terms.

The proposed renewal of the Agreement is for one year, and after execution the agreement will terminate 
on December 31, 2015.  Compensation remains unchanged, at $1,400 per month.  

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
$1,400 per month or $16,800 per year
Fund: 001 General (Court)

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the 6th Amendment to the United States Constitution, every person charged with a crime for 
which jail time is a potential penalty and who is unable to pay the cost of an attorney is entitled to have an 
attorney appointed to represent them at public expense.  Washington law (Chapter 10.101 RCW) places 
an obligation to pay for public defense services for indigent defendants upon the charging jurisdiction. 
Therefore, the City is required to determine whether a person qualifies for a public defense.

The City’s current Agreement for Public Defense Administration Services is with Jack Kerr, and will 
expire on December 31, 2014.  Mr. Kerr has served as the Public Defense Administrator since January 
1, 1999 and review of the services, as required and provided by Mr. Kerr, indicates that they are of the 
highest quality. Mr. Kerr is agreeable to a one-year renewal of his current contract under identical terms.

The proposed renewal of the Agreement is for one year, and after execution the agreement will terminate 
on December 31, 2015.  Compensation remains unchanged, at $1,400 per month.  

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

 6.

50



PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Agreement as submitted and authorize the Mayor to sign the renewal to the Agreement with 
Jack Kerr for Public Defense Administration services.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Amendment to Agreement for Indigent Defense Screening Services

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Agreement as submitted and authorize the Mayor to sign the renewal to the Agreement with 
Jack Kerr for Public Defense Administration services.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Amendment to Agreement for Indigent Defense Screening Services

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

51



December 2014 
Amendment to Indigent Defense Screening Agreement – Jack Kerr 

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 

THIS AMENDMENT, entered into this ____ day of December 2014, by and between the CITY OF 
OAK HARBOR, a Washington municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as the "City”) and JACK 
KERR (hereinafter referred to as the "SERVICE PROVIDER "). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS the City entered into an Agreement with the SERVICE PROVIDER dated 
December 8, 2010, for the provision of Indigent Defense Screening Services (hereinafter the 
“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS the parties hereto wish to amend the Agreement by extending the term thereof; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby amend the Agreement as follows: 

A.  Section 2 – Term 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on January 1, 2015, and shall terminate on 
December 31, 2015, unless sooner terminated according to the provisions herein. 

B.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain the same. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR SERVICE PROVIDER 

 Mayor Scott Dudley Jack Kerr 

Attest:  

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

52



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-44: Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee Awards for 
the 2% Grant Applications.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s (LTAC) recommendations for the use 
of City lodging tax funds (“2 % funds”) to the City Council.

AUTHORITY
RCW 67.28 authorizes cities to levy and collect a special excise tax of up to four percent for the 
furnishing of lodging. This statute chapter also requires the City’s legislative body to refer changes in the 
use of the lodging revenues to the LTAC. In turn, the LTAC choose makes recommendations for the use 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-44: Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee Awards for 
the 2% Grant Applications.

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s (LTAC) recommendations for the use 
of City lodging tax funds (“2 % funds”) to the City Council.

AUTHORITY
RCW 67.28 authorizes cities to levy and collect a special excise tax of up to four percent for the 
furnishing of lodging. This statute chapter also requires the City’s legislative body to refer changes in the 
use of the lodging revenues to the LTAC. In turn, the LTAC choose makes recommendations for the use use of the lodging revenues to the LTAC. In turn, the LTAC choose makes recommendations for the use 
of revenue from the list of applicants applying for such funds. The legislative body may choose to make 
awards using the recommended amounts to all, some, or none of the candidates on this list.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENT
On August 6, 2014, the City Council referred potential changes in the use of lodging tax (2%) funds to 
the City’s LTAC. On November 3, 2014, the LTAC met to listen to applicant proposals for the use of 
lodging tax dollars, review and discuss those proposals, and make recommendations on the use of these
funds. Please see the meeting minutes in Attachment 1.

This year the LTAC took a more comprehensive look at the use of lodging tax revenues for the City 
choosing to review not only the projected operating revenues for next year of $180,000 (as is typically 
done each year), but also the $600,000 of lodging tax revenues projected to be in city fund balances at 
the end of 2014 (See Attachment 2). The LTAC’s award recommendations affect only a portion of the 
$600,000 in accumulated funds.

The LTAC made their recommendations consistent with the limitations imposed on the use of these funds 
by state law. State statute limits the use of lodging tax dollars to the following:



use of the lodging revenues to the LTAC. In turn, the LTAC choose makes recommendations for the use 
of revenue from the list of applicants applying for such funds. The legislative body may choose to make 
awards using the recommended amounts to all, some, or none of the candidates on this list.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENT
On August 6, 2014, the City Council referred potential changes in the use of lodging tax (2%) funds to 
the City’s LTAC. On November 3, 2014, the LTAC met to listen to applicant proposals for the use of 
lodging tax dollars, review and discuss those proposals, and make recommendations on the use of these 
funds. Please see the meeting minutes in Attachment 1.

This year the LTAC took a more comprehensive look at the use of lodging tax revenues for the City 
choosing to review not only the projected operating revenues for next year of $180,000 (as is typically 
done each year), but also the $600,000 of lodging tax revenues projected to be in city fund balances at 
the end of 2014 (See Attachment 2). The LTAC’s award recommendations affect only a portion of the 
$600,000 in accumulated funds.

The LTAC made their recommendations consistent with the limitations imposed on the use of these funds 
by state law. State statute limits the use of lodging tax dollars to the following:



 8.

53



 Tourism marketing; 
 The marketing and operations of special events and festivals designed to attract tourists; 
 Supporting the operations and capital expenditures of tourism-related facilities owned or operated 

by a municipality or public facilities district; and, 
 Supporting the operations of tourism-related facilities owned or operated by a nonprofit 

organization 

DISCUSSION
The City received a total of 15 applications from individuals and organizations for the use of lodging tax 
funds. The following table lists all of the applicants and the amounts requested and recommended for each 
applicant by the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee.
 

Applicant Project Recommended
Purpose of 
Funds

Oak Harbor Music 
Festival

Oak Harbor Music Festival 
Publicity/Advertising/Music $ 10,000 Marketing

       
Fidalgo Ave. Merchants 
Association Oak Harbor Pig Fest $ 3,000 Marketing
       

PBY
Off Island Distribution of 
Marketing Materials $ 5,600 Marketing

       
Downtown Merchants 
Association

Extended Direct Marketing 
Campaign $ 2,500 Marketing

 Tourism marketing; 
 The marketing and operations of special events and festivals designed to attract tourists; 
 Supporting the operations and capital expenditures of tourism-related facilities owned or operated 

by a municipality or public facilities district; and, 
 Supporting the operations of tourism-related facilities owned or operated by a nonprofit 

organization 

DISCUSSION
The City received a total of 15 applications from individuals and organizations for the use of lodging tax 
funds. The following table lists all of the applicants and the amounts requested and recommended for each 
applicant by the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee.
 

Applicant Project Recommended
Purpose of 
Funds

Oak Harbor Music 
Festival

Oak Harbor Music Festival 
Publicity/Advertising/Music $ 10,000 Marketing

       
Fidalgo Ave. Merchants 
Association Oak Harbor Pig Fest $ 3,000 Marketing
       

PBY
Off Island Distribution of 
Marketing Materials $ 5,600 Marketing

       
Downtown Merchants 
Association

Extended Direct Marketing 
Campaign $ 2,500 MarketingAssociation Campaign $ 2,500 Marketing

       

City of Oak Harbor Arts 
Commission Driftwood Days $ 2,000

Special Event 
Operations and 
Marketing

       
North Whidbey Lions 
Club North Whidbey Car Show $ 5,000 Marketing
       
Whidbey Island Race 
Week Whidbey Island Race Week $ 4,000 Marketing
       

City of Oak Harbor Centennial Celebration $        -  
No funds 
recommended

       

City of Oak Harbor
Purchase and Installation of 
Electronic Reader Board $ 28,000

Public Capital 
Facility

       
Joint 2% Advisory Board 
for Whidbey & Camano Arts, Culture, and Culinary Marketing and 

Association Campaign $ 2,500 Marketing
       

City of Oak Harbor Arts 
Commission Driftwood Days $ 2,000

Special Event 
Operations and 
Marketing

       
North Whidbey Lions 
Club North Whidbey Car Show $ 5,000 Marketing
       
Whidbey Island Race 
Week Whidbey Island Race Week $ 4,000 Marketing
       

City of Oak Harbor Centennial Celebration $        -  
No funds 
recommended

       

City of Oak Harbor
Purchase and Installation of 
Electronic Reader Board $ 28,000

Public Capital 
Facility

       
Joint 2% Advisory Board 
for Whidbey & Camano Arts, Culture, and Culinary Marketing and 

54



 
The LTAC also chose to make specific recommendations as to how the lodging tax funds should be used 
for each project to maximize the effectiveness of City lodging tax dollars for the purposes of attracting 
tourists, as follows:
 

 Oak Harbor Music Festival: Funds to be used for marketing and advertising only, not band fees 

Islands Tourism $ 30,000 Special Events
       

City of Oak Harbor Whidbey Island Marathon $         -  
No funds 
recommended

       

Oak Harbor Chamber Operations

$ 100,000
(per year for 2 
years)

Operations of 
Tourism Facility

       
Oak Harbor Chamber Marketing $ 67,500 Marketing
       
MAC Events & 
Promotions

Oak Harbor Hydroplane 
Races $ 20,000 Marketing

       

Citizens for a Guest Dock Dredging the Bay $         -  
No funds 
recommended

       
Total   $277,600  
         
 
The LTAC also chose to make specific recommendations as to how the lodging tax funds should be used 
for each project to maximize the effectiveness of City lodging tax dollars for the purposes of attracting 
tourists, as follows:
 

 Oak Harbor Music Festival: Funds to be used for marketing and advertising only, not band fees 

Islands Tourism $ 30,000 Special Events
       

City of Oak Harbor Whidbey Island Marathon $         -  
No funds 
recommended

       

Oak Harbor Chamber Operations

$ 100,000
(per year for 2 
years)

Operations of 
Tourism Facility

       
Oak Harbor Chamber Marketing $ 67,500 Marketing
       
MAC Events & 
Promotions

Oak Harbor Hydroplane 
Races $ 20,000 Marketing

       

Citizens for a Guest Dock Dredging the Bay $         -  
No funds 
recommended

       
Total   $277,600  
         

 Oak Harbor Music Festival: Funds to be used for marketing and advertising only, not band fees 
or event operations. 

 Oak Harbor Pig Fest: Funds to be used for event flyers and rack cards for off-island 
distribution. 

 Off Island Distribution of Marketing Materials: Funds to be used for printing and distribution 
of two-sided rack card brochures. 

 Extended Direct Marketing Campaign: Funds to be used for the production of a YouTube 
video highlighting downtown. 

 Driftwood Days: Funds to be used for marketing/advertising. 
 North Whidbey Car Show: Funds to be used to market/advertise event.. 
 Raceweek: Funds to be used for print and internet marketing, not for reimbursement costs for 

yacht club meetings and travel. 
 Oak Harbor Centennial Celebrations: No award recommended 
 Oak Harbor Electronic Message Center: Funds to be used for purchase and installation of 

electronic message center sign at Gateway-Beeksma Park. 
 Arts, Culture, and Culinary Tourism: $30,000 single-year installment with funds to be used 

proportional to the three projects outlined in the applicant’s proposal as follows: 16% ($4800) 
tourism training seminar; 34% ($10,200) Whidbey Seatac Shuttle Wraps; 50% ($15,000) Press 
trip for International Food and Travel Writers Association. 

 Whidbey Island Marathon: No award recommended. 

 Oak Harbor Music Festival: Funds to be used for marketing and advertising only, not band fees 
or event operations. 

 Oak Harbor Pig Fest: Funds to be used for event flyers and rack cards for off-island 
distribution. 

 Off Island Distribution of Marketing Materials: Funds to be used for printing and distribution 
of two-sided rack card brochures. 

 Extended Direct Marketing Campaign: Funds to be used for the production of a YouTube 
video highlighting downtown. 

 Driftwood Days: Funds to be used for marketing/advertising. 
 North Whidbey Car Show: Funds to be used to market/advertise event.. 
 Raceweek: Funds to be used for print and internet marketing, not for reimbursement costs for 

yacht club meetings and travel. 
 Oak Harbor Centennial Celebrations: No award recommended 
 Oak Harbor Electronic Message Center: Funds to be used for purchase and installation of 

electronic message center sign at Gateway-Beeksma Park. 
 Arts, Culture, and Culinary Tourism: $30,000 single-year installment with funds to be used 

proportional to the three projects outlined in the applicant’s proposal as follows: 16% ($4800) 
tourism training seminar; 34% ($10,200) Whidbey Seatac Shuttle Wraps; 50% ($15,000) Press 
trip for International Food and Travel Writers Association. 

 Whidbey Island Marathon: No award recommended. 

55



 Chamber of Commerce (Operations): Funds to be used for operations of Chamber of 
Commerce Tourism facility, not for capital expenditures. The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 
recommends entering into a two-year contract with the Chamber of Commerce with the above 
amount provided to the Chamber during each of those years. 

 Chamber of Commerce (Marketing): $50,000 of grant funds to be used to market Oak 
Harbor per applicants proposal ($37,000 for 50-miles plus, and $13,000 for 50-miles or less). 
The remaining $17,500 should be used to market Downtown Oak Harbor specifically. 

 Oak Harbor Hydroplane Races: Funds to be used for marketing. 
 Dredging the Bay: No award recommended. 

 
The advisory committee submits these recommendations to City Council with the following comments 
regarding their analysis of the applications. The LTAC reviewed each application noting the scope of the 
proposal, the applicability of each application for the promotion of tourism, and the probable impact of 
each program to increase the number of people visiting Oak Harbor. Tourism means economic activity 
resulting from tourists, which may include slaes of overnight lodging, meals, tours, gifts, or souvenirs. 
Critical to this recommendation is the Committee’s feeling that funding has been allocated to the 
applications based on the potential effect the event or program has on increasing stays in local 
motels/hotels, thereby increasing the future lodging tax revenues needed to ensure the sustainability of the 
lodging tax funds.

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

 Chamber of Commerce (Operations): Funds to be used for operations of Chamber of 
Commerce Tourism facility, not for capital expenditures. The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 
recommends entering into a two-year contract with the Chamber of Commerce with the above 
amount provided to the Chamber during each of those years. 

 Chamber of Commerce (Marketing): $50,000 of grant funds to be used to market Oak 
Harbor per applicants proposal ($37,000 for 50-miles plus, and $13,000 for 50-miles or less). 
The remaining $17,500 should be used to market Downtown Oak Harbor specifically. 

 Oak Harbor Hydroplane Races: Funds to be used for marketing. 
 Dredging the Bay: No award recommended. 

 
The advisory committee submits these recommendations to City Council with the following comments 
regarding their analysis of the applications. The LTAC reviewed each application noting the scope of the 
proposal, the applicability of each application for the promotion of tourism, and the probable impact of 
each program to increase the number of people visiting Oak Harbor. Tourism means economic activity 
resulting from tourists, which may include slaes of overnight lodging, meals, tours, gifts, or souvenirs. 
Critical to this recommendation is the Committee’s feeling that funding has been allocated to the 
applications based on the potential effect the event or program has on increasing stays in local 
motels/hotels, thereby increasing the future lodging tax revenues needed to ensure the sustainability of the 
lodging tax funds.

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSIONCONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Adopt Resolution 14-44 awarding the 2015 Lodging Tax Grants.
2) Refer the application for the 2015 Whidbey island Marathon back to the LTAC for further discussion.

ATTACHMENTS
1. November 3, 2014 Lodging Tax Advisory Committee minutes.
2. Projected Lodging Tax Funds for December 31, 2014.
3. Resolution 14-44

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Adopt Resolution 14-44 awarding the 2015 Lodging Tax Grants.
2) Refer the application for the 2015 Whidbey island Marathon back to the LTAC for further discussion.

ATTACHMENTS
1. November 3, 2014 Lodging Tax Advisory Committee minutes.
2. Projected Lodging Tax Funds for December 31, 2014.
3. Resolution 14-44

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

56



MINUTES 
 

City of Oak Harbor 
Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 

November 3, 2014 
1:00 PM 

 
Members Present:, Jim Campbell, Chair; Pete Franssen; Ron Apgar; Lee Ann Mozes; Michelle Curry, 
Dana Beckman, and Don Debode (on behalf of Robert Lundstrom). 
 
Oak Harbor Staff Present:  Ethan Spoo, Economic Development Coordinator; Larry Cort, City 
Administrator.  
 
Logistics 
Three issues for logistics: (1) Committee members were reminded that past practice was not to vote 
on their own proposals, so as to avoid conflicts of interest; All agreed to comply with this practice (2) 
Committee members discussed procedure in case of a tie vote; it was voted and decided that two 
separate recommendations would be sent to the City Council and the Council would decide in case of 
a tie (3) Ethan reminded the committee of the amount of money that the Committee has the 
authority to make recommendations on this year including approximately $600,000 in accumulated 
funds and an estimated $180,000 expected to be received in 2015. Not all money must be awarded. 
 
Lodging Tax Applicant Presentations 
The Committee heard presentations from 15 lodging tax applicants from 1:15-5:15 p.m. See table 
listing applicants and recommendations below. Applicants requesting $25,000 or less gave five-
minute presentations followed by a five-minute question-and-answer period. Applicants requesting 
more than $25,000 gave 10-minute presentations, followed by a 5-minute question and answer 
period. All applicants presented in-person, with the exception of one who participated remotely via 
conference call. 
 
LTAC Discussion 
Following the applicant presentations, the committee made recommendations on grant awards.  The 
following table shows the lodging tax grant award recommendations made by the Committee for 
each applicant and project.  
 
  

57



Applicant Project Requested Recommended Purpose of Funds 

Oak Harbor Music 
Festival 

Oak Harbor Music Festival 
Publicity/Advertising/Music $ 20,000  $ 10,000  Marketing 

Fidalgo Ave. Merchants 
Association Oak Harbor Pig Fest $ 5,000  $ 3,000  Marketing 

PBY 
Off Island Distribution of 
Marketing Materials $ 5,600  $ 5,600  Marketing 

Downtown Merchants 
Association 

Extended Direct Marketing 
Campaign $ 20,000  $ 2,500  Marketing 

City of Oak Harbor Arts 
Commission Driftwood Days $ 4,125  $ 2,000  

Special Event 
Operations and 
Marketing 

North Whidbey Lions 
Club North Whidbey Car Show $ 5,000  $ 5,000  Marketing 

Whidbey Island Race 
Week Whidbey Island Race Week $ 10,207  $ 4,000  Marketing 

City of Oak Harbor Centennial Celebration $ 10,000  $        -    
No funds 
recommended 

City of Oak Harbor 
Purchase and Installation of 
Electronic Reader Board $ 28,000  $ 28,000  

Public Capital 
Facility 

Joint 2% Advisory Board 
for Whidbey & Camano 
Islands 

Arts, Culture, and Culinary 
Tourism $ 50,000  $ 30,000  

Marketing and 
Special Events 

City of Oak Harbor Whidbey Island Marathon $ 50,000  $         -    
No funds 
recommended 

Oak Harbor Chamber Operations $ 100,000  $ 100,000  
Operations of 
Tourism Facility 

Oak Harbor Chamber Marketing $ 50,000  $ 67,500  Marketing 

MAC Events & 
Promotions 

Oak Harbor Hydroplane 
Races $ 25,400  $ 20,000  Marketing 

Citizens for a Guest Dock Dredging the Bay $ 315,000  $         -    
No funds 
recommended 

Total   $698,332  $277,600    

58



 

The following are specific recommendations by the Committee on how grant funds are to be used for 
each project: 

 Oak Harbor Music Festival: Funds to be used for marketing and advertising only, not band 
fees or event operations. 

 Oak Harbor Pig Fest: Funds to be used for event flyers and rack cards for off-island 
distribution. 

 Off Island Distribution of Marketing Materials: Funds to be used for printing and 
distribution of two-sided rack card brochures. 

 Extended Direct Marketing Campaign: Funds to be used for the production of a YouTube 
video highlighting downtown. 

 Driftwood Days: Funds to be used for marketing/advertising. 

 North Whidbey Car Show: Funds to be used to market/advertise event as outlined in 
proposal. 

 Raceweek: Funds to be used for print and internet marketing, not for reimbursement costs 
for yacht club meetings and travel.  

 Oak Harbor Centennial Celebrations: Not applicable 

 Oak Harbor Electronic Message Center: Funds to be used for purchase and installation of 
electronic message center sign at Gateway-Beeksma Park. 

 Arts, Culture, and Culinary Tourism: $30,000 single-year installment with funds to be 
used proportional to the three projects outlined in the applicant’s proposal as follows: 16% 
($4800) tourism training seminar; 34% ($10,200) Whidbey SeaTac Shuttle Wraps; 50% 
($15,000) Press Trip for International Food and Travel Writers Association. 

 Whidbey Island Marathon: Not applicable. 

 Chamber of Commerce (Operations): Funds to be used for operations of Chamber of 
Commerce Tourism facility, not for capital expenditures. The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee 
recommends entering into a two-year contract with the Chamber of Commerce with the above 
amount provided to the Chamber during each of those years. 

 Chamber of Commerce (Marketing): $50,000 of grant funds to be used to market Oak 
Harbor per applicants proposal ($37,000 for 50-miles plus, and $13,000 for 50-miles or less). 
The remaining $17,500 should be used to market Downtown Oak Harbor specifically. 

 Oak Harbor Hydroplane Races: Funds to be used for marketing. 

 Dredging the Bay: Not applicable. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 

59



 

60



Total 2% Cash:  7/31/2014
Fund 116 - Civic Improvement Fund $511,768.36
Fund 125 - Windjammer Redevelopment Fund 125,375.00
Projected 2014 revenues to be received 73,743.00
   Total projected cash at 12/31/2014 710,886.36

Less: Budget Committments
Fund 116 (111,615.00) Amounts budgeted for 2014 not spent
Fund 125 (125,375.00) Remainder of Pioneer Plaza funds
   Total remaining committments (236,990.00)

Projected Cash Available at 12/31/2014 $473,896.36

Note:  Steps should be taken to uncommit Pioneer Plaza funds to add the $125,375 to funds available.

61



Page 1 of 2 

Resolution 14-44 
2014 LTAC Recommendations 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-44 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, ACCEPTING 

THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

FOR FUNDING THE 2015 LODGING TAX GRANT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has imposed both the “basic” hotel-motel tax of 2% (RCW 

67.28.180) and the additional lodging tax of 2% (RCW 67.28.181) upon the sale of, or change made for the 

furnishing of lodging; and 

WHEREAS, cities with a population of 5,000 or more must establish a lodging tax advisory committee to 

ensure that interested parties have a forum for debating the merits of a proposed imposition of a lodging tax, 

proposed increase in a lodging tax rate, proposed removal of a tax exemption, or a proposed “change in use” of 

tax revenues. Proposals for change must be submitted to the lodging tax advisory committee for review and 

comment at least 45 days prior to taking action on the proposal; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor referred the proposed change in use of lodging funds 

for the 2015 Lodging Tax Grant Program to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee on August 6, 2014 and 

WHEREAS, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee reviewed the applications submitted and hereby makes the 

following recommendations for funding to the City Council: 

Oak Harbor Music Festival – Oak Harbor Music Festival $10,000. Funds to be used for marketing and 

advertising only, not band fees or event operations. 

Oak Harbor Pig Fest – Fidalgo Avenue Merchants Association $3,000. Funds to be used for event flyers 

and rack cards for off-island distribution. 

Off Island Distribution of Marketing Materials – PBY $5,600. Funds to be used for printing and 

distribution of two-sided rack card brochures. 

Extended Direct Marketing Campaign – Downtown Merchants Association $2,500. Funds to be used for 

the production of a YouTube video highlighting downtown. 

Driftwood Days – City of Oak Harbor, Arts Commission $2,000. Funds to be used for 

marketing/advertising. 

North Whidbey Car Show – North Whidbey Lions Club $5,000. Funds to be used to market/advertise 

event. 

Whidbey Island Race Week – Whidbey Island Race Week $4,000. Funds to be used for print and 

internet marketing, not for reimbursement costs for Yacht Club meetings and travel. 

Purchase and Installation of Electronic Reader Board – City of Oak Harbor. $28,000. Funds to be used for 

purchase and installation of electronic message center sign for Gateway-Beeksma Park. 

Arts, Culture, and Culinary Tourism – Joint 2% Advisory Board for Whidbey & Camano Islands $30,000. Funds 

to be used proportional to the three projects outlined in the applicant’s proposal as follows: 16% ($4800) tourism 

training seminar; 34% ($10,200) Whidbey SeaTac Shuttle Wraps; 50% ($15,000 Press Trip for International Food 

and Travel Writers Association). 

62



Page 2 of 2 

Resolution 14-44 
2014 LTAC Recommendations 

Chamber of Commerce (Operations) – Greater Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce $100,000. Funds to be used 

for operations of Chamber of Commerce Tourism facility, not for capital expenditures. The Lodging Tax 

Advisory Committee recommends entering into a two-year contract with the Chamber of Commerce with the 

above amount provided to the Chamber during each of those years. 

Chamber of Commerce (Marketing) - Greater Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce $67,500 single-year grant 

award. $50,000 of grant funds to be used to market Oak Harbor per applicant’s proposal ($37,000 for 50-miles 

plus and $13,000 for 50-miles or less). The remaining $17,500 to be used to market Downtown Oak Harbor 

specifically. 

Oak Harbor Hydroplane Races – MAC Events and Promotions $20,000. Funds to be used for marketing. 

TOTAL $277,600 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor accepts the recommendations 

of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee to award lodging tax funding to the listed applicants for the amounts and specific 

uses as shown. 

PASSED by the City Council this 2nd day of December, 2014. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

________________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ 

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

63



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-42: Update City 
Employee Policy Manual Section 
5.01 Health and Welfare 
Benefits.

FROM: Sara Piccone, Director of Human Resources 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
To update the Employee Policy Manual – Section 5.01 “Health and Welfare Benefits” to include a 
supplement to address the tracking of City’s Non-Regular Part-Time, Variable Hours, and Seasonal 
employee hours for the purpose determining and calculating Assessable Payment and  employee eligibility
for healthcare under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA).

AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-42: Update City 
Employee Policy Manual Section 
5.01 Health and Welfare 
Benefits.

FROM: Sara Piccone, Director of Human Resources 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
To update the Employee Policy Manual – Section 5.01 “Health and Welfare Benefits” to include a 
supplement to address the tracking of City’s Non-Regular Part-Time, Variable Hours, and Seasonal 
employee hours for the purpose determining and calculating Assessable Payment and  employee eligibility 
for healthcare under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA).

AUTHORITYAUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Effective January 1, 2015, the Affordable Care Act mandates that a large employer (at least 50 full-time 
employees), offer affordable health care to substantially all of its “full-time” employees or face potential 
penalties. The new law defines a “full-time” employee as one who averages 30 or more hours of service 
per week/130 hours per month. 

The City currently offers health coverage for Regular Full-time and Regular Part-Time employees.  The 
City does have non-regular part-time, variable hour, and seasonal employees who are not currently 
covered under health benefits.

The IRS allows employers to adopt a “Look Back Measurement Method Safe Harbor” to determine 
whether an employee is “full-time” for purposes of the ACA.  The City will establish a twelve month 
“standard measurement period.”  At the end of the standard measurement period, the City will look back 
at hours worked during that measurement period and calculate the average number of hours worked per
week/month for each employee. 

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
None

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Effective January 1, 2015, the Affordable Care Act mandates that a large employer (at least 50 full-time 
employees), offer affordable health care to substantially all of its “full-time” employees or face potential 
penalties. The new law defines a “full-time” employee as one who averages 30 or more hours of service 
per week/130 hours per month. 

The City currently offers health coverage for Regular Full-time and Regular Part-Time employees.  The 
City does have non-regular part-time, variable hour, and seasonal employees who are not currently 
covered under health benefits.

The IRS allows employers to adopt a “Look Back Measurement Method Safe Harbor” to determine 
whether an employee is “full-time” for purposes of the ACA.  The City will establish a twelve month 
“standard measurement period.”  At the end of the standard measurement period, the City will look back 
at hours worked during that measurement period and calculate the average number of hours worked per 
week/month for each employee. 

8.

64



Any employee determined to be “full-time” under this method must then be offered affordable health care 
coverage during an identified “administrative period.”  If the employee elects health coverage, s/he would 
continue coverage during the ensuing “stability period.”
 
 Resolution and the City’s Administrative Policy provide additional details to ensure the City is fully 
compliant in tracking employee hours and eligibility for health coverage.
 

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
Presented at November 19, 2014 Workshop

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Motion to Adopt Resolution No 14-42 authorizing the City to update the Employee Policy Manual -
Section 5.01 “Health and Welfare Benefits” to include a supplement to address the tracking of City’s 
Non-Regular Part-Time, Variable Hour, and Seasonal employee hours for the purposes of determining 
and calculating assessable payment and employee eligibility for healthcare under the Patient Protection 
and Affordable Care Act (ACA).

ATTACHMENTS

Any employee determined to be “full-time” under this method must then be offered affordable health care 
coverage during an identified “administrative period.”  If the employee elects health coverage, s/he would 
continue coverage during the ensuing “stability period.”
 
 Resolution and the City’s Administrative Policy provide additional details to ensure the City is fully 
compliant in tracking employee hours and eligibility for health coverage.
 

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
Presented at November 19, 2014 Workshop

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Motion to Adopt Resolution No 14-42 authorizing the City to update the Employee Policy Manual -
Section 5.01 “Health and Welfare Benefits” to include a supplement to address the tracking of City’s 
Non-Regular Part-Time, Variable Hour, and Seasonal employee hours for the purposes of determining 
and calculating assessable payment and employee eligibility for healthcare under the Patient Protection 
and Affordable Care Act (ACA).

ATTACHMENTSATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 14-42 
2. Employee Policy Manual 5.01 - Health and Welfare Supplemental policy
3. Agenda Bill 14-42

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
None

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 14-42 
2. Employee Policy Manual 5.01 - Health and Welfare Supplemental policy
3. Agenda Bill 14-42

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
None

65



RESOLUTION NO.  14-42 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMEND THE CITY 
PERSONNEL POLICIES TO ALLOW THE CITY TO ADDRESS THE TRACKING OF THE CITY’S NON-
REGULAR PART-TIME, VARIABLE HOUR, AND SEASONAL EMPLOYEE HOURS FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF IDENTIFYING FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES FOR THE DETERMINATION AND 
CALCULATION OF THE ASSESSABLE PAYMENT AND EMPLOYEE ELIGIBLITY FOR 
HEALTHCARE UNDER THE PATIENT PROTECTION AND AFFORDABLE CARE ACT (ACA).   

WHEREAS, The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) was enacted on March 23, 2010; and 

WHEREAS, Section 4980H imposes an assessable payment on an applicable large employer when it fails to 

offer “substantially all” of its full-time employees (and their dependents) the opportunity to enroll in the 

minimum essential coverage; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor is considered an applicable large employer because it employed an average 

of at least 50 full-time employees (including full-time equivalents) on business days during the preceding 

calendar year; and  

WHEREAS, the Department of Treasury issued regulations regarding Section 4980H that permit the City to 

adopt the Look Back Measurement Method Safe Harbor in order to determine the status of an employee as 

“full-time” for purposes of determining and calculating Assessable Payment; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR THAT: 

Section 1.  The City hereby establishes the Look Back Measurement Method Safe Harbor, as outlined in 

Exhibit A. (Employee Policy Manual – Health and Welfare Policy 5.01 Supplement - Patient Protection and 

Affordable Care Act, with regard to all employees for the purpose of identifying full-time employees for the 

determination and calculation of the Assessable Payment and employee eligibility for healthcare under the 

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA). 

Section 2.  This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 2
nd

 day of December 2014.

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

66



Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Nikki Esparza,  City Attorney 

 

Introduction:  

Adopted:    

Published:  

 

 

 

 

67



Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act 

The City of Oak Harbor provides a comprehensive benefits package to employees, subject to 
eligibility requirements.  Benefits generally include insurance coverage for medical, dental and vision, 
as well as an employee assistance program (EAP), life and disability insurance and a flexible 
spending account under which employees can take pre-tax deductions for heathcare and dependent 
care expenses.  The benefit programs and eligibility information will be explained upon hire, complete 
information about the benefit programs can be found in the Summary Plan Descriptions provided to 
employees.  If you lose or misplace those Summary Plan Descriptions or have questions regarding 
benefit programs, please see Human Resources.  Represented employees should also refer to their 
union contract for health insurance and other information. 

 The City reserves the right to modify, amend, or terminate its health and welfare benefits as they 
apply to all current, former, and retired employees.   Additionally, the Administrator of each benefit 
plan has the discretionary authority to determine eligibility for benefits and to interpret the plan’s 
terms.  

1) Health Coverage

The City of Oak Harbor Health Coverage policy is administered in accordance with the Employer 
Shared Responsibility provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended 
(PPACA). 

 Under the terms and conditions of this policy and City’s health benefits plan, The City provides health 
coverage to eligible employees and their dependents up to age 26. The benefits, terms, and 
conditions of City’s health benefits plan, including costs owed by eligible employees, are explained in 
a separate plan document (the “Plan”) and/or in applicable collective bargaining agreements.  

2) Benefit Definitions and Classifications

Regular Full-time. At time of hire or change in job classification, employee is reasonably expected to 
work, on average, 30 or more hours per week/130 hours per month. Full-time employees are eligible 
for health coverage and will be enrolled in health coverage as specified in the Plan. 

Employees who work .8 FTE (thirty-two (32) hours a week) or more but less than 1.0 FTE (forty (40) 
hours per week) on a regular basis are eligible for partial payment of spouse, domestic partner and 
dependent health care coverage. 

Regular Part-time. At time of hire or change in job classification, employee is reasonably expected to 
work, on average, less than 30 hours per week/130 hours per month.  

Employees who work .5 FTE (twenty (20) hours per week) - .799 FTE (thirty-one hours per week) are 
eligible for employee health care coverage, but must pay for spouse, domestic partner and dependent 
health care coverage.   

Coverage offered to eligible regular part-time employees working less than 30 hours per week/130 
hours per month is provided by the City on a voluntary basis and is not required under the PPACA. 

68



If, based on City prior approval, a non-regular part-time employee averages 30 or more hours per 
week/130 hours per month during a measurement period (discussed below), the employee will be 
deemed a non-regular full-time employee, eligible for health coverage during a subsequent stability 
period (discussed below). 
 
Variable-hour. At time of hire or change in job classification, the City cannot reasonably determine 
whether employee will or will not average 30 or more hours per week/130 hours per month. Variable-
hour employees are subject to monthly and annual hours limitations and are generally not eligible for 
health coverage, unless otherwise specified under the terms of the Plan or applicable collective 
bargaining agreement. If, based on the City’s prior approval, a variable-hour employee averages 30 
or more hours per week/130 hours per month during a measurement period (discussed below), the 
employee will be deemed a non-regular full-time employee, eligible for health coverage during a 
subsequent stability period (discussed below). 
 
Seasonal. At time of hire or change in job classification, employee is hired or re-hired into a position 
for which the customary annual employment is approximately six months or less, beginning in 
approximately the same season of each calendar year. Seasonal employees are subject to a 
mandatory annual break in service of approximately six continuous months and are not eligible for 
health coverage, unless otherwise specified under the terms of the Plan or applicable collective 
bargaining agreement. 
 
Dependents. Children of full-time employees up to age 26 (including the entire calendar month in 
which a child turns age 26). Includes biological and adopted children, stepchildren and foster 
children.  Also includes spouses and domestic partners.  Dependents of regular full-time employees 
are eligible for health coverage.  
 
Volunteers. Individuals who provide services to the City on a voluntary basis and whose 
compensation is limited to: (1) reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred in the performance 
of services as a volunteer; (2) reasonable fringe benefits, excluding health coverage; and/or 
(3) nominal fees or honorarium provided in connection with services as a volunteer. Volunteers are 
not employees and are not eligible for health coverage. 
 
Elected Officials: Any individual who serves as a public official is an employee of the government for 
whom he or she serves and will for benefit eligibility purposes be considered a non-regular part-time 
employee.  If, based on City prior approval, a non-regular part-time employee averages 30 or more 
hours per week/130 hours per month during a measurement period (discussed below), the employee 
will be deemed a non-regular full-time employee, eligible for health coverage during a subsequent 
stability period (discussed below). 
 

3)         Work Hours Limitations 

For certain employee classifications, the City restricts the maximum annual and/or monthly hours of 
work. 
 
Regular Full-time employees are not subject to an annual or monthly hours limitation and may work 
30 or more hours per week/130 hours per month, without limit, unless otherwise limited by City’s 

69



overtime policy, job description, the terms of any applicable collective bargaining agreement, or the 
terms of any other City policy or agreement. Non- regular full-time employees are not subject to initial 
or standard measurement, administrative, or stability periods (discussed below). 
 
Non-regular Part-time employees are subject to an annual hours limitation and may not exceed 
1500 hours annually without the City’s prior approval. In addition to an annual hours limitation, non-
regular part-time employees may not exceed 125 hours in any single calendar month without the 
City’s prior approval. Non-regular part-time employees are subject to initial and standard 
measurement, administrative, and stability periods (discussed below). 
 
Variable-hour employees are subject to an annual hours limitation and may not exceed 1500 hours 
annually without the City’s prior approval. In addition to an annual hours limitation, variable-hour 
employees may not exceed 125 hours in any single calendar month without the City’s prior approval. 
Variable-hour employees are subject to both initial and standard measurement, administrative, and 
stability periods (discussed below). 
 
Seasonal employees are not subject to an annual or monthly hours limitation and may work 30 or 
more hours per week/130 hours per month, without limit, unless otherwise limited by City’s overtime 
policy, job description, the terms of any applicable collective bargaining agreement, or the terms of 
any other Employer policy or agreement. Seasonal employees are limited to an annual employment 
duration of approximately six months and must have an annual break in service of approximately six 
continuous months before being eligible for re-hire. Seasonal employees may work longer than six 
months with the City’s prior approval. Seasonal employees are subject to initial and standard 
measurement, administrative, and stability periods (discussed below). 

4)         Measurement and Administrative Periods – Initial Periods 

The City uses a 12-month initial measurement period to measure the hours of new non-regular 
part-time, variable-hour, and seasonal employees. 
 
The City uses an initial administrative period of no longer than two months, divided in two phases. 
The first phase begins on the date of hire of a new non-regular part-time, variable-hour, or seasonal 
employee and continues until the last day of that calendar month. The second phase begins at the 
end of the 12-month initial measurement period and lasts for one full calendar month. The purpose of 
the first phase of the initial administrative period is to reduce administrative complexity by 
consolidating all new non-regular part-time, variable-hour, and seasonal employees hired during a 
month into the same initial measurement and stability periods. The purpose of the second phase of 
the initial administrative period is to allow the City to calculate the hours worked by employees during 
the initial measurement period and to enroll eligible employees in health coverage. 
 
The City uses a 12-month initial stability period for purposes of providing or excluding health 
coverage to new non-regular part-time, variable-hour, and seasonal employees. If an employee works 
an average of 30 hours or more per week/130 hours per month during an initial measurement period, 
the employee will be deemed a non-regular full-time employee and will eligible for health coverage 
during the initial stability period, regardless of the hours worked during the initial stability period, so 
long as the employee remains employed by the City. If an employee works an average of less than 
30 hours per week during the initial measurement period, the employee will not be deemed a non-

70



regular full-time employee and will not be eligible for health coverage during the initial stability period, 
regardless of the hours worked during the initial stability period. 
 

Initial Administrative Period (Phase 1)  –    Begins on date of hire, continues until end of 
month. 

 
Initial Measurement Period                      –    Begins on first day of first full calendar month 

following date of hire and continues for 12 months. 
 
Initial Administrative Period (Phase 2)  –    Begins on first day of first full calendar month 

following Initial Measurement Period and lasts for 
the entire month. 

 
Initial Stability Period                                –    Begins on first day of first full calendar month 

following Phase 2 of Initial Administrative Period 
and continues for 12 months. 

 
To determine the average hours worked by each employee during the 12-month initial measurement 
period, the City will divide the employee’s total hours worked during the period by 52. 
 
Example: 

         Employee A is hired as a new variable-hour employee on April 2, 2015. Employee B is hired 
as a new non-regular part-time employee on April 15, 2015. 

         Under the first phase of the initial administrative period, Employee A is placed into an initial 
administrative period from April 2, 2015 through April 30, 2015. Employee B is placed into an 
initial administrative period from April 15, 2015 through April 30, 2105. [The purpose of the first 
phase of the initial administrative period is to reduce administrative complexity by consolidating 
all new part-time, variable-hour, and seasonal employees hired in the same calendar month 
into the same initial measurement and stability periods.] 

         Employee A and Employee B both have initial measurement periods beginning May 1, 2015 
and ending April 30, 2016 (12 months). 

         Employee A and Employee B are both subject to the second phase of the initial administrative 
period, beginning May 1, 2016 and ending May 31, 2016 (one month). During this period, the 
City calculates Employee A’s and Employee B’s hours worked during the initial measurement 
period. 

         Employee A and Employee B are both subject to an initial stability period beginning 
June 1, 2016 and ending May 31, 2017 (12 months). If either employee averaged 30 or more 
hours per week/130 hours per month during the initial measurement period, he/she will be 
offered and enrolled in health coverage during the initial stability period. If either employee 
averaged fewer than 30 hours per week/130 hours per month during the initial measurement 
period, he/she will be excluded from health coverage during the initial stability period. 

 

71



5)         Measurement and Administrative Periods – Standard Periods 

The City uses a 12-month standard measurement period to measure the hours of all ongoing non-
regular part-time, variable-hour, and seasonal employees hired on or before the start of a standard 
measurement period. 
 
The City uses a standard administrative period of 31 days. The purpose of the standard 
administrative period is to calculate the hours worked by employees during the preceding standard 
measurement period and to enroll eligible employees in health coverage during the resulting standard 
stability period. 
 
The City uses a 12-month standard stability period for purposes of providing or excluding health 
coverage to ongoing non-regular part-time, variable hour, and seasonal employees. If an employee 
works an average of 30 hours or more per week/130 hours per month during a standard 
measurement period, the employee will be deemed a non-regular full-time employee and will be 
eligible for health coverage during the resulting standard stability period, regardless of the hours 
worked during the standard stability period, so long as the employee remains employed by the City. If 
an employee works an average of less than 30 hours per week/130 hours per month during the 
standard measurement period, the employee will not be deemed a non-regular full-time employee 
and will not be eligible for health coverage during the resulting standard stability period, regardless of 
the hours worked during the stability period. 

 
Standard Measurement Period  –          December 1 of each year through November 30 of 
the following year 
 
Standard Administrative Period –          December 1 through December 31 of each year. 
 
Standard Stability Period             –          January 1 through December 31 of each year. 

 
To determine the average hours worked by each employee during the 12-month standard 
measurement period, the City will divide the employee’s total hours worked during the period by 52. 
 
 
Example: 

         Employee C is an ongoing variable-hour employee who was hired on or before December 1, 
2017 (the start of Employer’s standard measurement period). 

         Starting in 2017, Employee C’s standard measurement period begins December 1, 2017 and 
ends November 30, 2018 (12 months). 

         Employee C’s standard administrative period begins December 1, 2018 and ends 
December 31, 2018. During this period, Employer calculates Employee C’s hours worked 
during the preceding standard measurement period. If Employee C averaged 30 or more hours 
per week/130 hours per month during the preceding standard measurement period, Employee 
C will be eligible for health coverage during the resulting standard stability period. If Employee 
C averaged below 30 hours per week during the preceding standard measurement period, 
Employee C will be excluded from health coverage during the resulting standard stability 
period. 

72



         Employee C’s standard stability period begins January 1, 2019 and ends December 31, 2019 
(12 months). 

         Employee C’s next standard measurement period begins December 1, 2018 and ends 
November 30, 2019 (12 months). 

 

6)         Measurement and Administrative Periods – Overlapping Initial and Standard Periods 

The City’s standard measurement periods apply to all ongoing non-regular part-time, variable-hour, 
and seasonal employees hired by the City on or before the start date of a standard measurement 
period. New non-regular part-time, variable-hour, and seasonal employees will be measured by both 
the City’s initial measurement period and the first standard measurement period beginning on or after 
each employee’s date of hire. 
 
Example: 

         Employee D is a new variable-hour employee. Employee D is hired September 29, 2015. 

         Employee D is subject to the first phase of the initial administrative period, beginning 
September 29, 2015 and ending one day later, September 30, 2015. 

         Employee D is subject to an initial measurement period beginning October 1, 2015 and ending 
September 30, 2016. 

         Employee D is subject to the second phase of the initial administrative period, beginning 
October 1, 2016 and ending on October 31, 2016. 

         Employee D is subject to an initial stability period beginning November 1, 2016 and ending 
October 31, 2017. 

         Because Employee D was hired on or before Employer’s 2015 standard measurement period, 
Employee D is concurrently subject to the standard measurement period beginning 
December 1, 2015 and ending November 30, 2016. 

         Employee D is subject to a standard administrative period beginning December 1, 2016 and 
ending December 31, 2016. 

         Employee D is subject to a standard stability period beginning January 1, 2017 and ending 
December 31, 2017. 

 
Based on the overlapping nature of initial and standard measurement and stability periods, situations 
will arise where non-regular part-time, variable-hour, and seasonal employees will be subject to 
simultaneous initial and standard measurement, administrative, and stability periods. 
 
If the City determines an employee is eligible for health coverage during an initial measurement 
period or standard measurement period, the employee must be enrolled in health coverage for the 
entire associated stability period. This is the case even if the employee is determined to be eligible for 
health coverage during the initial measurement period but determined not to be eligible for coverage 
during the overlapping or immediately following standard measurement period. In such a case, the 
City may exclude the employee from health coverage only after the end of the initial stability period. 
Thereafter, the employee’s eligibility for health coverage would be determined in the same manner as 
that of other ongoing non-regular part-time, variable-hour, or seasonal employees. 
 
In contrast, if City determines an employee is not eligible for coverage during the initial measurement 
period, but is eligible for coverage based on the overlapping or immediately following standard 

73



measurement period, employee will be eligible for health coverage for the entire standard stability 
period (even if the standard stability period begins before the end of the initial stability period). 
Thereafter, the employee’s eligibility for health coverage would be determined in the same manner as 
other non-regular part-time, variable-hour, or seasonal employees. 
 

7)         Rules Concerning Eligibility and Enrollment 

To be enrolled in health coverage under the Plan, eligible employees must comply with all applicable 
application requirements and deadlines. Failure to do so may result in delayed or no enrollment until 
the next annual enrollment period or upon a qualified change in status. 
 
If an eligible employee’s payment for the cost of health coverage is untimely, the terms of the Plan 
provides when coverage terminates and whether there is a grace period for payment. The City is not 
required to provide health coverage for the period for which the cost of health coverage is not timely 
paid and may terminate coverage. 
 
Eligible employees have the right to waive enrollment in the City’s health coverage. Employer will 
provide a written waiver that must be timely completed, signed, and submitted by an eligible 
employee desiring to waive enrollment. Unless the Plan specifies otherwise, a new waiver must be 
completed annually. The City will provide otherwise eligible employees who previously waived 
enrollment in health coverage the opportunity to enroll at least once annually. 
 

Hours for Paid and Unpaid Leave during Measurement Periods 

Hours of service for employees during measurement periods include both actual hours of service 
worked in addition to paid hours for vacation leave, sick leave, holiday leave, or other paid leave. 
 
Periods of unpaid leave, including unpaid FMLA or military leave, are excluded from the hours 
calculation during any measurement period. Example: Employee E is a variable-hour employee 
subject to a 12-month (52-week) standard measurement period. During the standard measurement 
period, Employee E takes four weeks of unpaid FMLA leave. The four weeks of unpaid FMLA leave 
are excluded from the hours calculation. The average is calculated by the total hours worked by 
Employee E during the standard measurement period (12 months), divided by 48 weeks (instead of 
52 weeks). 
 
Administrative periods overlap with measurement and stability periods. Employees offered health 
coverage during a stability period must remain enrolled in coverage during a subsequent 
administrative period. Employees excluded from health coverage during a stability period remain 
excluded from coverage during a subsequent administrative period. 
 

8)         Breaks in Service 

Employees, regardless of classification, who separate their employment with the City, voluntarily or 
involuntarily, must have a break in service of at least 13 continuous weeks before being eligible for 
re-hire. Employees re-hired after a break in service of at least 13 continuous weeks will be treated as 

74



a “new” employee, without any consideration given to previous hours worked or previous 
measurement or stability periods that may have applied prior to separation. 
 
Employees who are re-hired into full-time positions must be enrolled in health coverage no later than 
the first day of the fourth calendar month following their date of re-hire. Employees who are re-hired 
into non-regular part-time, variable-hour, or seasonal positions are subject to the City’s initial 
measurement, initial administrative, and initial stability periods. 
 
The City reserves the right to suspend this rule on a case-by-case basis. 
 
 

 

75



 City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

11/18/14 Agenda Bill 

Bill No. C/A 4.o. 

Date:  November 18, 2014 

Subject: Resolution -14-42 Update – City 

Employee Policy Manual – Section 

5.01 Health and Welfare Benefits 

FROM:    Sara Piccone, Human Resource Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 

_____ Scott Dudley, Mayor 

_____ Larry Cort, City Administrator 

_____  Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

_____ Nikki Esparza City Attorney 

PURPOSE 

To update the Employee Policy Manual – Section 5.01 “Health and Welfare Benefits” to include a supplement 

to address the tracking of City’s Non-Regular Part-Time, Variable Hours, and Seasonal employee hours for the 

purpose determining and calculating Assessable Payment and  employee eligibility for healthcare under the 

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA). 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

Effective January 1, 2015, the Affordable Care Act mandates that a large employer (at least 50 full-time 

employees), offer affordable health care to substantially all of its “full-time” employees or face potential 

penalties. The new law defines a “full-time” employee as one who averages 30 or more hours of service per 

week/130 hours per month.   

The City currently offers health coverage for Regular Full-time and Regular Part-Time employees.  The City 

does have non-regular part-time, variable hour, and seasonal employees who are not currently covered under 

health benefits. 

The IRS allows employers to adopt a “Look Back Measurement Method Safe Harbor” to determine whether an 

employee is “full-time” for purposes of the ACA.  The City will establish a twelve month “standard 

measurement period.”  At the end of the standard measurement period, the City will look back at hours worked 

during that measurement period and calculate the average number of hours worked per week/month for each 

employee.   

Any employee determined to be “full-time” under this method must then be offered affordable health care 

coverage during an identified “administrative period.”  If the employee elects health coverage, s/he would 

continue coverage during the ensuing “stability period.” 

 Resolution and the City’s Administrative Policy provide additional details to ensure the City is fully compliant 

in tracking employee hours and eligibility for health coverage. 

76



 City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

11/18/14 Agenda Bill 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 

None 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Motion to Adopt Resolution No 14-42 authorizing the City to update the Employee Policy Manual - Section 

5.01 “Health and Welfare Benefits” to include a supplement to address the tracking of City’s Non-Regular Part-

Time, Variable Hour, and Seasonal employee hours for the purposes of determining and calculating assessable 

payment and employee eligibility for healthcare under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA). 

 ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution 14-42. 

Employee Policy Manual - Supplement 

77



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-49: 2015 Non-
Represented Staff Market 
Adjustments

FROM: Sara Piccone 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
To provide a market rate salary adjustment to certain non-represented classifications that were 
determined to be paid under-market by the 2014 salary survey.  These adjustments, if approved, would 
be effective January 1, 2015.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. c.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Resolution 14-49: 2015 Non-
Represented Staff Market 
Adjustments

FROM: Sara Piccone 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
To provide a market rate salary adjustment to certain non-represented classifications that were 
determined to be paid under-market by the 2014 salary survey.  These adjustments, if approved, would 
be effective January 1, 2015.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTIONFISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In order for the City to remain competitive in the employment market place and to ensure the City’s 
position classification plan is internally equitable, Section 4.09 of the Employee Policy Manual establishes 
the policy of the City to pay salaries that reflect the market for each classification and that are 
commensurate with the compensation paid at comparable municipal governments.

Human Resources performed a salary survey of comparable cities during 2014 for non-represented 
classifications to determine if the current position classification plan meets the City’s objective to remain
competitive in the employment market. 

It was determined that the salary of certain non-represented classifications were below the average of the 
salaries paid for similar classifications at comparable municipal governments.

The position classification plan range of those classifications determined to be below market shall be 
adjusted to the nearest applicable range.

DISCUSSION

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

SUMMARY STATEMENT
In order for the City to remain competitive in the employment market place and to ensure the City’s 
position classification plan is internally equitable, Section 4.09 of the Employee Policy Manual establishes 
the policy of the City to pay salaries that reflect the market for each classification and that are 
commensurate with the compensation paid at comparable municipal governments.

Human Resources performed a salary survey of comparable cities during 2014 for non-represented 
classifications to determine if the current position classification plan meets the City’s objective to remain 
competitive in the employment market. 

It was determined that the salary of certain non-represented classifications were below the average of the 
salaries paid for similar classifications at comparable municipal governments.

The position classification plan range of those classifications determined to be below market shall be 
adjusted to the nearest applicable range.

DISCUSSION

8.

78



PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
The City of Oak Harbor shall approve the recommended market salary adjustments for those non-
represented classifications determined to be below market-rate by the 2014 salary survey.  

ATTACHMENTS
1. Bill 14-49 2015 Non-Represented Staff Market Adjustments
2. Resolution 14-49
3. Exhibit A: Positions recommended for 2015 market adjustments

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
The City of Oak Harbor shall approve the recommended market salary adjustments for those non-
represented classifications determined to be below market-rate by the 2014 salary survey.  

ATTACHMENTS
1. Bill 14-49 2015 Non-Represented Staff Market Adjustments
2. Resolution 14-49
3. Exhibit A: Positions recommended for 2015 market adjustments

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

79



 City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

Agenda Bill 

Bill No. 14-49 
Date:  December 2, 2014 

Subject: Resolution 14.49- 2015 Non-

Represented Staff Market 

Adjustment  

FROM:    Sara Piccone, Human Resource Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 

_____ Scott Dudley, Mayor 

_____ Larry Cort, City Administrator 

_____  Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

_____ Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

PURPOSE 

To provide a market rate salary adjustment to certain non-represented classifications that were determined to be 

paid under-market by the 2014 salary survey.  These adjustments, if approved, would be effective January 1, 

2015. 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

In order for the City to remain competitive in the employment market place and to ensure the City’s position 

classification plan is internally equitable, Section 4.09 of the Employee Policy Manual establishes the policy of 

the City to pay salaries that reflect the market for each classification and that are commensurate with the 

compensation paid at comparable municipal governments. 

Human Resources performed a salary survey of comparable cities during 2014 for non-represented 

classifications to determine if the current position classification plan meets the City’s objective to remain 

competitive in the employment market.   

It was determined that the salary of certain non-represented classifications were below the average of the 

salaries paid for similar classifications at comparable municipal governments. 

The position classification plan range of those classifications determined to be below market shall be adjusted to 

the nearest applicable range. 

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 

None 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The City of Oak Harbor shall approve the recommended market salary adjustments for those non-represented 

classifications determined to be below market-rate by the 2014 salary survey.   

80



 City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

Agenda Bill 

 ATTACHMENTS 

 

Exhibit A -Positions recommended for 2015 market adjustment 

81



Resolution14-49:  Non-represented Staff Market Adjustment 
1 | P a g e  

RESOLUTION 14-49 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR TO PROVIDE A MARKET RATE 
SALARY ADJUSTMENT TO CERTAIN NON-REPRESENTED CLASSIFICATIONS THAT WERE 
DETERMINED TO BE PAID UNDER MARKET BY THE 2014 SALARY SURVEY. 

WHEREAS, in order for the City to remain competitive in the employment market place and to ensure the City’s 

position classification plan is internally equitable, Section 4.09 of the Employee Policy Manual establishes the 

policy of the City to pay salaries that reflect the market for each classification and that are commensurate with 

the compensation paid at comparable municipal governments; and 

WHEREAS, the Human Resources Department performed a salary survey of comparable cities during 2014 for 

non-represented classification to determine if the current Position Classification Plan meets the City’s stated 

policy objectives; and 

WHEREAS, the 2014 salary survey determined that the salary of certain non-represented classifications were 

below the average of the salaries paid for similar classifications at comparable municipal governments. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR THAT: 

Section 1.  A market rate salary adjustment is hereby authorized and approved for those non-represented 

classifications determined to be below market by the 2014 salary survey. 

Section 2.  The position classification plan range of those classifications determined to be below market-rate 

shall be adjusted to the nearest applicable range as outlined in Exhibit A  - Positions Recommended for 2015 

Market Adjustments. 

Section 3.  The market adjustment shall be effective January 1, 2015. 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 2nd day of December 2014. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

82



Positions with Recommended Range Movement

All Non-Rep Positions
Mid-year  
Change % 

Up

Mid-year 
Change % 

Down

Recommended Range 
Increase for mid-year

City Administrator 3.32 increase by 1 Range to 69
Economic Dev Coord 2.67 See Sr Planner/Econ Dev Coord

Senior Planner 3.26 increase by 1 Range to 49

Senior Planner/Econ Dev Coord 2.96 increase by 1 Range to 49

Fire Chief 4.26 increase by 1 Range to 61

Office Assistant 5.45 position on hold

City Attorney 3.35 increase by 1 Range to 64

Paralegal 3.06 increase by 1 Range to 38

Operations Mgr-Parks 4.47 increase by 1 Range to 46
Public Works Lead (Storm Drain, 
Solid Waste, Streets, Water, 
Mechanic, WWTP) 2.94 increase by 1 Range to 43

Code Compliance Ofc 3.72 increase by 1 Range to 40

Purchasing Agnt/Budget Anly 3.00 increase by 1 Range to 42

83



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1705: Adoption of 
the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget. 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents the proposed ordinance required under RCW 35A.34.120 for adopting the 
City’s 2015-2016 biennial budget.  This ordinance will set the appropriation levels, by fund, for the 
biennial period.

AUTHORITY
RCW 35.34.040 authorizes First-Class cities to adopt biennial budgets.  In addition, RCW 35A.11.020 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1705: Adoption of 
the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget. 

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents the proposed ordinance required under RCW 35A.34.120 for adopting the 
City’s 2015-2016 biennial budget.  This ordinance will set the appropriation levels, by fund, for the 
biennial period.

AUTHORITY
RCW 35.34.040 authorizes First-Class cities to adopt biennial budgets.  In addition, RCW 35A.11.020 RCW 35.34.040 authorizes First-Class cities to adopt biennial budgets.  In addition, RCW 35A.11.020 
gives Code cities such as Oak Harbor the same authority as given to other classes of cities.  The rules for 
adopting biennial budgets by Code cities are set out in RCW 34A.34.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
The fiscal impact of this action is the total city-wide appropriation authority reflected in Ordinance 1705.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
This purpose of this agenda bill is to present the biennial budget Ordinance No. 1705 for the fiscal period 
2015-2016.  The requested budget authorizations have been established through the City's department 
appropriation request and approval process.  The attached ordinance, in proper format, lists the 
appropriation authority for each fund of the City.  Future appropriation requests which propose a change 
in the adopted authority at the fund level will be evidenced and presented to City Council as a budget 
amendment.

The attached Ordinance No. 1705 is in draft form.  Any adjusting updates occurring between the agenda 
packet preparation date and December 2 will be included in a revised ordinance copy.

DISCUSSION
None

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

RCW 35.34.040 authorizes First-Class cities to adopt biennial budgets.  In addition, RCW 35A.11.020 
gives Code cities such as Oak Harbor the same authority as given to other classes of cities.  The rules for 
adopting biennial budgets by Code cities are set out in RCW 34A.34.

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
The fiscal impact of this action is the total city-wide appropriation authority reflected in Ordinance 1705.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
This purpose of this agenda bill is to present the biennial budget Ordinance No. 1705 for the fiscal period 
2015-2016.  The requested budget authorizations have been established through the City's department 
appropriation request and approval process.  The attached ordinance, in proper format, lists the 
appropriation authority for each fund of the City.  Future appropriation requests which propose a change 
in the adopted authority at the fund level will be evidenced and presented to City Council as a budget 
amendment.

The attached Ordinance No. 1705 is in draft form.  Any adjusting updates occurring between the agenda 
packet preparation date and December 2 will be included in a revised ordinance copy.

DISCUSSION
None

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

 9.

84



PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
The nature and detail of the General Fund budget and its related departments was discussed at the 
November 19, 2014 City Council workshop.

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Hold a public hearing.
2) Adopt Ordinance #1705

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Ordinance No. 1705

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
The nature and detail of the General Fund budget and its related departments was discussed at the 
November 19, 2014 City Council workshop.

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Hold a public hearing.
2) Adopt Ordinance #1705

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Ordinance No. 1705

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

85



2015–2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance 

ORDINANCE NO. 1705 

AN ORDINANCE TO ENCUMBER RESOURCES AND TO ESTABLISH EXPENDITURE 

AUTHORITY THROUGH THE ADOPTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 2015-2016 BIENNIAL 

BUDGET. 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has elected to utilize a biennial budget as provided in RCW 35A.34.040; 

and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held August 6, 2014 regarding revenue sources for the 2015-2016 biennial 

period, including consideration of possible increases in property tax revenues as required by RCW 84.55.120; 

and  

WHEREAS, budget estimates from each department of City government were provided to the City Clerk as 

required by RCW 35A.34.050 setting forth the complete financial program of the City for the ensuing fiscal 

biennium; and 

 WHEREAS, a proposed preliminary budget was prepared setting out the complete financial program of the City 

for the ensuing fiscal biennium as required by RCW 35A.34.070; and 

WHEREAS, the preliminary budget was prepared in detail on November 1, 2014, making revisions or additions 

to the reports of the department heads and is made available to the public at least six weeks prior to the City’s 

new fiscal biennium, beginning January 1, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has published notice of a final public hearing on the final 2015-2016 biennial 

budget in the Whidbey News Times on November 22 and November 29, 2014; and, 

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor City Council held the final public hearing at the December 2, 2014 City Council 

meeting to receive discussion and input from the public; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor desires to set forth and establish expenditure authority for the purpose of 

continuing operations for the biennial period commencing January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do hereby ordain as 

follows: 

Section 1:  The 2015-2016 Biennial Budget as presented at the December 2, 2014 public hearing is hereby 

adopted as the revenue and expenditure authority for years 2015-2016 for the City of Oak Harbor.  The City 

Clerk is instructed to file the same with the minutes of this meeting.  Set forth in summary form are the totals of 

the estimated revenues and encumbrances for each separate fund and the aggregate totals for all such funds 

combined: 

86



2015–2016 Biennial Budget Ordinance 

2015 2016

Fund Listing: Budget Budget

Fund: 001   CURRENT EXPENSE 16,398,675         16,403,918 

Fund: 002   CURRENT EXPENSE RESERVES 3,864,506 4,150,094 

Fund: 003   CURRENT EXP - DISCOVERY 15,000 15,000 

Fund: 005   CURRENT EXP - SEIZURE 10,000 10,000 

Fund: 006   WHIDBEYISLAND MARATHON 127,628 132,972 

Fund: 101   STREETS 1,998,836 1,869,735 

Fund: 104   ARTERIALS 943,087 838,898 

Fund: 105   TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL IMPROVE 1,123,591 1,165,559 

Fund: 106   PATHS & TRAILS 1/2 OF 1% MVFT 29,037 26,459 

Fund: 115   ART ACQUISITION & MAINTENANCE 48,923 19,023 

Fund: 116   CIVIC IMPROVEMENT (2%) 801,172 722,072 

Fund: 125   PARK IMPROV-NEIGHBORHOOD PARKS 99,154 99,404 

Fund: 126   PARK IMPROV COMMUNITY PARKS 274,488 275,138 

Fund: 127   PARK IMPACT FEE 60,250 121,500 

Fund: 129   SENIOR CENTER 442,154 485,940 

Fund: 311   CUM RESERVE (M) 1ST 1/4% REET 1,174,364 1,319,914 

Fund: 312   CUM RESERVE MCI 2ND 1/4% REET 584,226 759,776 

Fund: 320   CONSTRUCTION - DOCK PROJECT 167,814 167,814 

Fund: 325   WATERFRONT REDEVELOPMENT FUND 504,499 425,849 

Fund: 401   WATER 8,078,122 9,649,368 

Fund: 402   SEWER 67,737,926         67,397,128 

Fund: 403   SOLID WASTE 5,804,123 6,083,560 

Fund: 404   STORM DRAIN 1,913,214 2,120,915 

Fund: 410   MARINA 1,718,409 1,662,474 

Fund: 411   CUMULATIVE RESERVE WATER 2,768,571 2,982,071 

Fund: 412   CUMULATIVE RESERVE SEWER 5,285,732 5,406,232 

Fund: 413   CUMULATIVE RESERVE - SOLID WASTE 116,796 117,106 

Fund: 414   CUMULATIVE RESERVE STORM DRAIN 416,105 416,605 

Fund: 420   CUMULATIVE RESERVE MARINA 8,530 8,730 

Fund: 501   EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,262,729 1,181,886 

Fund: 502   EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 9,144,094 9,159,850 

Fund: 510   SHOP FACILITY 3,177,331 2,854,142 

136,099,086       138,049,131 

Section 2:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect on January 1, 2015, at least five days after passage and upon legal 

publication. 

PASSED and approved by the City Council this 2nd day of December, 2014. 

CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, Esq., City Clerk Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Introduction: 

Adopted: 

Published: 

87



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1708: 2014 
Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments and 2015-2020 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents the 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) to the City Council.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Approval of the 2015-2020 CIP will not by itself create any fiscal impact.  However, construction of the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Ordinance 1708: 2014 
Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments and 2015-2020 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill presents the 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) to the City Council.

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Approval of the 2015-2020 CIP will not by itself create any fiscal impact.  However, construction of the Approval of the 2015-2020 CIP will not by itself create any fiscal impact.  However, construction of the 
proposed projects will require the expenditure of public funds.  It is important to note that approval of the 
CIP is timed to occur with approval of the 2015-2016 Budget and that the first two years of projects in
the CIP are included in the budget.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The Growth Management Act requires each community to have a capital facilities element to its 
comprehensive plan.  The specific requirements for this element are found at RCW 36.70A.070(3). To 
be GMA compliant the capital facilities element must identify the infrastructure and other capital projects 
necessary to support the community’s growth, when the projects are required and how they will be 
funded.  The capital facilities element, and its related terms, covers two different planning horizons.

The term capital facilities plan (CFP) is typically used to refer to the twenty year planning horizon while 
the term capital improvements plan (CIP) is typically used to refer to the six year planning horizon.  An 
important distinction between the two plans is that funding sources must be identified for the CIP while 
they are not required for the CFP.  The draft 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan meets the 
requirements for both the six and 20 year planning horizons.  The draft 2015-2020 Capital Improvements 
Plan is attached to this agenda bill as Attachment 1.

For the purposes of Oak Harbor’s CIP a capital facility is defined asany new public facility or public 
improvement of the City costing $50,000 or more, (including financing, design, permitting, environmental

Approval of the 2015-2020 CIP will not by itself create any fiscal impact.  However, construction of the 
proposed projects will require the expenditure of public funds.  It is important to note that approval of the 
CIP is timed to occur with approval of the 2015-2016 Budget and that the first two years of projects in 
the CIP are included in the budget.

SUMMARY STATEMENT
The Growth Management Act requires each community to have a capital facilities element to its 
comprehensive plan.  The specific requirements for this element are found at RCW 36.70A.070(3). To 
be GMA compliant the capital facilities element must identify the infrastructure and other capital projects 
necessary to support the community’s growth, when the projects are required and how they will be 
funded.  The capital facilities element, and its related terms, covers two different planning horizons.

The term capital facilities plan (CFP) is typically used to refer to the twenty year planning horizon while 
the term capital improvements plan (CIP) is typically used to refer to the six year planning horizon.  An 
important distinction between the two plans is that funding sources must be identified for the CIP while 
they are not required for the CFP.  The draft 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan meets the 
requirements for both the six and 20 year planning horizons.  The draft 2015-2020 Capital Improvements 
Plan is attached to this agenda bill as Attachment 1.

For the purposes of Oak Harbor’s CIP a capital facility is defined asany new public facility or public 
improvement of the City costing $50,000 or more, (including financing, design, permitting, environmental 

9.

88



analysis, land acquisition and construction costs) requiring the expenditure of public funds over and above 
annual operational expenses and having a life expectancy of more than twenty (20) years.
 
The CIP includes projects for the following types of facilities: streets, parks, wastewater, water, 
stormwater, general government, and the marina.  The projects identified in the CIP typically were first 
identified in the individual facility’s comprehensive plan (e.g. the Sewer Comprehensive Plan determines 
the needed sewer projects).  The timing and sequencing of necessary projects are also determined by the 
facility’s comprehensive plan.  Some facilities such as water, sewer, stormwater and marina are funded by 
enterprise funds (those that have user fees).  Other facilities such as streets, parks and general 
government are non-enterprise funds (those that rely on general tax or unrestricted revenues). 
 
The draft document is a revision to the existing CIP.  The document is significantly shorter in length than 
the previous version as a concerted effort was made to simplify the type of information and manner in 
which it is presented.  The CIP from 2006 through 2013 included a lengthy section devoted to a 2006 
effort to prioritize a list of significant projects (e.g. Marina Redevelopment, Municipal Pier, Special Events 
Center, etc.).  The City Council recently completed a re-prioritization of these projects and the results of 
that effort are incorporated in the draft as appropriate. 
 
Since the CIP is part of the Comprehensive Plan, revising it is also an amendment to that document.  In 
order for an amendment to be approved, the criteria found at Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 
18.15.080 must be satisfied.  Staff’s analysis of the draft CIP against those criteria was presented to the 
Planning Commission on October 28, 2014 (please see staff report from that meeting).  Approval of the 
CIP is accomplished through the adoption of an ordinance.  A draft ordinance is attached for the City 
Council’s consideration (Attachment 2).

DISCUSSION

analysis, land acquisition and construction costs) requiring the expenditure of public funds over and above 
annual operational expenses and having a life expectancy of more than twenty (20) years.
 
The CIP includes projects for the following types of facilities: streets, parks, wastewater, water, 
stormwater, general government, and the marina.  The projects identified in the CIP typically were first 
identified in the individual facility’s comprehensive plan (e.g. the Sewer Comprehensive Plan determines 
the needed sewer projects).  The timing and sequencing of necessary projects are also determined by the 
facility’s comprehensive plan.  Some facilities such as water, sewer, stormwater and marina are funded by 
enterprise funds (those that have user fees).  Other facilities such as streets, parks and general 
government are non-enterprise funds (those that rely on general tax or unrestricted revenues). 
 
The draft document is a revision to the existing CIP.  The document is significantly shorter in length than 
the previous version as a concerted effort was made to simplify the type of information and manner in 
which it is presented.  The CIP from 2006 through 2013 included a lengthy section devoted to a 2006 
effort to prioritize a list of significant projects (e.g. Marina Redevelopment, Municipal Pier, Special Events 
Center, etc.).  The City Council recently completed a re-prioritization of these projects and the results of 
that effort are incorporated in the draft as appropriate. 
 
Since the CIP is part of the Comprehensive Plan, revising it is also an amendment to that document.  In 
order for an amendment to be approved, the criteria found at Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 
18.15.080 must be satisfied.  Staff’s analysis of the draft CIP against those criteria was presented to the 
Planning Commission on October 28, 2014 (please see staff report from that meeting).  Approval of the 
CIP is accomplished through the adoption of an ordinance.  A draft ordinance is attached for the City 
Council’s consideration (Attachment 2).

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW
The Planning Commission was briefed on the 2015-2020 CIP at their September 23, 2014 meeting.  
This was followed by a public hearing on the draft at their October 28, 2014 meeting.  At the conclusion 
of the hearing the Commission forwarded a recommendation of approval to the City Council.  The staff 
reports and minutes from those two meetings are attached to this agenda bill as Attachments 3 and 4, 
respectively. 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

The City Council was briefed on and discussed various aspects of the CIP at their August 6th, August 
27th, October 22nd and November 19th workshops.

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1708 approving the 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan.

ATTACHMENTS

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW
The Planning Commission was briefed on the 2015-2020 CIP at their September 23, 2014 meeting.  
This was followed by a public hearing on the draft at their October 28, 2014 meeting.  At the conclusion 
of the hearing the Commission forwarded a recommendation of approval to the City Council.  The staff 
reports and minutes from those two meetings are attached to this agenda bill as Attachments 3 and 4, 
respectively. 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

The City Council was briefed on and discussed various aspects of the CIP at their August 6th, August 
27th, October 22nd and November 19th workshops.

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1708 approving the 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan.

ATTACHMENTS

89



1. 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan
2. Ordinance No. 1708
3. Planning Commission report (w/o attachments) and minutes from September 17, 2014
4. Planning Commission report (w/o attachments) and minutes from October 28, 2014

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

1. 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan
2. Ordinance No. 1708
3. Planning Commission report (w/o attachments) and minutes from September 17, 2014
4. Planning Commission report (w/o attachments) and minutes from October 28, 2014

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

90



FINAL DRAFT 

City of Oak Harbor 

Capital Improvements Plan 
2015-2020 
P:\CIP\2015 CFP-CIP\Draft\2015-2020 FINAL Draft CIP clean 10-08-14.docx 

91



 

  

92



 

Table of Contents 

 

Section  One  • Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 1 

Section  Two  • The Planning Context ........................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Section  Three  • Existing Capital Facilities .............................................................................................................................................................. 12 

Section  Four  • Future Capital Facility Needs .......................................................................................................................................................... 20 

Section Five - Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections ............................................................................................................................. 36 

Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities ........................................................................................................................................................ 45 

Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation .......................................................................................... 53 

Appendix C  •  Maps ................................................................................................................................................................................................. 63 

 

93



List of Tables 

 

Table 4-1.  Level of Service Standards ...................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

Table 4.2.  City of Oak Harbor Population Projections ............................................................................................................................................. 22 

Table 5.4  Schedule of Limitation of Indebtedness, December 2012 ........................................................................................................................ 42 

Table 5.5  Schedule of Limitation of Indebtedness: As of 12/31/2013...................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Table A.1.  2007 Level of Service Standards for Traffic ........................................................................................................................................... 45 

Table A.2.  Distribution System ................................................................................................................................................................................ 47 

Table A.3.  Pump List ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 47 

Table A.4.  Distribution System ................................................................................................................................................................................ 48 

Table A.5.  Source and Pump Station List ................................................................................................................................................................. 48 

Table A.7.  Distribution System ................................................................................................................................................................................ 49 

Table A.8.  Capital Assets Inventory ......................................................................................................................................................................... 50 

 

List of Illustrations 

Map 1.  City of Oak Harbor Boundaries .................................................................................................................................................................... 63 

Map 2.  City of Oak Harbor Street Classification ...................................................................................................................................................... 64 

Map 3.  City of Oak Harbor Parks Inventory ............................................................................................................................................................. 65 

Map 4.  City of Oak Harbor Public Facilities Inventory ............................................................................................................................................ 66 

Map 5.  Existing Wastewater Collection System, City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Sewer Plan ......................................................................... 67 

Map 6.  Existing Stormwater System ........................................................................................................................................................................ 68 

94



Map 7.  Existing Water System ................................................................................................................................................................................ 69 

 

 

95



96



Section One  •  Introduction 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  1 

Section  One  •  Introduction 

The Capital Improvement Plan  

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a document covering a six-year period that identifies capital projects being proposed by 

the City during the planning term.
1
  The CIP provides a planning schedule and provides options for financing the plan.  The CIP 

provides a link between the various city department projects and the annual budget. 

For the purposes of the CIP, a capital facility shall mean any facility owned or maintained by the City costing $50,000 or more, 

requiring the expenditure of public funds over and above annual maintenance and operational expenses, and having a life 

expectancy of 20 years or more. 

In addition to planning for the acquisition of new capital facilities, the CIP assists the City in identifying what capital 

maintenance projects are to be funded.  For the purposes of the CIP, capital maintenance shall mean any maintenance or 

upkeep expense to an existing capital facility requiring the expense of public funds in excess of $50,000 and extending the useful 
life of the facility for 10 years or more. 

The City of Oak Harbor has identified the period 2015-2020 as the planning term for this CIP.  The CIP should not be confused 

with the capital budget.  The capital budget represents the first year of the CIP and in the case of this document, is the 

2015/2016 biennium City budget.  The projects identified in subsequent years of the CIP are not authorized until the biennium 

budget for those years is adopted.  

The Requirement to Plan 

The State Growth Management Act (GMA) of 1990 requires that communities adopt CIPs as part of their comprehensive plans.  

The intent of this CIP is to comply with the Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A.070 (3) and WAC 365-195-315).  It is also 

intended to meet the concurrency requirements of RCW 36.70A.020 (12) and (13), WAC 365-195-210. 

                                                        

1
 Planning term—The planning horizon for the CIP is 6 years with the first year of the planning term being the capital budget for that year. 

97



Section One  •  Introduction 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  2 

Benefits of Capital Improvement Planning 

The Capital Improvements Plan serves a number of important functions.  The Government Finance Officers’ Association 

identifies four major purposes
2
.  They are to: 

1. Create a formal mechanism for decision making.  A basic function of the CIP is to provide a framework for decision 

makers.  Decisions about what to buy, when to buy it and how to pay for it can all be answered by a comprehensive CIP. 

2. Provide a link to long range plans.  The CIP guides the implementation of the community’s comprehensive plan, sub area 

plans and strategies. 

3. Serve as an important management tool.  A major organizational purpose is served by the CIP providing a mechanism to 

help prioritize capital projects and match projects with existing funding options. 

4. Function as a reporting document.  A CIP communicates to citizens, businesses, and other interested parties the 

government’s capital priorities and plans for implementing capital projects. 

 

There are numerous benefits of a CIP.  Benefits include: 

 Focused attention on community goals, needs, and financial capability.  It encourages decision makers and the public to 

connect future plans and the actions needed to achieve them. 

 Building public consensus for projects and improves community awareness.  The process elevates public awareness of the 

needs and financial resources of the community. 

 Improved inter-/intra governmental cooperation.  A CIP enhances coordination between departments and agencies thereby 

reducing conflicts and overlapping projects. 

 Assistance in  ensuring financial stability.   Capital projects are prioritized and scheduled to fit within expected funding 

levels, thereby limiting the need for dramatic tax increases or unanticipated bond issues in any one year. 

Determining What is Included in the CIP 

The process to determine need for new capital facilities is rather straightforward.  Most facility needs are easy to determine as 

they are based on the principle of maintaining or meeting technically derived service standards.  Levels of Service (LOS) 

standards are established by a technical based measure, e.g. water flow levels to serve a certain population or park space needed 

per one thousand citizens.  Capital needs are also derived from special plans and strategies developed for a special purpose.  For 

example, the Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan and the Windjammer Plan have identified capital needs that are necessary 

to meet specific goals identified and discussed by the public and adopted by the City Council in that specific planning process.  

The needs identified by the processes mentioned above are divided into two basic categories for further review, comparison and 

consideration.  These categories, based on revenue source, are: 

                                                        

2 Major elements of the introduction material for this plan have been taken from Capital Improvement Programming, A Guide for Smaller Governments,  

Patricia Tigue, Government Finance Officers’ Association, 1995. 

98



Section One  •  Introduction 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  3 

 Enterprise Fund Capital Facility Needs.  Enterprise funds are identified as those functions (departments) that derive their 

revenues from user fees or charges.  Capital needs for these functions are identified in this document but are not prioritized, 

as their funding requirements are mostly met by user fees. 

 Non-Enterprise Fund Capital Facility Needs.  Non-enterprise funded activities are, for the most part, dependent on General 

Fund revenues, special assessments; grants and other inter-governmental transfers.  Streets, parks, public safety, general 

administration and special projects all must compete for these revenues. 

Capital Facilities Not Provided by the City 

The GMA also requires jurisdictions to plan or coordinate with the responsible authorities for schools and solid waste collection 

and disposal.  This plan, in addition to these requirements, will report the capital needs of the Oak Harbor School District 201, 

Sno-Isle Library District, North Whidbey Parks District and Island Transit. 

Summary 

This document is designed to answer several questions for the community, professional managers, and elected decision makers.  

They are, quite simply: 

 What do we have? 

 What do we need? 

 When do we need it? 

 How do we pay for it? 

 

 

99



Section Two  •  The Planning Context 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  4 

 

Section  Two  •  The Planning Context 

Capital facilities planning does not take place in a vacuum.  Plans and strategies that are developed with extensive community 

involvement set the framework for the decisions necessary to guide the City’s economic, social and cultural evolution.  The result of 

this community effort in Oak Harbor is contained in three basic areas of work: 

 The Comprehensive Plan 

 Sub area and functional area plans  

 The Comprehensive Financial Management Policy 

These documents have provided the framework for the CIP detailed in this document.  These three critical guides are discussed 

below. 

The Comprehensive Plan 

Everyone plans all of the time. Families make financial plans, plan for vacations or plan for their children’s’ college education.  

Planning allows a look into the future, a decision on what the future should look like, and then an identification of the actions 

that will make that future come to pass. 

A Comprehensive Plan is a community’s vision for its future.  The plan details what citizens want the community to look like, 

where streets and roads should go, how much park and open space should be provided and where growth should occur.  Without 

a living, active and well used plan, community health and well-being would be in serious jeopardy.  The Comprehensive Plan 

should also be a tool for helping government officials to think strategically about all aspects of the community and the way 

these elements interact.  Without a clear picture of community wants and needs, decision-makers may not make choices that are 

in the best interests of its citizens.  Comprehensive planning should also be a community development process that initiates 

action rather than simply reacting to events.  A comprehensive plan without an implementation strategy is limited in its 

effectiveness. 

The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) of 1990 requires that the City of Oak Harbor prepare and maintain a 

comprehensive plan capital facility element.  This element is required “in order to assure that public facilities will be reasonably 

available to accommodate planned growth over the next twenty years.”  This requirement is referred to as concurrency and 

specifically means: 

 Public facilities that are needed to serve new development and population within a jurisdiction or service area must be in 

place at the time of development. 

 Such facilities must be sized to adequately serve the area without decreasing the services levels established by the 

jurisdiction.   

100



Section Two  •  The Planning Context 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  5 

 

The GMA identified the following goals to be obtained by local comprehensive planning efforts: 

 Focus urban growth in urban areas 

 Reduce sprawl 

 Provide efficient transportation 

 Encourage affordable housing 

 Encourage sustainable economic development 

 Protect property rights 

 Process permits in a timely manner 

 Maintain and enhance natural resource based industries 

 Retain open space and habitat areas and develop recreation 

opportunities 

 Protect the environment 

 Encourage citizen participation and regional coordination 

 Preserve important historic resources 

 Manage shorelines wisely 

 

The GMA also requires that the comprehensive plan be of at least a twenty year planning horizon and be based on population 

projections supplied by the state Office of Financial Management (OFM).  Comprehensive plans must contain, at a minimum, 

these elements: 

 A capital facilities element, with a six-year plan for financing identified capital needs.  

 A land use element.  

 A housing element.  

 A utilities element.  

 A transportation element.  

 An economic development element.  

 A parks and recreation element.  

 

WAC 365.195.315 requires that the capital facilities plan address the following: 

 An inventory of existing capital facilities owned by public entities, showing the locations and capacities of the capital 

facilities; 

 At least a six year plan that will finance such capital facilities, within project funding capacities and clearly identifies 

sources of public money for such purposes; 

 If a jurisdiction is unable to provide or finance capital facilities in a manner that meets concurrency and level-of-service 

requirements, it must either: (a) adopt and enforce ordinances which prohibit approval of proposed development if such 

development would cause levels-of-service to decline below locally established standards, or (b) lower established standards 

for levels-of-service.  

 

101



Section Two  •  The Planning Context 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  6 

In addition, GMA requires that comprehensive plans be put into action through zoning and development regulations. 

The City last conducted a major update to its comprehensive plan in November of 2005 in response to a state mandate.  The 

update consisted of a complete review of the land use, economic development, urban growth transportation, environmental 

elements and capital facilities elements.  The comprehensive plan identifies the following goals and policies
3
 for the 

development and location of capital facilities in Oak Harbor and serves as a general guide for the creation of this document. 

Goal 1 

Provide adequate capital facilities and services necessary to serve Oak Harbor's existing and future population without 

causing decreased service levels below adopted LOS
4
 standards. 

Policy 

a. Predict facility needs for the next 20 years based on projections of anticipated population and business growth. 

b. Prepare phased plans to identify needed public facilities to support existing and future growth projected in policy 1.a. 

c. Coordinate with other jurisdictions to establish priorities of county-wide facility improvements, identify services needed to 

achieve adopted service levels, and protect public health, safety and the environment. 

d. Review growth projections and capital facilities plans annually congruent with the City budget process to ensure that the 

City's ability to provide and maintain adequate public facilities and services is consistent with growth. 

e. Phase the development of capital facilities to ensure sufficient lead-time financing, planning, and construction to provide the 

facilities when needed. 

f. Coordinate land use and public works planning activities with an ongoing program of long-range financial planning to 

conserve fiscal resources. 

g. Support and encourage joint development and use of cultural and community facilities among governmental and/or 

community organizations. 

h. Approve development only when the LOS for a capital facility is assured to meet the standards set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  Limited short term reduction in LOS is acceptable when a capital improvement or strategy to 

accommodate the impacts is made concurrent with development. 

i. The City will cooperate with private developers to address Capital Improvements financing programs when necessary. 

 

                                                        

3 For a complete understanding of the goals and policies see the City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan, December 2012, Capital Facilities Element, page 154. 
4 For a complete discussion of Level of Service (LOS), see Section Four. 

102



Section Two  •  The Planning Context 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  7 

Goal 2 

Implement capital facilities projects in accordance with the funding policy priorities of Oak Harbor. 

Policy 

a. Program and prioritize City capital improvements for consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.  The City's capital 

improvement funding priorities should be: 

 Urgent projects which cannot reasonably be postponed including, but not limited to, those reconstructions, upgrading or 

new construction projects which are needed to protect public health, safety and welfare. 

 Reconstruction, major maintenance or expansion of the City's existing infrastructure in order to provide for service to the 

existing community. 

 New projects where the need or demand for service already exists. 

 Expansion projects in partially developed or developing areas where demand is anticipated as a result of, or in 

preparation for, future growth. 

b. Evaluate capital projects that are included in the Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan for consistency with the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

c. Coordinate with the Navy, Island County, and other applicable agencies during planning stage for timely siting and 

development of facilities of regional significance to ensure the consistency of each jurisdiction's plans. 

d. Locate only compatible public facilities in designated resource lands or critical areas. 

e. Promote high quality design and site planning in the construction of capital facilities. 

f. Encourage citizen involvement in the planning and locating of capital facilities. 

g.  Ensure that all City departments review changes to the Capital Facilities Plan and participate in an annual review. 

 

103



Section Two  •  The Planning Context 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  8 

Goal 3 

Finance Oak Harbor's needed capital facilities in the most economic, efficient, and equitable manner possible. 

Policy 

a. Ensure that the burden of financing capital improvements is equitably borne by the primary beneficiaries of the facility. 

b. Use general revenue only to fund projects that provide a general benefit to the entire community. 

c. Determine which services or facilities are delivered most cost-effectively by the City and which services should be 

contracted to private entities. 

d. Where appropriate, use special assessment, revenue and other self-supporting bonds instead of tax-supported general 

obligation bonds. 

e. Consider adopting impact fees when appropriate to mitigate the short-term fiscal impacts of increased development. 

 

Goal 4 

Provide a full range of cost-effective urban governmental services to residents within the Oak Harbor City boundaries 

and the Urban Growth Area as annexed. 

Policy 

a. Monitor annually school, fire, police, waste disposal, utilities and other capital facilities to ensure existing and future needs 

are met. 

b. Require development proposals to be reviewed for available capacity to accommodate development and needed system 

improvements by the various providers of services, such as school districts, utilities, police and fire departments. 

c. Encourage joint-use of corridors for major utilities, trails, and transportation rights-of-way.  (See Utilities Element). 

Related Plans 

Each chapter of the Comprehensive Plan contains goals and policy statements.  These goals and policy statements serve as the 

guiding principles of all City actions.  Actions taken by the City should always have a comprehensive plan implementation 

rationale.  Water Department plans would be based on the implementation of comprehensive plan goals and policies, for 

example, as would the other department and division actions. 

104



Section Two  •  The Planning Context 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  9 

Often though, these administrative sub-units of the City develop additional plans that complement the comprehensive plan by 

providing much more detail and specificity.  The following subarea plans and strategies were also used to guide the selection of 

new capital facilities in this plan; 

 The City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Water System Plan, 2014 

 The City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Sewer System Plan, 2008 

 The City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Stormwater Drainage Plan 2006 

 The City of Oak Harbor Park, Recreation and Open Space Plan, 2009 

 The Windjammer Project Plan, 2005 

 Shoreline Master Program, 2012 

 The City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Transportation Plan, 2007 

 The Six Year Traffic Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 

 The Marina Redevelopment Program, 2006 

The Comprehensive Financial Management Policy 

The Comprehensive Financial Management Policy was adopted by the Oak Harbor City Council in December 2004.  The 

purpose of the policy was to recognize that the “financial strategy of the City of Oak Harbor is to develop a sound financial 

resource base for the purpose of ensuring public safety, maintaining the physical infrastructure and surroundings of the City, 

and promoting the social well-being of the citizens of Oak Harbor.”  This policy provided helpful direction in preparing this 

CIP. The key elements from that policy are. 

General Revenue Policies 

a. A well-diversified and stable revenue system will be maintained to shelter public services from short-run fluctuations in any 

particular revenue source.  Revenue estimates will be as realistic as possible based on the best available information. 

b. Revenue forecasts will encompass all resources that can be utilized for public services.   

c. Revenues of a one-time, limited or indefinite term will be used for capital projects or one-time operating expenditures to 

ensure that no ongoing service program is lost when such revenues are reduced or discontinued. 

d. The City will project revenues for the next three years and will update this projection annually.   

e. The City will not utilize deficit financing or short-term borrowing as a revenue source to finance current operating needs 

without full financial analysis and prior approval of the City Council.  Interfund loans are permissible to cover temporary 

gaps in cash flow.  

Grant Revenues 

a. All potential grants shall be carefully examined for matching requirements.  If local matching funds are not available, some 

grants may not be accepted.  Grants may also be rejected if programs must be entirely funded with local resources after the 

grant program is completed. 

105



Section Two  •  The Planning Context 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  10 

b. When considering grants for the purposes of capital construction or other projects of an acquisition nature, an analysis will 

be made of the City’s ongoing ability to maintain, repair, or commit the facilities to a specific economic purpose. 

Enterprise Revenues 

a. To ensure that the enterprise funds remain self-supporting, user fees and rate structures will be incorporated to support the 

total direct and indirect costs of operations, capital facilities maintenance, debt service, depreciation, and pass-through rate 

increases from source of supply vendors.  

b. Revenues received for enterprise purposes will be restricted to the respective funds. 

User Fee Revenues 

a. The City will establish all user fees and charges at a level related to the cost of providing the service.  

b. As much as is reasonably possible, authorized City services that provide direct benefit to a specific group, organization, or 

citizen should be supported by fees and charges to recover the costs of providing such benefit.  

General Expenditure Policies 

a. A high level of priority will be given to expenditures that will reduce future operating costs, such as increased utilization of 

technology, equipment, personnel, and prudent business methods. 

b. Before the City undertakes any agreements that would create fixed ongoing expenses, the cost implications of such 

agreements will be fully determined for current and future years through the use of strategic financial planning models. 

Short-Term Debt Policies  

a. Short-term debt covers a period of one year or less. 

b. The City may use short-term debt to cover temporary cash flow shortages that may be caused by a delay in receipting tax 

revenues or issuing long-term debt. 

c. The City may issue interfund loans rather than outside debt instruments to meet short-term cash flow needs. Interfund loans 

will be permitted. 

Long-Term Debt Policies  

a. The City will confine long-term borrowing to capital improvements that cannot be financed from current revenues. 

b. Acceptable uses of bond proceeds can be viewed as items that can be capitalized and depreciated. 

c. Where possible, the City will use special assessment revenue, or other self-supporting bonds instead of general obligation 

bonds. 

d. The City will not use long-term debt for current operations. 

General Obligation Bond Policy  

a. Every project proposed for financing through general obligation debt should be accompanied by a full analysis of the future 

operating and maintenance costs associated with the project. 

106



Section Two  •  The Planning Context 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  11 

b. Bonds cannot be issued for a longer maturity schedule than a conservative estimate of the useful life of the asset to be 

financed. 

Limited Tax General Obligation Bond Policies  

a. As a precondition to the issuance of limited tax general obligation bonds, all alternative methods of financing should have 

been exhausted. 

b. Limited tax general obligation bonds should only be issued under the following conditions: 

 A project in progress requires monies not available from alternative sources, 

 Matching fund monies are available which may be lost if not applied for in a timely manner, or 

 Catastrophic conditions. 

Summary 

The Comprehensive Plan and related sub-area and sub-unit plans detail the  general and specific direction for community 

development in Oak Harbor.  The CIP identifies what physical developments need to take place, where they are needed and how 

they will be paid for by the community.  None of these actions can be undertaken separately without significant negative 

impact.  The Capital Improvement Plan that follows represent the City of Oak Harbor’s first for planning and coordinating the 

needed public capital investment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

107



Section Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  12 

 

Section  Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor owns and operates a wide array of capital facilities and performs a variety of services.  Capital facilities 

are required to provide adequate service to the citizens of the community. 

In addition to the City, a number of other governmental agencies build and manage capital facilities as well.  The school district 

for example, owns and operates a large capital plant as does the library district and transit system.  While the City does not 

manage any of these capital facilities, the City does have responsibility under the Growth Management Act to ensure that the 

planning for these facilities takes place and that provision for the facilities necessary for the orderly growth of the community is 

considered by the responsible agency. 

City services are divided into two general categories based on the origin of their operation and maintenance revenue, as 

explained in Section Two.  In order to maintain consistency, City assets are grouped below into these two categories.  The 

following is a summary of each City service.  Detailed information on existing capital facilities will be found in Appendix A. 

Non-Enterprise Funded Activities-Capital Facilities 

Streets and Roads 

A detailed description of Oak Harbor’s existing street and road system is discussed within the GMA Transportation Element of 

the City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan.  As of year-end 2013 there were 68.81 miles of public streets in Oak Harbor.  

Within the City of Oak Harbor, SR 20 is the only principal arterial.  Minor arterials include:   

 Bayshore Drive; City Beach Street to Midway Blvd 

 Ft. Nugent Road; Swantown Avenue to City Limits 

 Whidbey Ave.; Heller Rd to SE Regatta Drive 

 NE 16
th
 Avenue; Goldie Street to SE Regatta Drive  

 Heller Street; Swantown Road to north City limits  

 Midway Boulevard; Pioneer Way to SR 20 

 Goldie Street; SR 20 to north City limits 

 SE Regatta Drive; E Pioneer Way to north City limits. 

 

108



Section Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  13 

Collector arterials include:   

 NW Crosby Road 

 Oak Harbor Street 

 NE 7
th
 Avenue 

 Loerland Drive 

 SE 8
th
 Street 

 Barrington Drive 

 Erie Street 

 Scenic Heights  Street 

 

Most other streets in Oak Harbor are classed as local access roads.  For a graphic representation of the street system, see 

Appendix G. 

Parks and Recreation 

A detailed description of the City's parks and recreation system is contained in the 2009 City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive 

Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan and is only summarized here.  North Whidbey Island has a system of parks and open 

areas that include approximately 2,000 acres.  The City of Oak Harbor has 25 parks on 124 acres of developed land, has 

approximately 73 acres of open space and owns over 196 acres providing recreational opportunities such as walking trails, 

picnic areas, athletic fields, playgrounds, shorelines and a marina.  For a graphic representation of the Parks system assets, see 

Appendix G. 

The Oak Harbor School District No. 201 owns approximately 85 acres of playgrounds and athletic fields, and Naval Air Station 

Whidbey Island manages 207 acres of park and athletic fields for use by Navy personnel, dependents and retirees.  Island 

County and Washington State Parks also have extensive park systems on North Whidbey Island, which are available to serve 

Oak Harbor residents. 

Fire Protection and Suppression 

The Oak Harbor Fire Department provides fire suppression, fire and life safety inspections, fire investigation, emergency 

medical services and other public education programs for the City of Oak Harbor.  There are 10 full time employees, 40 paid 

on-call personnel, and 1 volunteer.  The department responded to 1,112 incidents in 2013; approximately 6% were fires, 

48% medical, 14% service calls and 19% false alarms.   

The department is currently housed in a 21,000-sq. ft. building located at the intersection of East Whidbey Avenue and 

Northeast Izett Street. The facility houses apparatus, administrative offices, training facilities, meeting rooms, an emergency 

operations center and personnel quarters.  The department enjoys a Class 4 rating from the Washington Survey and Rating 

Bureau. Ratings range from one to ten, with one representing the best score. These ratings evaluate available water supply, fire 

department staffing and equipment, fire alarm system, fire protection program, building department enforcement of building 

laws and structural conditions of buildings. 

109



Section Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  14 

Law Enforcement 

Law enforcement services within the City of Oak Harbor are provided by the Oak Harbor Police Department.  While never 

signed, the Police Department and Navy Security have operated under a memorandum of understanding drafted in 1993, which 

determines the range of service available to the NAS Whidbey Seaplane Base.  The Oak Harbor Police Station is located at 860 

S.E. Barrington Dr. across from City Hall and consists of approximately 12,000 gross sq. ft., of which 1,250 sq. ft. is a 30-day 

jail holding facility. 

In 2006, the Police Department maintained a staffing level of approximately 1.41 commissioned law enforcement officers for 

every 1,000 persons living in the City.  The national average is 2.30 officers per 1,000 citizens, with the State average of 1.65 

officers per 1000 citizens. 

Senior Services 

Oak Harbor Senior Services serves a fast growing population of citizens of Oak Harbor and North Whidbey Island who are age 

50 and over. Senior Services is dedicated to improving quality of life, fostering community partnerships, responding to diverse 

needs and interests, enhancing dignity, supporting independence and encouraging local older adults to be involved in the 

community. There are three employees (one full time/two .875 FTE) and over 40 active volunteers involved in managing: over 

40 activity/support groups; meals on wheels/meal services (over 20,000 meals/yr); a travel program (local, national, 

international trips); passport processing (900-1000 applications/yr); an information & assistance office; health insurance 

counseling as well as dozens of informational/special activity events throughout the year.  

Senior Services operates out of three facilities: Senior Center building (6300 sq.ft.) at 51 SE Jerome Street; an adjacent garage 

building (900 sqft) used as a lapidary workshop; and a modular building (2000 sq.ft.) at 917 N. Whidbey Avenue on loan from a 

local non-profit agency (Island Thrift) used for various senior support programs.  

General Governmental Services 

General governmental services in the City of Oak Harbor are provided by the Mayor and City Council, City Administrator, 

Finance Department, City Attorney, Development Service Department and Public Works Department.  These functions provide 

policy, legislative, regulatory and administrative services to the residents of Oak Harbor. Together, these departments have 132 

regular fulltime employees. 

For a graphic representation of the general physical assets of the City, see Appendix G. 

Enterprise Funded Activities—Services/Capital Facilities 

Water 

The City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Water System Plan contains a detailed description of the City's water system.  The Oak 

Harbor water system currently serves about 23,360 people.  As of 2013, the City had 105.85 miles of water lines.  The City's 

water system obtains water supply from the City of Anacortes, supplemented by three Oak Harbor owned wells.  The City 

110



Section Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  15 

currently purchases approximately 99% of its water from Anacortes.  A 20-year agreement with the City of Anacortes provides 

a basis for the City of Oak Harbor to provide water.  Water flows from Anacortes through two City-owned transmission 

pipelines to the City of Oak Harbor.  The 24 inch transmission main is approximately 13 miles long and the 10 inch 

Transmission main is approximately 6 miles long.   

Three City-owned wells have the capacity to produce 160 gallons per minute (gpm), 56 gpm and 160 gpm respectively.  The 

City also operates one major pump station at Ault Field, two booster pump stations at Heller Street and Redwing housing 

development.  Three reservoirs store water for the system; one is a 2 million gallon (mg) tank and the two others are 

approximately .5 mg each.  About 74% of the City's current water demand is residential with the remaining 26% of demand 

being commercial/industrial.  Average daily demand in Oak Harbor's water system is about 1.988 million gallons per day 

(mgd).  In addition to the City's demand, the Whidbey Island Naval Air Station’s (NAS) average daily demand averages about 

0.62 mgd.  The water inter-ties with the NAS Whidbey Island were completed in 1999.  Both the Navy and Oak Harbor view 

these connections as mutually beneficial.  A new 4 million gallon reservoir located off of Gun Club Road is nearing completion. 

The 2014 Water system Plan is nearing final approval which identifies a need for a cross city water main and a regional booster 

pump station to supply fire flow and domestic demands to the East, South and West.  

Sewers 

The City of Oak Harbor’s Comprehensive Sewerage Plan contains a detailed description of the City's sewer system.  The City 

of Oak Harbor sewer collection system is municipally owned, operated and maintained.  The existing system consists of more 

than 67 miles of gravity sewers ranging in size from 8 to 21 inches in diameter.  The system also has 11 lift stations and 

approximately 2.5 miles of force mains and a total of 69.90 miles of sewer lines. 

The City currently operates two wastewater treatment facilities.  The first of these two facilities is the Oak Harbor Wastewater 

Treatment Plant, a secondary treatment plant which uses the rotating biological contactors (RBC) process. This plant is located 

adjacent to Oak Harbor Windjammer Park at approximately City Beach Street and Bayshore Drive. Another secondary 

treatment facility was established in October of 1987 when the City signed a 50-year agreement to operate and maintain the 

sewage lagoons at the NAS. The City owns the facility and leases the land for the facility from the Navy.  The lagoons are 

located on Navy property, northwest of the intersection of Pioneer Way and Torpedo Road, adjacent to Crescent Harbor.  These 

lagoons currently have the capacity to treat approximately 2.5 mgd (average daily flow). 

The City is currently pumping all its wastewater flow from the RBC plant to the lagoons due to the failure of the RBC outfall.  

The City treats an average daily flow of 1.69 mgd of wastewater. 

The City has decided on the Windjammer Park area as the site for the new treatment plant.  The goal is to replace the two aging 

treatment facilities with a new system by 2017. 

Stormwater Detention and Treatment 

A detailed analysis of storm drainage requirements in Oak Harbor are discussed in the Comprehensive Stormwater Drainage 

Plan dated 2006.  This plan describes the existing conditions of the stormwater detention and treatment systems within the City 

111



Section Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  16 

and the requirements for improvements over the next 20 years.  The City currently has approximately 49.96 miles of storm 

sewers in the City.  It maintains 2706 catch basins and manholes and inspects 186 private stormwater detention facilities. 

Solid Waste 

Municipal waste is generated in Oak Harbor at a rate of approximately 10,085 tons per year.   The City of Oak Harbor uses the 

County's transfer station site in Coupeville for disposal of its municipal solid waste.  Within the City limits, 68% of Oak 

Harbor's present population is serviced by the City's solid waste collection and disposal system.   The remainder of the City’s 

population is resident naval personnel and their families on the Seaplane Base, who utilize solid waste disposal services 

provided by the Navy in a service agreement with Island Disposal.  For the non-Navy portion of the population, all operating 

revenues are obtained through collection and container fees. 

Areas outside of the Oak Harbor City limits are currently served by Island Disposal through a franchise agreement with Island 

County.   Island Disposal has an agreement with the City to continue serving existing homes within any area being annexed for 

an additional seven years to twelve years.   New homes within the annexed area would be served by the City. 

Corrections and Detention 

Oak Harbor currently has a 12-bed jail with an average daily population of 11 inmates.  Prisoners are held for up to 30 days.  At 

times, the capacity of the jail is exceeded when new inmates are awaiting preliminary court appearances.  Currently, longer-

term prisoners and overflow are sent to the Island County jail facility at Coupeville.  As the existing jail is approximately 35 

years old, it is recommended that funding sources be studied which could provide for a new facility to meet growing community 

needs. 

Marina  

The Marina was constructed in 1974 and was intended to provide the best and most affordable boat moorage in the northern 

Puget Sound.  It was also intended to promote and encourage recreational boating in the Puget Sound and the San Juan Islands. 

The marina was expanded in 1987 and again in 1998-99 to incorporate a unique breakwater design which provides superb 

protection to the marina while at the same time affording outstanding accommodations for visiting yacht clubs and individual 

boaters transiting the Sound.  The breakwater dock provides 52, 40-foot slips with patios and picnic tables plus water and 

power. The facility is within walking distance of most retail services including motels and restaurants in the City of Oak 

Harbor. 

Today's Oak Harbor Marina accommodates permanent moorage tenants in 217 open and 135 covered slips, ranging in size from 

24 to 50 feet. Up to 100 additional vessels (depending on size) can be accommodated in guest moorage. The Marina also 

operates 96 dry storage garage-type sheds which are 25 feet in depth and can accommodate smaller boats on trailers. 

 

 

112



Section Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  17 

Non City Provided Capital Facilities 

Oak Harbor School District 
 

The City of Oak Harbor is home to the Oak Harbor School District No. 201 which operates 9 schools serving 5500 students 

who live both within and outside the Oak Harbor Urban Growth Area Boundary. Schools in the district include Oak Harbor 

High School with an enrollment of 1500 students; North Whidbey and Oak Harbor Middle Schools, each  with enrollment of 

approximately 600 students; and five elementary schools that each serve between 450 and 600 students. Thanks to voter 

support, the high school has undergone a recent major renovation and expansion that added a new Career and Technical 

Education wing and Student Union Building.  A new sports stadium that serves the community was also built with voter support 

and private community donations.  The stadium has bleachers seating up to 3,000 spectators and parking for 750 

vehicles. Additional funding support from a recent levy has enabled the district to initiate upgrades to all  schools, improving 

energy efficiency, maintenance and space usage to accommodate growing enrollment. 

 

Libraries 

The Oak Harbor Library is a branch of Sno-Isle Libraries, a two-county library system serving Island and Snohomish counties. 

The City of Oak Harbor annexed to the Sno-Isle library district through voter approval in 1981, allowing residents to pay for 

library services directly through their property taxes. The library facility, including all major furnishing and shelving, remains 

the responsibility of the City, in agreement with the library district.  The Oak Harbor Library is currently located in the east end 

of Hayes Hall on the Whidbey Island Campus of Skagit Valley College (SVC).  Completed in 1993, Hayes Hall is jointly 

owned and maintained by SVC and the City of Oak Harbor, although the City is responsible for all elements related to the 

public library. The City’s share of the building is estimated at approximately 12,000 sq. ft., or 43%.  The boundaries of the Oak 

Harbor Library service area correspond with those of the Oak Harbor School District and include the City of Oak Harbor and 

the unincorporated North Whidbey area.  According to the U.S census, the 2010 population of the area was 37,813.  Island 

County Planning and Community Development projections show the population North Whidbey area increasing to 42,989 by 

the year 2036.   

The current library meets the informational and recreational needs of community members and supports early literacy and 

school readiness. It serves as a resource for teachers and students in public and private schools from preschool through college. 

Economic development and local business needs are met through information services, access to online data and 

entrepreneur/small business support.   

The library offers many services and resources to families, children and caregivers, teens, adults and seniors including reference 

and information, programming, access to digital and physical collections and interlibrary loan. Library services include, but are 

not limited to: 

·       Story times and events for babies, toddlers, preschoolers and caregivers to promote reading and early literacy 

113



Section Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  18 

·       Programs and outreach for school aged children to promote academic success 

·       Homework assistance  

·       Access to online electronic databases via the library website 

·       Books, eBooks, digital materials, DVD’s, CD’s, magazines and other materials for checkout 

·       Library Online Catalog access to 1.5 million titles plus digital resources 

·       Internet access (including filtered access for children) 

·       Free eBook, audiobook, movie and music downloads 

·       Free classes and one-on-one computer help for adults 

·       Wi-Fi access throughout library and lobby areas 

·       Professional, friendly, well-trained staff 

·       Express check out and holds pick up  

·       Reference and information services during all open hours 

·       Online reference services accessible 24/7  

·       Outreach services to the homebound individuals, retirement facilities and local daycares 

·       Open seven days per week  

 

In 2013, the library circulated more than 400,000 items, not including digital titles. The library shares a collection of more than 

1.5 million items.  In 2013, out of a total of 433,182 Sno-Isle Libraries customers, 28,271 were registered at the Oak Harbor 

Library. The use of digital resources by library customers is significant and increasing. In 2013 Sno-Isle Libraries customers 

accessed the library web site nearly 47 million times to access online data and download digital materials. 

Usage statistics gathered by the Sno-Isle Libraries for the Oak Harbor Library indicate that 46% of borrowers are residents of 

the City of Oak Harbor and the remaining 54% live outside the city limits. It is advisable to use population projection estimates 

for both the city of Oak Harbor and unincorporated North Whidbey when planning a library facility to serve Oak Harbor 

Library patrons. A potential source of funding for expanded library facilities is legislation signed into law in 1995 and codified 

in RCW 27.15 which allows the formation of library capital facility areas in the state of Washington. A library capital facility 

area is an independent taxing unit formed within the boundaries of an existing rural county library district. Funds approved by 

voters can be used to finance a new library or remodel an existing library or building. 

 

North Whidbey Parks and Recreation District 

The District operates two primary facilities:  

 Clover Valley Park which consists of a Babe Ruth level baseball field, practice field and a leash-free dog park.  

 The Vanderzight Pool, on Jerome Street, which consists of a 25 meter pool and training pool. 

 

Plans are under consideration to expand the Vanderzight Pool by adding additional swimming area, waterslide and warm water 

therapy pool sometime in the next few years. 

114



Section Three  •  Existing Capital Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  19 

Island Transit 

The transit needs of the City are served by the Island County Public Transportation Benefit Area (PTBA), which operates as 

Island Transit.  The agency’s services include:  fixed route service, para-transit service, a vanpool program and a ride matching 

program.  All of Island Transit’s services are fare-free to its users.  The system is fully funded by a 0.9% sales tax, which is 

matched by funds from the Motor Vehicle Excise Tax revenues generated within the PTBA.  The Levels of Service for Transit 

Routes in Oak Harbor will conform to that identified in Island Transit Comprehensive Plan as approved by the Public 

Transportation Benefit Area (PTBA). 

Island Transit operates seven (7) routes within the City of Oak Harbor utilizing eleven buses and ten para-transit vehicles.  

Ridership for the entire Island County system topped 850,000 in 2013 with a quarter of that ridership occurring in the City.  In 

addition to numerous bus stops the system maintains Harbor Station on Bayshore Drive.  The center contains three passenger 

shelters and kiosks as well as an Operator lounge and administrative office. 

 

 

115



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  20 

 

Section  Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

How Are Future Needs Determined? 

Capital facility needs for the community are identified in a number of ways.  First, traditional planning, involving much citizen 

involvement, determines the community’s wishes for open space, economic development options and land use compatibility, 

for example.  Traditional planning produces documents like the Comprehensive Plan, the Windjammer Plan and the Parks and 

Recreation Plan.  In addition, specialized or technical planning addresses infrastructure development, generally, through the 

Comprehensive Sewer Plan, the Comprehensive Storm Water Plan and the Six Year Traffic Improvement Plan, to mention just 

three.  Specialized planning relies more on traditional technical specifications or industry standards and less on general 

community input.  Generally speaking, the non-enterprise funded
5
 projects are based more on traditional planning products

6
 

while enterprise funded projects are derived from specialized planning exercises.  The provision of both types of capital 

facilities is, of course, guided by the Comprehensive Plan and appropriate sub-area plans. 

Determining Basic Public Service Levels 

The term Level of Service Standards (LOS) refers to the minimum capacity for public facilities or service that is planned to be 

provided per unit of demand or other appropriate measure of need. LOS can range from a precise measurement such as the time 

needed for a fire engine to reach the typical call-out to as imprecise a measure as public perception of how much open space 

should be provided.  Establishing the LOS for an area of service area then directs the decision makers and managers to make the 

necessary plans to ensure that LOS is met. 

LOS need to be consistent with the growth projections of the Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  Under the 

concurrency requirements of GMA, if LOS are set too high, they may result in the community not achieving its growth 

objectives.  On the other hand, if LOS are set too low, they may adversely impact the quality of life in the community.  Even if 

concurrency is not required, the LOS tool is valuable in planning and budgeting.  LOS also provide excellent measures of 

system performance. 

Table 4.1, below, presents the LOS for a broad array of public facilities and services in Oak Harbor.  The LOS were initially 

proposed by City staff based on technical and industry sources.  These proposed standards were then reviewed and approved by 

the Citizens Comprehensive Plan Task Force. 

                                                        

5For a clear definition of non enterprise and enterprise funds, see Section Three. 
6 Street projects are the most obvious exception. 

116



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  21 

Table 4-1.  Level of Service Standards 

 

Facility Adopted LOS 

Streets and Roads  
  Major and Minor 
Arterials 

LOS D 

  Highway—SR20 LOS E  
  Transit Comprehensive Plan 

Domestic Water  
  Domestic Supply 73 gpcd 
  Commercial/Industrial 37 gpcd 

Fire Flow Per UFC 
Sewer 60 gpcd 
Stormwater Detention 25 year storm 
Schools  
  Grades K through 6 5 acres+1 acre/per 100 students 
  Grades 7+  10 acres+1 acre/per 100 

students 
  Grades K through 6 80 square feet/student 
  Grades 7 through 8 110 square feet/student 
  Grades 9 through 12 120 square feet/student 
  Handicapped 140 square feet/student 

Fire Protection  
  Fire Response 5 minutes 
  Medical Response 4 minutes 

Law Enforcement  
  Emergency 2 minute response 
  Non-emergency 7 minutes 

Parks and Recreation  
Spatial LOS  
  Neighborhood Parks 90% within ½ mile 
  Community Parks 90% within ½ mile 

Trails 75% within ½ mile 
Ratio based LOS  
  Neighborhood Parks 2 acre per 1,000 population 
  Community Parks 7 acres per 1,000 population 

Multiuse Field 1 field per 10,000 population 
  Basketball Courts 1 court per 5,000 population 
  Tennis Courts 1 court per 2,000 population 

Baseball Diamond 1 field per 7,000 population 
Football Field 1 field per 7,500 population 
Volleyball Courts 1 court per 5,000 population 

117



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  22 

Facility Adopted LOS 

  Softball Fields 1 field per 5,000 population 
  Little League Fields 1 field per 4,000 population 
  Soccer Fields 1 field per 7,5000 population 

Libraries  
  Building 0.7 square feet per capita 

Solid Waste 2.5 pounds per capita per day 
Other Government Services 450 s.f. per 1,000 population 
Corrections and Detention 0.5 beds per 1,000 population 

 

 

The LOS must, of course, be compared to population projections to assure that the proper ratios can be met.  The following 

table (Table 4.2) provides that population comparison. 

Table 4.2.  City of Oak Harbor Population Projections  

City of Oak Harbor Population Projection 

1990 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020 

17,176 19,795 21,720 22,075 21,999 23,937 

Source: U.S. Census and Medium-High projections using information from Washington State Office of Financial Management 

118



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  23 

 Capital Facilities 

The following is a listing of capital facility projects that have been identified in various adopted City plans.  Some of these projects are needed 

within the six year planning timeframe to enable the City to meet Comprehensive Plan goals, LOS or to further a sub-area plan or strategy.  Others 

are needed outside of that time frame, but within the twenty-year planning horizon.  For detailed information on these projects , see Appendix C. 

 

 
Capital Improvement Plan 2015-2020  

 
Table 4.3 Streets  (Non-Enterprise Funded)  

Projects 

Total 

Project 

Costs 

Schedule 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Local Street Overlays 2,100,000 0 0 500,000 500,000 550,000 550,000 

Bayshore Drive Extension 3,500,000 0 0 0 0 3,500,000 0 

Whidbey Avenue Crosswalk 224,500 224,500 0 0 0 0 0 

Waterfront Trail (Veterans' Park) 150,000 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 

Heller Street Overlay (Whidbey to Crosby) 345,000 0 0 0 0 345,000 0 

W. Pioneer/City Beach/Bayshore Intersection $200,000       $200,000     

Pedestrian Access Improvements 498,000 0 0 114,000 122,000 128,000 134,000 

Capital Project Expenditures $7,017,500 $374,500 $0 $614,000 $822,000 $4,523,000 $684,000 

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance:               

 Streets (Fund 101) $1,000,000 $0 $0 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 

 Arterials (Fund 104) 200,000 0 0 0 0 100,000 100,000 

Transportation Capital Improvements (Fund 105) 400,000 0 0 0 0 200,000 200,000 

Transportation Impact Fees 213,264 33,725 34,500 35,190 35,894 36,612 37,344 

REET 1 (50% of annual) 522,500 85,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 

REET 2 (50% of annual) 522,500 85,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 

Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax: Non-operating 150,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 

General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grants 3,083,750 374,500 0 0 0 2,709,250 0 

119



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  24 

Table 4.3 Streets  (Non-Enterprise Funded)  continued 

       Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Other City Funds 500,000 0 0 0 0 500,000 0 

Developer Contributions 1,000,000 0 0 0 0 1,000,000 0 

Total Available Revenue $7,592,014 $603,225 $234,500 $485,190 $485,894 $4,995,862 $787,344 

                

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $574,514 $228,725 $234,500 -$128,810 -$336,106 $472,862 $103,344 

 

  

120



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  25 

 

Table 4.4 Parks and Recreation (Non-Enterprise Funded) 

Projects 
Total Project 

Costs 

Schedule 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Windjammer Park               

Lagoon Bridge $150,000 $0 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Splash Park 250,000 0 0 0 250,000 0 0 

Existing Building Replacements 195,000 0 0 0 0 120,000 75,000 

Baseball Field Relocation/Planning/Design/Const $1,675,000 $50,000   

 

$125,000 $1,500,000   

Land Acquisition               

Open Space Land Acquisition Near Ft. Nugent Park 250,000 0 250,000 0 0 0 0 

Future Park 250,000 0 250,000 0 0 0 0 

Future Park 1,500,000 0 1,500,000 0 0 0 0 

Total Capital Expenditures $4,270,000  $50,000 $2,150,000 $0 $375,000 $1,620,000 $75,000 

                

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance               

Neigh. Parks (Fund 125) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Comm. Parks (Fund 126) 50,000 0 0 0 50,000 0 0 

Park Impact Fees 380,298 60,250 61,500 62,730 63,984 65,264 66,570 

REET 1 (50% of annual) 522,500 85,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 

REET 2 (50% of annual) 522,500 85,000 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 87,500 

Paths and Trails 15,770 2,500 2,550 2,601 2,653 2,706 2,760 

General Fund 895,000 0 500,000 0 200,000 120,000 75,000 

Grants 3,000,000 0 1,500,000 0 0 1,500,000 0 

Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Available Revenue $5,386,068 $232,750 $2,239,050 $240,331 $491,637 $1,862,970 $319,330 

                

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $1,116,068 $182,750 $89,050 $240,331 $116,637 $242,970 $244,330 

 

121



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  26 

Table 4.5. Wastewater System (Enterprise Funded) 

Projects 
Total Project 

Costs 

Schedule 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Wastewater Treatment Plant $82,892,792 $13,372,073 $17,790,735 $51,729,984 $0 $0 $0 

Wastewater Treatment Plant - Outfall 2,958,387 2,958,387 0 0 0 0 0 

Biosolids Removal (Lagoon Treatment Facility) 587,000 0 0 0 0 0 587,000 

Sewer Line Replacements 1,000,000 150,000 150,000 170,000 170,000 180,000 180,000 

SW 6th Ave & Erie St Line Replacement 150,000 0 150,000 0 0 0 0 

Ely St Line Replacement 250,000 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 

NE 9th to Taftson Line Installation 250,000 0 250,000 0 0 0 0 

Downtown Area Restrooms 750,000 0 0 250,000 250,000 250,000 0 

Capital Project Expenditures $88,838,179 $16,730,460 $18,340,735 $52,149,984 $420,000 $430,000 $767,000 

                

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Contribution from Beginning Fund Balance               

Sewer (Fund 402) $726,059 $0 $0 $0 $128,793 $136,369 $460,897 

Cumulative Reserve (Fund 412) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

System Development Charges 620,404 100,000 100,000 102,000 104,040 106,121 108,243 

Trunk Line Fees 101,867 16,000 16,500 16,830 17,167 17,510 17,860 

Rates 5,025,724 3,652,224 433,500 420,000 170,000 170,000 180,000 

Loans 11,460,000 11,460,000 0 0 0 0 0 

Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Revenue Bond Proceeds 71,022,955 1,502,236 17,790,735 51,729,984 0 0 0 

Total Available Revenue $88,957,009 $16,730,460 $18,340,735 $52,268,814 $420,000 $430,000 $767,000 

                

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $118,830 $0 $0 $118,830 $0 $0 $0 

 

 

 

 

122



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  27 

 

Table 4.6 Water System (Enterprise Funded) 

Projects 
Total Project  Schedule 

Costs 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Well No. 9 Replacement (S-1) $244,000 $244,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Emergency Supply Study (S-2)  109,000 0 0 0 0 109,000 0 

Ault Field Booster Station Surge Protection Analysis (BS-1) 45,000 0 45,000 0 0 0 0 

Ault Field Booster Station Surge Protection Const. (BS-1) 208,000 0 0 0 0 208,000 0 

Ault Field Booster Station Pump Replacement (BS-2) 129,000 129,000 0 0 0 0 0 

Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9)- NE 4th 407,000 407,000 0 0 0 0 0 

Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9)- NE 11th 316,000 0 316,000 0 0 0 0 

O'Leary St. Water Main (PZ-1) 636,000 0 0 636,000 0 0 0 

North O'Leary St. Water Main (PZ-2) 527,000 0 0 527,000 0 0 0 

Telemetry upgrades wells/west tank 55,000 0 0 0 55,000 0 0 

Cross City Transmission Main (T-1A) 1,751,000 0 0 0 0 1,751,000 0 

Emergency Supply Well (S-4) 64,000 0 0 0 0 0 64,000 

West 384 Zone Development (PZ-4) - design 69,000 0 0 0 0 0 69,000 

Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9) - design 160,000 0 0 0 0 0 160,000 

Telemetry upgrades wells/web viewing 54,000 0 0 0 0 0 54,000 

NE Regatta Drive Pipeline (DS-1) 127,000 0 0 0 0 127,000 0 

Eastside Reservoir Demolition (S-3) 110,000 0 0 0 110,000 0 0 

Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9) - construction 929,000 0 0 0 0 0 929,000 

Develop emergency well supply (S-4) 272,000 0 0 0 0 0 272,000 

West 384 Zone development (PZ-4) - construction 294,000 0 0 0 0 0 294,000 

Glencoe Street Fire Flow Improvements (DS-2) - design 211,000 0 0 0 0 0 211,000 

West 384 Zone Extension: Phase 1 (T-3) 3,015,000 0 0 0 3,015,000 0   

Capital Project Expenditures $9,732,000 $780,000 $361,000 $1,163,000 $3,180,000 $2,195,000 $2,053,000 

        

        

        

123



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  28 

Table 4.6 Water System (Enterprise Funded) continued 

       

Revenue Sources 

6-Year 

Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance               

Water (Fund 401) $1,200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 

Cumulative Reserve (Fund 411) 900,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 

System Development Charges 1,142,747 180,000 185,000 188,700 192,474 196,323 200,250 

Rates 1,200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 

Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Revenue Bonds 5,338,953       2,487,526 1,498,677 1,352,750 

Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Available Revenue $9,781,700 $730,000 $735,000 $738,700 $3,230,000 $2,245,000 $2,103,000 

                

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $49,700 -$50,000 $374,000 -$424,300 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 

 

  

124



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  29 

 

Table 4.7 Stormwater System (Enterprise Funded) 

Projects Total Project 

Costs 

Schedule 

  2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Scenic Heights (Liszak) Outfall $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Capital Project Expenditures $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

                

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance               

Stormwater (Fund 404) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Cumulative Reserve (Fund 414) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rates 155,000 155,000 0 0 0 0 0 

Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Available Revenue $155,000 $155,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

                

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 

  

125



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  30 

 

Table 4.8 General Government  

 

Projects 
Total Project 

Costs 

Schedule 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

New West Side Fire Station $4,000,000 $0 $0 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 

Library HVAC 170,000 0 170,000 0 0 0 0 

Animal Shelter 430,000 30,000 400,000 0 0 0 0 

Capital Project Expenditures $4,600,000 $30,000 $570,000 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 

                

Revenue Sources 6-Year Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

General Fund $600,000 $30,000 $570,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Bond Levy Proceeds - Voter Approved 4,000,000 0 0 4,000,000 0 0 0 

Total Available Revenue $4,600,000 $30,000 $570,000 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 

                

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 

  

126



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  31 

 

Table 4.9 Marina (Enterprise Funded) 

Projects Total Project 

Costs 

Schedule 

  2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

                

Capital Project Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

                

Revenue Sources 6-Year Totals 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Contributions from Beginning Fund Balance               

Marina (Fund  ) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Cumulative Reserve (Fund  ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Developer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Available Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

                

Total Revenues less Total Capital Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 

 

 

  

127



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  32 

Capital Improvement Plan 2015-2035 (Years 2021-2035) 
 

Table 4.10 Streets  (Non-Enterprise Funded) 
 

Projects 
Total Project 

Costs 

SR-20 Improvements - Beeksma Dr to Swantown Ave  $29,900,000 

Whidbey Avenue Reconstruction 8,300,000 

SW Heller St Improvements 7,630,000 

SW Eagle Vista Ave Extension West of SR-20 2,800,000 

NE 7th Avenue Reconstruction 4,140,000 

Midway Blvd/NE 7th Avenue Intersection 825,000 

Lower Pioneer Way Reconstruction 6,000,000 

Total $59,595,000 

  Table 4.11 Parks and Recreation (Non-Enterprise Funded) 

Projects 
Total Project 

Costs 

RV Park Redevelopment $1,240,000 

Trail Extension at Freund Marsh 162,000 

Neighborhood Park - Scenic Heights and Other  450,000 

Windjammer Park Redevelopment 9,950,000 

Freund Marsh 1,700,000 

Neighborhood Park Improvements 150,000 

Open Space/Park Near Crosby & Oak Harbor 4,000,000 

Trail Development/Link Opportunities - Park Plan 300,000 

Total $17,952,000 

  Table 4.12 Wastewater System (Enterprise Funded) 

Projects 
Total Project 

Costs 

Goldie Road Sewer Expansion Phase 2 $2,350,000 

Technical Drive Sewer 262,000 

Total $2,612,000 

  

  

  

128



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  33 

Table 4.13 Water System (Enterprise Funded) 
 

Projects 
Total Project 

Costs 

Cross City Transmission Main (T-1B) $1,809,000 

Westside Water Main Extension (T-5) 7,609,000 

East 384 Zone Development (PZ-3) 90,000 

North Booster Pump Station (BS-3) 2,398,000 

North-end Trunk Main: Phases1 and 2 (T-2) 1,767,000 

Heller Reservoir Extension (DS-8) 696,000 

Glencoe Street Fire Flow Improvements (DS-2) - const. 869,000 

SW 10th Court Pipe Replacement (DS-3) - design 45,000 

SW 11th Court Pipe Replacement (DS-4) - design 45,000 

Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9) - design 174,000 

Campbell Lake Main Replacement (T-6) - design 457,000 

SW 10th Court Pipe Replacement (DS-3) -construction 180,000 

SW 11th Court Pipe Replacement (DS-4) - construction 180,000 

Steel/AC line replacement (DS-9) - construction 1,015,000 

Campbell Lake Main Replacement (T-6) - construction 1,882,000 

Erin Park Main Road Extension (DS-5) 691,000 

Erin Park Road Tie-In (DS-6) 60,000 

Industrial Avenue Tie-In (DS-7) 60,000 

322 Zone Development (PZ-5) 580,000 

Total $20,607,000 

 

Table 4.14 Stormwater System (Enterprise Funded) 

Projects Total Project 

Costs   

Freund Marsh Stormwater Improvements $238,000 

Total $238,000 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

129



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  34 

Table 4.15 General Government  
 

Projects 
Total Project 

Costs 

Oak Harbor Municipal Pier Project $12,000,000 

New Senior Center $5,200,000 

Special Events Center $10,030,000 

Total $27,230,000 

  

  Table 4.16 Marina (Enterprise Funded) 
 Projects Total Project 

Costs   

Marina Redevelopment $16,285,745 

Total $16,285,745 

 

  

130



 Section Four  •  Future Capital Facility Needs 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  35 

 

Non–City Funded Capital Facilities 

Oak Harbor School District 

District enrollment projection for the next six years shows a further decline of about 250 students.  For the immediate future, the 

district is planning for fewer students and as many as 20 empty elementary classrooms.   

Library 

Statistics indicate that currently 52% of library customers are residents of the City of Oak Harbor, and the remaining 48% live 

outside the City limits. Legislation signed into law in 1995 and codified in RCW 27.15 allows the formation of library capital 

facility areas in the state of Washington.  A library capital facility area (LCFA) is an independent taxing unit formed within the 

boundaries of an existing rural county library district and is limited to financing construction of a new library.  Two ballot 

issues would need to be approved by voters in the proposed LCFA. The first would ask voters to approve the formation of the 

LCFA; the second would ask voters to authorize financing for the new library.  

In 2005, the Oak Harbor Library Board and Library Building Committee developed a building program for a new library to 

serve the North Whidbey community, including the City of Oak Harbor, for the next twenty years. Based on nation-wide 

standards, a library designed to adequately serve the current and projected population of the district would be approximately 

25,000 sq. ft.  In addition, circulation areas, including book drop and interior book returns areas, need to be upgraded to 

accommodate increasing demands of Oak Harbor citizens. 

Island Transit  

Island Transit foresees no new capital improvements within the City of Oak Harbor during the CIP planning period.   

 

 

131



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  36 

Section Five - Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

Capital facilities in the State of Washington and the City of Oak Harbor are funded in a variety of ways.  Capital facilities in the 

enterprise fund category (waste water, water, storm drainage, and the Marina) are generally funded by system user fees, one 

time impact fees, revenue serviced bonds and grants in aid from the county, state, and federal governments.  Non-enterprise 

fund facilities must rely on revenue from taxes or bonding retired with general tax revenue and grants in aid. 

The Growth Management Act requires the City to identify the sources of funding for each type of capital facility. This section 

provides a general overview of funding sources that have been or are being used, an historical look at revenues from these 

sources and projections for these revenues to the year 2016.  In addition, some typical funding sources that are not currently 

being used are outlined in Appendix F, with a complete listing of grant and loan programs. 

Non Enterprise Activities—Capital Facility Funding Sources 

Tax Revenue 

Property Tax 

RCW 84.52 authorizes this tax on the assessed valuation of real and personal property.  Presently the maximum rate is $3.375 

per $1,000 assessed valuation, subject to two limitations:  RCW 84.55 limits growth of regular property tax to 6% of the highest 

amount levied in the last 3-years, before adjustments for new construction and annexations; and, the State Constitution limits 

the total regular property taxes to 1% of assessed valuation or $10.00 per $1,000 of value.  

Timber Harvest Excise Tax 

RCW 84.33 imposes a 4% tax on the total value of the gross harvest value of timber.  7% of this amount is distributed to local 

taxing districts in lieu of property tax on timber.  The City is not currently receiving funds from this source but has in the past. 

Retail Sales and Use Tax 

The state levies an 8.0% tax on all retail sales except for off-premises food and drugs in Oak Harbor.  Of this amount, 1.0% 

goes to the City and 0.5% goes to the County.  Of the 1.0% the City receives, 0.15% goes to the County and 0.1% is taken by 

the State for administration.  This leaves the City with a net of .840%.  Of the 0.5% the County receives, 0.2% is distributed to 

the City for criminal justice purposes and the remaining 0.3% is given to the County for the Island County Public 

Transportation Benefit Area Authority for public transit.  

Business Taxes 

The City collects fees for a number of licenses and permits including business licenses, and fees for permits, plan review 
inspections, and utility taxes 

132



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  37 

CAPRON Funds 

CAPRON funds are a reimbursement of motor vehicle license fees and are based on the City’s percentage of the assessed 

valuation in Island County.  Island and San Juan Counties and municipalities within these counties are the only recipients of 

CAPRON funds.  Revenues are used for maintenance of the City streets. 

Gambling Tax 

The City levies a use tax of up to 5% on bingo, raffles, card rooms and amusement games. 

Liquor Tax/Profits 

RCW 82.08 authorizes a distribution of the taxes to the City from liquor sales (28% for spirituous liquors and 32% for wine) on 

a per capita basis.  It also distributes 40% of the net profit from liquor sales. 

Lodging Excise Taxes 

RCW 67.28 authorizes a base 2% tax and an additional 2% tax, for a total of 4%, on all charges for lodging furnished for a 

continuous period of less than one month.  This tax is taken as a credit against the 6.5% State sales tax  and is intended or the 

promotion of tourism or for the development and operation of specific stadium, convention, performance or visual arts facilities. 

Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax 

The State of Washington provides a State-collected gasoline tax that is shared with cities.  The base tax in Washington State is 

17 cents per gallon.  Of this amount, the City receives 6.92%.   The City also receives an additional 4.61% which is restricted 

for the construction, improvement, chip sealing, seal-coating, and repair of arterial highways and City streets as defined in 

RCW 46.04.030 and 46.04.120. 

Real Estate Excise Taxes 

The state authorizes a tax of 1.28% on the sale of all real estate.  RCW 82.46 authorizes cities, planning under the GMA, to 

assess an additional tax on real estate sales of ¼%.  These funds must be spent for capital facility projects listed in their Capital 

Facilities Plan.  A second ¼% may also be levied to help defray the costs of implementing the GMA.  See Table 6.1 below for 

past performance and future projections 

  

133



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  38 

 

 

 

Table 5.1  General Fund Revenues from All Sources 

   Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Property Taxes $4,066,316  $4,156,979  $4,235,962  $4,316,445  $4,398,458  $4,482,028  

Sales & Use Taxes 2,750,230  2,777,732  2,805,510  2,833,565  2,861,900  2,890,519  

Business Taxes 2,460,736  2,524,080  2,653,746  2,760,149  2,854,853  2,948,805  

Gambling Taxes 9,700  9,800  9,996  10,196  10,400  10,608  

Liquor Excise Taxes 40,000  40,000  40,800  41,616  42,448  43,297  

Lodging Taxes 199,000  200,000  200,000  200,000  200,000  200,000  

Motor Vehicle Fuel 
Taxes 

442,000  444,500  444,500  444,500  444,500  444,500  

Excise Tax - REET 1 170,000  175,000  175,000  175,000  175,000  175,000  

Excise Tax - REET 2 170,000  175,000  175,000  175,000  175,000  175,000  

Total Tax Revenues $10,307,982  $10,503,091  $10,740,513  $10,956,470  $11,162,559  $11,369,758  

 

Impact Fees 

Transportation Impact Fees 

ESHB 2929 authorizes impact fees to pay for roads required to serve new development.  Ordinance 1051 of the City of Oak 

Harbor allows for the collection of traffic mitigation fees at the time of the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  Impact fees 

are based on a flat rate for dwelling units, and per square foot for non-residential uses, based on PM peak hour trips created by 

the development.  Adjustments have been made to the fee calculations to account for road costs that are paid by other sources of 

revenue.  Additional credit is also given to developers who contribute land, improvements, or other assets. 

Park Impact Fees 

ESHB 2929 authorizes impact fees to pay for park and recreation facilities required due to new development.  These fees are 

usually collected at the issuance of building permits or certificates of occupancy.  Park and Recreation fees are usually based on 

a flat rate for dwelling units by type and per square foot for non-residential uses. 

Adjustments must be made to fee calculations to account for park and recreation costs that are paid by other sources of revenue.  

Additional credit can also be given to developers who contribute land, improvements or other assets.  These impact fees are in 

addition to any mitigation or voluntary payments authorized by SEPA or local improvement districts for example. 

134



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  39 

Impact fees must be used for capital facilities needed for growth. They can not be used to meet current deficiencies or cannot be 

used for operating expenses.   

 

Table 5.2  Impact Fee Revenue 

     Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Transportation $33,725  $34,500  $35,190  $35,894  $36,612  $37,344  

Park - Neighborhood 15,500  16,000  16,320  16,646  16,979  17,319  

Park - Community 44,750  45,500  46,410  47,338  48,285  49,251  

Total Impact Fees $93,975  $96,000  $97,920  $99,878  $101,876  $103,913  

Enterprise Activities—Capital Facility/Maintenance Funding Sources 

System Development Fees 

System development charge is an impact fee imposed on utilities such as water, sewer, natural gas, or drainage that is a 

proportionate share to the utility system capital costs which the City can demonstrate is attributable to the property being 

charged. 

 

Table 5.3  System Development Charges Revenue 

  Description 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Water $180,000  $185,000  $188,700  $192,474  $196,323  $200,250  

Sewer 100,000  100,000  102,000  104,040  106,121  108,243  

Trunk Line 16,000  16,500  16,830  17,167  17,510  17,860  

Total Sys Dev. Charges $296,000  $301,500  $307,530  $313,681  $319,954  $326,353  

User Fees/Rates 

Water User Fees 

These are state authorized rates charged to each residential and commercial customer, based on the volume of water used.  

Revenue may be used for capital facilities, operations and maintenance. 

Wastewater User Fees 

The state authorizes sewer charges to wastewater generators.  In Oak Harbor, these fees are usually based on the amount of 

potable water consumed based on the assumption that there is a correlation between water consumption and wastewater 

generation.  

135



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  40 

Storm Drainage Utility Fees 

These are state authorized fees usually based on a flat rate per month per residential equivalency or on the average impervious 

surface area. Revenue may be used for capital facilities, operations and maintenance. 

Solid Waste User Fees or Tipping Fees 

These fees may be charged either at the point of pickup by the container or by using a flat rate.  They may also be charged at the 

point of delivery at the disposal facility.  User or tipping fees may be used for capital facilities, as well as maintenance and 

operating expenses 

 
Bonds 

Bonds that are identified below are available for the use of both non-enterprise and enterprise funded capital facilities. 

General Obligation Bonds.(GO)   

They are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.  Bondholders have legal claim on general income of the City if default 

occurs. There are two types: 

Councilmanic Bonds (Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds) 

 May be issued by a vote of City council 

 Backed by general fund revenues because voters have not been asked to pay increased property taxes 

 May be used for any City purpose and does not have to be capital 

Unlimited General Obligation Bonds 

 Backed by the full faith and credit of the local government 

 Raises property tax to pay for projects and must be approved by a 60% majority of the voters, turnout must be 40% of those 

voting in the last general election 

 Only used for capital purposes and there are limits to amount of debt that can be issued 

Debt Limits 

There are three pots of 2 ½% of assessed valuation each: (1) general government purposes, (2) municipally owned water, sewer 

and electric utilities, and (3) open space and parks. Pots two and three are voted and must be 60% yes, 40% voter turnout.  Pot 1 

is a mixture of voted and non-voted. 

Revenue Bonds 

These bonds are used to finance projects for an enterprise fund or a facility that generates income sufficient to pay debt service. 

Examples include water and wastewater projects or convention center.   Payment of debt service comes from user fees 

generated by enterprise fund or the capital facility that is being built.  Interest rates are higher than in GO bonds since these 

bonds are not backed by the full faith and credit of the City.  They are not subject to statutory debt limits.  However, the bond 

market provides an effective limit to the amount of bonds that can be issued. 

136



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  41 

Levy Lid Lift  

A simple majority of voters can approve a “levy lid lift” allowing the City to levy an amount of property tax approved by its 

voters up to the applicable statutory rate ($3.375 per $1000 assessed valuation) limitations.  The City can lift its levy for the 

following year or for up to six consecutive years.  This technique is particularly helpful in funding maintenance or property 

acquisition projects. 

137



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  42 

Table 5.4  Schedule of Limitation of Indebtedness: As of 12/31/1013 

    Remaining Debt 

Total Taxable Property Value  $1,637,065,421  Capacity  

      

2.5% General purpose limit is allocated between: 40,926,636   

      

Up to 1.5% debt without a vote 24,555,981   

      

Less: Outstanding Debt 2,245,000   

Less:  Excess of Debt with a Vote 0   

Add:  Available Assets     

Equals remaining debt capacity without a vote   $22,310,981  

      

Up to 1.0% debt with a vote 16,370,654   

      

Less:  Outstanding Debt     

Add:  Available Assets     

Equals remaining debt capacity with a vote   $16,370,654  

      

2.5% Utility purpose limit, voted 40,926,636   

      

Less:  Outstanding Debt     

Less:  Contracts Payable     

Add: Available Assets     

Equals remaining debt capacity- Utility purpose, voted   $40,926,636.00  

      

2.5% Open Space, park & capital facilities, voted 40,926,636   

      

Less:  Outstanding Debt     

Less:  Contracts Payable     

Add: Available Assets     

Equals remaining debt capacity - Open space, park & capital facilities voted $40,926,635.53  

138



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  43 

 
Special Assessment Districts 7 

The State of Washington provides for several special assessment techniques to assist communities in funding both non-

enterprise and enterprise capital projects. 

Local Improvement Districts/Road Improvement District/Utility Local Improvement District 

When a capital project is going to provide a benefit that primarily or wholly benefits only a portion of the community, a 

LID/RID/ULID can be formed as part of the project. These are commonly used for projects such as street improvements, street 

lights, sidewalks, water and sewer systems, and underground power lines.  Property owners may petition to form an 

LID/RID/ULID, or council can pass a resolution of intent to form one. 

Special Purpose District  

RCW 67.38.130 authorizes a specified service often encompassing more than one jurisdiction. Included are districts for fire 

facilities, hospitals, libraries, metropolitan parks, airports, ferries, parks and recreation facilities, cultural arts/stadiums and 

convention centers, sewers, water flood controls, irrigation, and cemeteries.   

Parks & Recreation Service Area  

RCW 36.68.400 authorizes voters to approve the formation of park and recreation service areas as junior taxing districts for the 

purpose of financing the acquisition, construction, improvement, maintenance, or operation of any park, senior citizen activity 

center, zoo, aquarium, or recreational facility. 

Parking & Business Improvement Areas  

The Transportation Improvement Act (ESHB 6358) also authorizes a tax to be collected on commercial businesses based on 

gross proceeds or property acreage or the number of parking stalls or the customers similar to an admissions and operations tax. 

Community Revitalization Financing (TIF) 

Designated “community revitalization financing” in RCW 39.89 but commonly called TIF (tax increment financing), this 

financing allows local government to capture a portion of new tax revenue resulting from the increase of valuation from new 

development within a designated area.  The captured tax, referred to as “tax allocation revenues” in RCW 39.89, can be used to 

service the debt incurred by the local government when constructing “public improvements” necessary to encourage new 

development within the designated area. 

Grants and Loans 

For a complete listing of applicable grants and loans available to the City of Oak Harbor, see Appendix B. 

                                                        

7 For a detailed discussion of Special Assessment Districts, see Appendix F. 

139



Section Five  •  Capital Facility Funding Options and Projections 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  44 

 Conclusions 

It has been stated throughout this document that non-enterprise funded capital facilities have limited funding available for 

implementation.  The discussion above points out clearly that the capital facility needs of both non-enterprise and enterprise 

funded activities will require user fee revenue, general and special tax revenue, bonds and/or grants in aid from outside source 

funding sources.  Funding the capital facility needs of the City of Oak Harbor will require innovative planning, but it is a task 

that can be accomplished. 

 

140



Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  45 

Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

Traffic 

Level of service standards (LOS) analysis serves as an indicator of the quality of operation at an intersection.  The LOS grading ranges 

from A to F where A is assigned when there are no delays and low volumes.  E, on the other hand, represents the “at capacity” 

condition—more vehicles could not be added to the intersection without a breakdown in traffic flow.  F is an unacceptable level of 

service and indicates long delays and/or strained traffic flows. 

Manual p.m. peak-hour traffic volume surveys were conducted by the City of Oak Harbor at 37 intersections in 2007.  Daily 

traffic volume counts were also conducted at 23 locations.  The table below summarizes the existing LOS calculated for each of 

the intersections and roadway section surveyed.   

Table A.1.  2007 Level of Service Standards for Traffic 

Peak Hour Signalized Intersections 2007 LOS 

SR 20/Ault Field Road 
SR 20/Goldie Rd/Midway Boulevard 
SR 20/NE 7th Avenue 

C 
C 
B 

SR 20/Whidbey Avenue 
SR 20/SW 3rd Avenue 
SR 20/SW 8th Avenue 

C 
B 
B 

SR 20/SE Barrington Drive 
SR 20/W Pioneer Way/Beeksma 
SR 20/SW Erie Street 

C 
D 
C 

SR 20/Swantown Road 
Ault Field Rd/Goldie Road 
Ault Field Rd/Langley Road 

D 
C 
B 

Whidbey Ave/Heller Road 
Whidbey Ave/Oak Harbor Street 
Whidbey Ave/Midway Boulevard 

B 
C 
C 

SE 8th Ave/Midway Boulevard 
W Pioneer Way/City Beach Dr 

A 
A 

W Pioneer Way/Midway Boulevard 
Ft Nugent Rd/Swantown Road 

C 
B 

141



Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  46 

Peak Hour Signalized Intersections 2007 LOS 

State Route 20 
Ault Field to Regatta Dr 
Regatta Dr and Goldie St 
Goldie St to 3

rd
 Ave 

3
rd

 Ave to Barrington Dr 
Barrington Dr to Pioneer Way 
Erie St to Beeksma 
Swantown Ave and Erie St 

 
A 
C 
A 
B 
A 
D 
D 

Swantown Road 
Ft Nugent Ave to SR 20 
Heller Road to Ft Nugent Ave 

 
B 
A 

Heller Road/Ault Field Road 
Ault Field Rd to Crosby Rd 
Whidbey Ave and 6

th
   

6
th
 Ave and Barrington Ave 

 
A 
A 
A 

Pioneer Way 
City Beach and Dock Street 
Dock Street to Midway 
Midway to Regatta 

 
A 
A 
A 

Barrington Drive 
SR 20 to SE 8th 

 
A 

Midway Blvd 
Whidbey Ave and 6

th
 Street 

SE 8
th
 Ave and Pioneer Way 

 
A 
A 

Whidbey Avenue 
Heller to Oak Harbor Road 
Oak Harbor Rd to SR 20 
SR 20 to Midway 
Midway to Regatta Drive 

 
A 
B 
A 
A 

Crosby Avenue, Heller to Oak Harbor A 

Oak Harbor Road 
Ault Field to Crosby 
Crosby to Whidbey 

 
A 
C 

Goldie Road 
Ault Field to SR 20 

 
A 

 

142



Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  47 

Wastewater Inventory and Conditions Survey 2014 

Table A.2.  Distribution System 

Age (yrs.) 
Size (in.) 
 

0–20 21–30 31–40 41–50 51–60 61–70 

4 570 2544 1400 0 0 0 

6 482 500 0 607 521 0 

8 126801.47  29704 50679 26273 47194 19603 

10 6110 820 820 1962 2866 511 

12 3109 2106 0 0 0 4190 

15 7355 0 0 2963 802 0 

16 8047 0 0 0 0 0 

18 4493 0 0 0 0 0 

20 0 0 0 0 0 0 

21 3730 0 0 0 0 807 

24 85 0 0 0 0 0 

Note: Numbers above are linear feet. 

Table A.3.  Pump List 

Pump Station Location Size Age 

No. 1 Taftson 2 – 7.5 hp 1982 

No. 2 N.E. 9th 2 – 3 hp 1984 

No. 3 N.E 7th 2 – 15 hp 1993 

No. 4 Crosby Road 2 – 10 hp 1994 

No. 5 Cabot Street 2 – 5 hp 1986 

No. 6 E. Pioneer Way 2 – 15 hp 2001 

No. 7 Golf Course 2 – 30 hp 1997 

No. 8 Capital Street 2 – 7.5 hp 1994 

No. 9 East Park 2 – 3 hp 2001 

No. 10 Harbor Terrace 2 – 3 hp 2003 

No. 11 Scenic heights 2 – 25 hp 2008 

Note: Assumed life of sewer lines, manholes, appurtenances, etc.  is 70 years. 

143



Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  48 

 

Water System Inventory And Conditions Survey—2014 

Table A.4.  Distribution System 

Age (yrs.) 
Size (in.) 
 

0–20 21–30 31–40 41–50 51–60 

4 877 10 2029 2721 9008 

6 1327 15901 25887 29661 9653 

8 153117 54993 24497 10045 6445 

10 14252 9065 7571 5226 349180 

12 22241 23783 10270 1390 0 

16 10656 1128 130 324 0 

24 1067 0 0 61852 0 

Note: Numbers above are linear feet. 

 

Table A.5.  Source and Pump Station List 

Name Location Year built Description Initial Cost 

East side Reservoir Regatta Dr. 1959  0.5mg reservoir  $  400,000  

Westside Reservoir Heller St. 1963  0.5mg reservoir  $   400,000  

Westside Reservoir 2mg Heller St. 1976  2.0mg reservoir  $1,500,000  

Ault Field Pump station Ault Field 1974  pumping station  $   253,710  

Westside pump station Heller St. 1989  booster station  $    113,451  

Redwing pump station Redwing subdivision 2004  booster station  $    550,000  

Well # 11 Lueck Park 1977  emergency well  $      39,004  

Well # 9 Heller St. 1961  emergency well  $      17,204  

Well # 8 Heller St. 1961 Emergency well  $17,204 

Note The assumed life of water system lines and appurtenances is 50 years. 

144



Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  49 

Street Inventory And Conditions Survey 2014 

 
Table A.6.  Street Conditions 

Classification 100-90 89-80 79-70 69-60 59-50 <49 

Major Arterial                        0.38                        SR 20 is State owned/maintained 

Minor Arterials 2.15 5.05 1.95 0.92 0.31 0.60 

Collectors 2.62 2.23 2.71 2.32 0.37 0.44 

Residential/Local 12.22 14.75 7.49 6.12 1.31 6.72 
 

Storm Water Drainage Inventory And Conditions Survey 2014 

Table A.7.  Distribution System 

Age (yrs.) 
Size (in.) 
 

0–20 21–30 31–70 

4 24 325 0 

6 2619 1413 158 

8 9585 20171 5946 

10 3007 12408 866 

12 77926 25839 8577 

15 2382 3298 842 

18 0 798 2343 

21 24 798 0 

24 343 492 1394 

36 555 65672 0 

42 0 2705 0 

60 80 0 0 

Note: Numbers above are linear feet. 

Note: The assumed design life for storm drain lines, manholes, etc. is 70-years. 

145



Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  50 

City Capital Assets Inventory and Conditions Survey, 2014 

Table A.8.  Capital Assets Inventory   

Managing Department Description Address Cost 
Size   

Sq. Ft. 

ADMINISTRATION 

  BIG BROTHER HOUSE 913 E. WHIDBEY AVE $104,265 900 

  CADA RENTAL HOUSE 845 SE IRELAND ST. $55,776 800 

  SWIMMING POOL 85 SE JEROME ST. $412,500 0 

  YACHT CLUB 1301 SE CATALINA $250,000 1,000 

  CITY HALL 865 SE BARRINGTON DR. $1,294,614 14,000 

  LIBRARY 100 E. REGATTA DR. $1,351,003 12,100 

  RENTAL HOUSE 945 E. WHIDBEY AVE. $75,285 900 

  RENTAL HOUSE 935 E. WHIDBEY AVE. $84,437 900 

  RENTAL HOURS A & B 1045 IRELAND DR. $124,326 400 

FIRE 

  FIRE DEPARTMENT 855 E. WHIDBEY AVE. $2,682,521 21,000 

  FIRE DEPT. TRAINING TOWER 855 E. WHIDBEY AVE. $265,302 2,100 

MARINA 

  MARINA - FUEL TANK 1401 SE CATALINA DR $382,362   

  MARINA - HARBORMASTER BUILDING 1401 SE CATALINA DR $126,293   

  MARINA - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 1401 SE CATALINA DR $1,411,513   

  MARINA - WET STORAGE 1401 SE CATALINA DR $972,546   

  MARINAN DOCKS & BREAKWATER 1401 SE CATALINA DR $3,374,342   

PARKS 

  BEEKSMA GATEWAY PARK 1501 BEEKSMA DR. N/A .5 ACRES 

  BEEKSMA GATEWAY 1501 BEEKSMA DR. (.25 ACRES) $170,410   

  FIRESIDE PARK N/A N/A 1.2 ACRES 

  FLINTSTONE/ MINI HARBOR PARK BAYSHORE DR. N/A 1.5 ACRES 

  
FLINTSTONE PARK FLOATING DOCKS & EQUIP. (1.5 
ACRES) 

BAYSHORE DR. $517,339   

  FLINTSTONE PARK RESTROOMS BAYSHORE DR. $95,509   

  FREUND MARSH ERIE STREET/BEEKSMA DRIVE N/A 35 ACRES 

  FT. NUGENT PARK  2075 SE FT. NUGENT AVE. NA 40 ACRES 

  FT. NUGENT PARK BALLFIELDS 2075 SE FT. NUGENT AVE. $129,135   

  FT. NUGENT PARK RESTROOMS 2075 SE FT. NUGENT AVE. $211,264   

  FT. NUGENT PARK COMMUNITIY BUILT PLAYGROUND 2075 SE FT. NUGENT AVE. $180,405   

  FT. NUGENT PARK PARKING LOT  2075 SE FT. NUGENT AVE. $307,300   

  LUECK PARK 1270 SW BARRINGTON DR. N/A 1.5 ACRES 

  LUECK PARK EQUIPMENT 1270 SW BARRINGTON DR. $94,461   

  KIMBALL MEMORIAL PARK 580 SW HELLER ST. N/A .8 ACRES 

146



Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  51 

Managing Department Description Address Cost 
Size   

Sq. Ft. 

  KOETJE PARK 500 NE ELLIS NA 3.5 ACRES 

  HAL RAMALY DISPLAY PARK 526 SE BAYSHORE DR. (.5 ACRES) $83,624 .5 ACRES 

  HOLLAND GARDENS & GIRL SCOUT HUT 759 SE 4TH AVE. $67,551   

  MARINA PARK 1401 SE CATALINA DR. N/A 2.9 ACRES 

  MEADOW RIDGE PARK N/A N/A .5 ACRES 

  NEIL PARK EQUIPMENT (3.5 ACRES) 500 NE ELLIS ST. $127,345   

  NEIL WATER TOWER NE BARRON DR. $106,121   

  REDWING PARK     1 ACRE 

  RIDGE HAVEN PARK 1000 SW KITTITAS CT.   .8 ACRES 

  HAWTHORNE PARK     .35 ACRES 

  HOLLAND GARDEN / NEIL PARK     3.5 ACRES 

  RIDGEWOOD PARK 1587 NE NARROWS   5.8 ACRES 

  RUTH COHEN MEMORIAL PARK EQUIPMENT 1678 SW 8TH AVE $59,692 5 ACRES 

  SHADOW GLEN PARK 386 NW DORY DR. NA .8 ACRES 

  SHADOW GLEN PARK EQUIPMENT 386 NW DORY DR. $53,060   

  SKATEBOARD PARK - NORTH WHIDBEY 175 SE JEROME ST.  $71,452   

  SMITH PARK EQUIPMENT    $161,304 9 ACRES 

  SPRING TREE PARK     1.5 ACRES 

  SR-20 POCKET PARKS     .25 ACRES 

  SUMNER PARK TENNIS COURTS & EQUIPMENT   $55,320 4 ACRES 

  TYHUIS PARK     .8 ACRES 

  VFW PARK     .8 ACRES 

  VOLUNTEER PARK EQUIP - BALLFIELDS 175 SE JEROME ST.  $99,289 6 ACRES 

  WINDJAMMER PARK  BAYSHORE DRIVE N/A 28.5 ACRES 

  WINDJAMMER PARK - BALLFIELDS BAYSHORE DRIVE $79,591   

  WINDJAMMER PARK BATHHOUSE & SHOWER BAYSHORE DRIVE $106,121   

  WINDJAMMER PARK COMFORT STATION BAYSHORE DRIVE $125,035   

  WINDJAMMER PARK WINDMILL BAYSHORE DRIVE $82,421   

  WINDJAMMER PARK KITCHEN A & B BAYSHORE DRIVE $79,591   

  WINDJAMMER PARK KITCHEN C BAYSHORE DRIVE $79,591   

  WINDJAMMER PARK RESTROOMS BAYSHORE DRIVE $106,121   

PUBLIC WORKS 

  NEW CITY SHOP 1400 NW 16TH AVE. $4,841,685   

  WHIDBEY ISLAND BANK 321 SE PIONEER WAY $2,600,000   

POLICE 

  POLICE DEPARTMENT / ICOM 860 BARRINGTON DR. $1,872,728   

  ANIMAL SHELTER 3057 GOLDIE RD. $267,000   

SENIOR CENTER 

  SENIOR CENTER 51 SE JEROME ST. $758,956   

147



Appendix A  •  Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  52 

Managing Department Description Address Cost 
Size   

Sq. Ft. 

  SKYLINE GREENBRIAR MANUFACTURED HOME 917 E. WHIDBEY AVE. $147,053   

STREETS 

  INTERSECTION LIGHTING ALL OTHERS $3,395,864   

  LIGHT POLES VARIOUS LOCATIONS $1,771,000   

  PARKING LOT  IRELAND $63,672   

  PARKING LOT  DOCK STREET & PIONEER WAY $63,672   

WASTEWATER 

  TREATMENT PLANT 1501 CITY BEACH ST $2,251,671   

  TREATMENT PLANT EQUIPMENT 1501 CITY BEACH ST $908,801   

  NE 7TH  LIFTSTATION 638 NE 7TH AVE $94,448   

  PIONEER WAY LIFT STATION   $997,756   

  CROSBY ROAD LIFT STATION 1765 NW CROSBY RD $65,795   

  DIVERSIONN PUMP STATION 1501 CITY BEACH ST $265,302   

  EAST PARK LIFT STATION 2330 SW ROSARIO DR $64,733   

  GOLF COURSE LIFT STATION 980 SW UPLAND CT $161,828   

  LAGOON NAS   $2,251,671   

WATER 

  REDWING PUMP STATION REDWING $583,664   

  STORAGE TANK #2 HELLER (.5MILLION GAL.) $424,483   

  STORAGE TANK #4   $424,483   

  STORAGE TANK BY OVE (2 MILLION GAL.)   $1,591,812   

  AULT FIELD PUMP STATION & EQUIPMENT AULT FIELD $269,239   

  WESTSIDE BOOSTER PUMP STATION WESTSIDE $120,395   

  DIVERSION PUMP STATION 1501 CITY BEACH ST. $265,302   

 

Note: Replacement cost was calculated with an annual 3% inflation factor for the number of years from date built or acquired added to the 

cost of acquisition. 

 

148



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  53 

 

 

Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation8 

1—General Planning 

1.0.  State grants—WA Office Trade & Economic Development (OTED) 

 1.0.0: Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) Planning-only – grants provide support to eligible small communities and rural 

counties carrying out planning activities leading to the implementation of priority projects that principally benefit low- and moderate-income 

persons including: 

1. Small area and neighborhood plans, 

2. Strategies and action programs to implement plans including development of codes, ordinances, and regulations, and 

3. Infrastructure planning. 

 

2—Business Development 

2.0.  State grants—WA Office of Community Development (OCD) 
OCD focuses on programs that develop communities, urban areas, and economic activities directly related to urban development. Funding programs 

include: 

 2.0.0: Regional Micro-enterprise Development Grant Funds—a component of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. 

Funds may be used to provide assistance to public and private organizations, agencies, and other entities (including nonprofits) to enable such 

entities to facilitate economic development. Projects must benefit low and moderate income persons. 

 2.0.1: CDBG Float Loan: Community Development Block Grant Float Loans—available to businesses from CTED through cities and counties 

that are eligible to receive Small Cities CDBG program assistance. Principal and interest on the loans will be due at maturity or on demand for 

a normal term of 24-30 months. Interest rates are negotiated based on the contribution the project will make to job creation or retention. A City 

or county is eligible to apply for a grant under this program in order to extend a short-term loan to a private business entity under the following 

conditions: 

4. demonstrates that public financing of the project is necessary and appropriate to create or retain jobs, 

5. provides an unconditional, irrevocable Letter of Credit in the full amount of the principal and interest of the due as collateral for the loan, 

6. agrees to create jobs and make the majority of them available to qualified lower-income candidates (job retention may also be considered 

as a qualifying factor), 

7. agrees to enter into an agreement with CTED and the local job service center to obtain referrals of qualified lower income job candidates 

for new non-managerial jobs to be created.  

                                                        

8 Not an exclusive list.  Funding programs change over time, and staff will respond as necessary. 

149



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  54 

 2.0.2: Rural Washington Loan Fund—provides gap financing for businesses that will create new jobs or retain existing jobs, particularly for 

lower-income persons. Only businesses in non-entitlement areas of the state are eligible for these loans. Gap is that portion of a project that 

cannot be financed through other sources, but which is the last portion needed before the investment can occur. The “gap” and competitive 

factors determine the loan amount, which cannot exceed 33% of total project costs up to $700,000. Funds can be lent for acquisition, 

engineering, improvement, rehabilitation, construction, operation, or maintenance of any property, real or personal that is used or is suitable for 

use by an economic enterprise. Priority is give to timber-dependent and distressed areas. RWLF priority projects include: 

8. Manufacturing and other industrial production, 

9. Agricultural development or food processing, 

10. Aquaculture development or seafood processing 

11. Development or improved utilization of natural resources, 

12. Tourism facilities, 

13. Transportation or freight facilities, 

14. Other activities that represent new technology or a type of economic enterprise needed to diversify the economic base of an area, 

15. Retail or service enterprises that will expand the community’s economic base rather than primarily redistribute the existing customer base. 

2.1.Federal grants—Economic Development Administration (EDA) 

 2.1.0: Economic Adjustment Program—supports strategic planning, project implementation, and revolving loan funds. Strategy grants help 

organize and carry out a planning process resulting in a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) tailored to a community’s 

specific economic problems and opportunities. Implementation grants support activities identified in an approved CEDS which may include, 

but are not limited to, the creation or expansion of strategically targeted business development and financing programs such as, construction of 

infrastructure improvements, organizational development, and market or industry research and analysis. Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) grants 

may also be used to implement a CEDS. 

2.2.  Federal grants—Small Business Administration and HUD) 

 2.2.1: Small Business Administration Loan 7(a)—the most common SBA loan or guaranty loan. The lender lends its own funds and the SBA 

guarantees up to 90% of the loan against default, which the lender may sell on the secondary market. The 7(a) program may be used to obtain 

long-term financing for business needs including working capital, machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements, building 

acquisition or construction, and in some cases, debt consolidation. Maximum size limits for SBA eligibility are under $3,500,000 in retail or 

service business sales, less than 100 wholesale employees, and less than 500 manufacturing employees. 

 2.2.2: Small Business Administration Loan 504—may lend loans for economic growth on a ratio of $35,000 for each job created. Loan funds 

can be used for fixed asset acquisition including land, building, and equipment for more than $200,000 in project size on a below market fixed 

rate. The SBA loan is subordinated to the first private loan or lien. 

 2.2.3: HUD Section 108 Guaranteed Loans—available to businesses from CTED through cities and counties that are eligible to receive CDBG 

Small Cities program assistance. A City or county eligible to apply may obtain a 108 Loan Guarantee for a private business that meets the 

following criteria: 

16. Need for assistance is appropriate given the type of project, 

150



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  55 

17. Project will create jobs, and if qualified lower-income candidates are available, the majority of jobs will be made available to them (job 

retention may be considered), 

18. Proposed repayment is 20 years or less, 

19. Other reasonable financing alternatives have been exhausted, 

20. Request is not less than $700,000 nor more than $7,000,000, 

21. The sponsoring jurisdiction has less than $7,000,000 in outstanding Section 108 Loan Guarantees. 

2.3.  State grants—OTED Economic Development Division Business Assistance Center 

 2.3.1: Business Finance—helps businesses obtain capital for start-up and expansion projects that create or retain jobs, stimulate private 

investment, increase local tax base, and strengthen community economic vitality.  

 2.3.2: Community Development Finance—ombines private financial resources with federal and state lending assistance and local leadership to 

focus on business expansion through community development activities. 

 2.3.3: Business Loan Portfolio—provides capital necessary to fund loans to small businesses statewide. Federal dollars are combined with local 

revolving loan fund programs and private funds from banks and other sources. Local community leadership is relied upon to access the priority 

of proposed projects. Projects may be funded through 1 or more of the program’s 8 federally funded loan programs.  

 2.3.4: Minority and Women Business Development—assists minority and women-owned businesses to access resources and technical 

assistance to start or expand a business. MWBD provides entrepreneurial training, contract opportunities, bonding information, export 

assistance, and access to capital for start-ups or expanding businesses. 

 

3—Infrastructure Planning and Implementation 

3.0.  Local multi-purposes levies 

 3.1.0: Real Estate Excise Tax—RCW 82.46 authorizes local governments to enact up to 0.25% of the annual sales for real estate for capital 

facilities. The Growth Management Act authorizes another 0.25% for capital facilities. Revenues must be used solely for financing new capital 

facilities, or maintenance and operations at existing facilities, as specified in the capital facilities plan. An additional option is available under 

RCW 82.46.070 for the acquisition and maintenance of conservation areas if approved by a majority of the voters of the county. 

The first and second REET may be used for the planning, acquisition, construction, reconstruction, repair, replacement, rehabilitation, or 

improvement of streets, roads, highways, sidewalks, street and road lighting systems, traffic signals, bridges, domestic water systems, and 

storm and sanitary sewer systems, or the planning, construction, repair, rehabilitation, or improvement of parks and recreational facilities. 

In addition, the second REET may be used for: 

22. The acquisition of parks and recreational facilities, or 

23. The planning, acquisition, construction, repair, replacement, rehabilitation, or improvement of law enforcement facilities, protection of 

facilities, trails, libraries, administrative and judicial facilities, and river and/or floodway/flood control projects and housing projects 

subject to certain limitations. 

151



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  56 

3.1.  Local single purpose levies 

 3.1.0: Hotel/Motel Tax—a sales tax levy collected on certain hotel and motel business categories for the purpose of promoting tourism. 

Revenues may be used for planning, promotional programs, or capital facilities that directly enhance tourism and benefit the hotel and motel 

industry.  

 3.1.1: Transportation Improvement Board—the Washington State Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) disburses revenues generated from 

motor vehicle taxes to cities, urban counties, and transportation benefit districts for the purpose of alleviating and preventing traffic congestion 

caused by economic development or growth. Projects must be multi-agency, multi-modal, congestion related, related to economic development 

activities, and partially funded locally. 

 3.1.2: Local Option Vehicle License Fee—the Transportation Improvement Act (ESSB 6358 – RCW 82.80) authorizes countywide (no county 

levy) local option fees up to $15.00 maximum per vehicle registered in the county. Revenues are distributed back to the county and cities 

within the county levying the tax on a prorated per capita basis (1.0 for population in incorporated areas). Revenues must be spent for "general 

transportation purposes" including the construction, maintenance, and operation of county streets, country roads and state highways, policing of 

local roads, public transportation, high capacity transportation, transportation planning and design and other transportation related activities. 

The local option fee does not require voter approval. 

 3.1.3: Street Utility Charge—RCW 35.95.040 authorizes cities to charge for City street utilities to maintain, operate, and preserve City streets. 

Facilities that may be included in a street utility include street lighting, traffic control devices, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, parking facilities, and 

drainage facilities. Businesses and households may be charged a fee up to 50% of the actual cost of construction, maintenance, and operations, 

while the City provides the remainder. The fee charged to businesses is based on the number of employees and may not exceed $2.00 per full-

time employee per month. Owners or occupants of residential properties are charged a fee per household that may not exceed $2.00 per month. 

 3.1.4: Local Option Fuel Tax—RCW 82.80 authorizes a countywide voter approved tax equivalent to 10% of the statewide Motor Vehicle Fuel 

Tax and a special fuel tax of $0.023 cents per gallon. LOFT revenue is to be distributed to the City on a weighed per capita basis. Revenues 

must be spent for highway (City streets, county roads, and state highways) construction, maintenance, or operation; the policing of local roads; 

or highway related activities.  

 3.1.5: Transportation Benefit District—RCW 35.21.225 authorizes cities to create transportation districts with independent taxing authority for 

the purposes of acquiring, constructing, improving, providing, and funding any City street, county road, or state highway improvement within 

the district. The special district’s tax base in used to finance capital facilities.  

The district may generate revenues through property tax excess levies, general obligation bonds (including Councilmanic bonds), local 

improvement districts, and development fees. Voter approval is required for bonds and excess property tax levies. Council approval is required 

for Councilmanic bonds, special assessments, and development fees. 

Transportation improvements funded with district revenues must be consistent with state, regional and local transportation plans; necessitated 

by existing or reasonable foreseeable congestion levels attributable to economic growth; and partially funded by local government or private 

developer contributions, or a combination of such contributions. 

 3.1.6: Storm Drain Utility Fee—a City or county authorized fee to support storm drainage capital improvements. The fee is usually a flat rate 

per residential equivalency based on an average amount of impervious surface. Commercial property is commonly assessed a rate based on a 

fixed number of residential equivalencies. 

 3.1.7: Storm Drainage Payment in Lieu of Assessment—cities may authorize storm drainage charges in lieu of assessments that can be used for 

construction, maintenance, and/or repair of storm drainage facilities, acquisition of property or related debt service. 

152



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  57 

3.2.  Local non-levy financing mechanisms 

 3.2.0: GMA Growth Impact Fees—the Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA - Chapter 36.70A of the Revised Code of 

Washington and RCW 82.02.050-090) authorizes cities and counties to collect growth impact fees from developers to offset the impact caused 

by new developments within each jurisdiction's boundaries. The growth impact fees may be collected from developers in an amount less than 

100% of the cost of sustaining the jurisdiction's schools, transportation, and park facility existing level-of-service (ELOS) as a result of the 

developer's project impact. The growth impact fees are usually collected at the issuance of building permits or certificates of occupancy.  

Impact fees authorized by ESHB 2929 do not include any other form of developer contributions or exaction. Other forms of exaction that are 

excluded consist of mitigation or voluntary payments authorized by the Washington State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA - RCW 43.21C), 

local improvement districts or other special assessment districts, linkage fees, or land donations or fees in lieu of land. 

In accordance with the Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA), a City must have an adopted comprehensive plan in place that 

satisfies GMA requirements before the jurisdiction can implement a growth impact fee.  

 3.2.1: Storm water User Fees—under state law, cities may collect rate charges from each generator of storm water runoff. Impact or user fees 

are based on the amount of storm water generated per developed property that is not held on-site, on the assumption there is a correlation 

between off-site discharge and storm water improvements elsewhere in the City. Storm water utility user fees may be charged on a flat fee per 

account and are usually collected at the time of development, and thereafter on an assessed charge per volume of storm water generated per 

account. Fee revenues may be used for capital facilities as well as operating and maintenance fees. 

 3.2.2: Local Improvement District—property owners may petition (or vote in response to a request from a local government) to adopt an annual 

tax assessment for the purpose of improving the public right-of-way abutting their property.  

A majority approval (the percentage to be decided by the local government) can establish an amortized payment schedule to finance sidewalk, 

landscaping, parking, streetscape, or other improvements to the public or private abutting properties.  

 3.2.3: Special Assessment District—service entities completely or partially outside of the jurisdiction. Special assessments are levied against 

those who directly benefit from the new service or facility. Special assessment districts include local improvement districts (LIDs), road 

improvement districts (RIDs), utility improvement districts (UIDs), and the collection of development fees. Funds must be used solely to 

finance the purpose for which the special assessment district was created. 

 3.2.4: Special Purpose District—RCW 67.38.130 authorizes a specified service often encompassing more than one jurisdiction. Included are 

districts for fire facilities, hospitals, libraries, metropolitan parks, airports, ferries, parks and recreation facilities, cultural arts/stadiums and 

convention centers, sewers, water flood controls, irrigation, and cemeteries.   

Voter approval is required for airport, parks and recreation, and cultural arts/stadium and convention districts. Special assessment districts have 

the authority to impose levies or charges up to a funding limit of $0.25 per $1,000 assessed valuation. Special assessment district funds must be 

used solely to finance the purpose for which the special purpose district was created.  

 3.2.5: Parks & Recreation Service Area—RCW 36.68.400 authorizes voters to approve formation of park and recreation service areas as junior 

taxing districts for the purpose of financing the acquisition, construction, improvement, maintenance, or operation of any park, senior citizen 

activity center, zoo, aquarium, or recreational facility. PRSAs may assess up to $0.15 per $1,000 assessed valuation subject to voter approval. 

A PRSA can generate revenue from either the regular or excess property tax levies and through general obligation bonds, subject to voter 

approval. Revenue must be used for capital facilities maintenance and operation.  

 3.2.6: Parking & Business Improvement Areas—the Transportation Improvement Act (ESHB 6358) also authorizes a tax to be collected on 

commercial businesses based on gross proceeds or property acreage or the number of parking stalls or the customers similar to an admissions 

153



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  58 

and operations tax. Like the PIA, the revenues must be spent for "general transportation or business improvement purposes" including those 

outlined under the PIA but also allowing for the management, operation, and accomplishment of business promotional efforts including 

marketing studies, tenant recruitment, advertising and promotions of special events, and other promotion related activities.  

A majority approval of the participating property owners (the percentage to be decided by the local government) can establish an amortized 

payment schedule to finance off-street parking or other business improvements of benefit to the participating properties. The assessments may 

be amortized over generous time periods at low interest charges, based on each property's proportionate share of the improvement cost - usually 

assessed on a per linear foot, acre, parking stall or other formula. 

 3.2.7: State Environmental Protection Act—Washington State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA - RCW 43.21C) allows local governments to 

impose mitigated on-site improvements or fee assessments with which to finance off-site improvements that are caused by a property's 

development. SEPA mitigation may cover a variety of physical improvements that are affected by the property's proposed land use including 

sidewalks, trails, roads and parking areas, utilities, and other supporting infrastructure systems. SEPA mitigation must be proportionately 

related to the property's impact on infrastructure requirements. 

 3.2.8: Lease Agreements—allow the procurement of a capital facility through lease payments to the owner of a facility. Several lease package 

methods can be used.  Under the lease-purchase method, the capital facility is built by the private sector and leased back to the local 

government. At the end of the lease, the facility may be turned over to the municipality without any future payment.  At that point, the lease 

payments will have paid the construction cost plus interest. 

3.3.  State grants and loans 

 3.3.0: Community Economic Revitalization Board—low interest loans (rate fluctuates with state bond rate) and occasional grants to finance 

infrastructure projects for a specific private sector development. CERB funding is available only for projects that will result in specific private 

developments or expansions in manufacturing and businesses that support the trading of goods and services outside of the state's borders. 

CERB projects must create or retain jobs. The Department of Trade and Economic Development distributes CERF funds primarily to 

applicants who indicate prior commitment to project. CERB revenue is restricted in the type of project and may not be used for maintenance 

and operations.  

CERB supports the following business sectors: manufacturing, production, food processing, assembly, warehousing, industrial distribution, 

advanced technology and research and development, recycling facilities or businesses that substantially support the trading of goods and 

services outside of Washington State borders. 

In rural counties, CERB can support tourism development projects that meet the program’s primary goal of supporting business growth and job 

creation. 

 3.3.1: Historic Preservation Grants—available on an annual basis from the Office of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (OAHP) to local 

historic preservation programs. Historic preservation grants may be used for:  

24. historic preservation planning;  

25. cultural resource survey and inventory;  

26. nomination of properties to the National Register of Historic Places; and  

27. public education and awareness efforts.  

To be eligible for grants, communities must be a Certified Local Government (CLG) as approved by OAHP. In addition, when funds are 

available, OAHP awards grants for the acquisition or rehabilitation of National Register listed for eligible properties. Grant awards are 

predicated on the availability of funds and require a match. 

154



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  59 

 3.3.2: Historic Preservation Tax Certification Program—a federal investment tax credit available for buildings in Washington that are listed on 

the National Register of Historic Places. National Register properties must be income producing, which includes commercial, retail, office, 

residential, rental or industrial uses, to be eligible. 

 3.3.3: Certified Local Government—can be awarded to a local government that establishes a historic preservation program meeting federal and 

state standards. CLG status requires a local government to encourage, develop, and maintain its local preservation efforts with development 

plans. CLGs may also apply for special grants from the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO), obtain technical assistance and training 

from the SHPO, participate in the National Register nomination process, and assist with statewide preservation programs and planning. CLGs 

may also quality for a Special Tax Valuation available for both commercial and residential properties that have rehabilitation costs equaling 

25% of more of the buildings assessed value. The rehabilitation costs may be subtracted from the assessed value of the property for a period of 

10 years.  

 3.3.4: Public Works Trust Fund—low interest loans for financing capital facility construction, public works emergency planning, and capital 

improvement planning. To apply for the loans, the City must have a capital facilities plan in place and must be levying the original 0.25% real 

estate excise tax (REET). The Washington State Department of Community Development distributes Public Works Trust Funds. Public works 

trust fund loans for construction projects require matching funds generated only from local revenues or state shared entitlement revenues. 

Public works emergency planning loans are at a 5% interest rate, and capital improvement planning loans are no interest loans with a 25% 

match. Public works trust fund revenue may be used to finance new capital facilities, or maintenance and operations at existing facilities. 

PWTF funds may be used for domestic water, storm sewer, solid waste recycling, and sanitary sewer, road, and bridge projects. 

 3.3.5: Washington State Interagency Committee for Outdoor Recreation—federal monies available for the construction of outdoor park and 

trail facilities from the National Park Service's Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF). The Washington State Interagency Committee for 

Outdoor Recreation (IAC) administers NPS grants.  

NPS grants usually do not exceed $150,000 per project and must be matched on an equal basis by the local jurisdiction. The IAC assigns each 

project application a priority on a competitive statewide basis according to each jurisdiction's need, population benefit, natural resource 

enhancements, and a number of other factors.  

 3.3.6: Aquatic Lands Enhancement Act—the 1985 Aquatic Lands Enhancement Act (ALEA) initiated on a trial basis, and since renewed and 

expanded, uses revenues obtained by the Washington Department of Natural Resources from the lease of state owned tidal lands. The ALEA 

program is administered by the IAC for the development of shoreline related trail improvements and may be applied for the full cost of the 

proposal.  

 3.3.7: Motor Vehicle Excise Tax—Paths and Trails Reserve  Washington State (RCW 82.44) collects an annual excise tax that is paid by motor 

vehicle owners and administered by the Washington State Department of Licensing. Cities receive 17% of the base allocation. Cities are 

required to spend these funds for police and fire protection and the preservation of public health. The revenues may also be spent on capital 

facilities including roadway improvements. 

RCW 47.30.050 requires that local governments collect and dedicate not less than 0.005 of the total amount of MVET funds received during 

the fiscal year for the purpose of developing paths and trails (the Paths and Trails Reserve). The Paths and Trails Reserve was established under 

State of Washington RCW 47.30 to provide for the establishment and maintenance of paths and trails within the right-of-way of public roads.  

 3.3.8: TEA-21–SAFETEA-W— Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act. The grants, which may total up to 86.5% of 

a project’s cost, are decided on a competitive basis on a regional level for the purpose of expanding the inter-modal use of and transportation 

enhancement of roadways for other than vehicular activities, including bicycle, pedestrian, and transit. Transportation enhancement activities 

may include improvements to any of the following surface transportation facilities: 

155



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  60 

28. Facilities for pedestrians and bicycles, 

29. Safety and educational activities for pedestrians and bicycles, 

30. Acquisition of scenic easements and scenic or historic sites, 

31. Scenic or historic highway programs including the provision of tourist and welcome center facilities, 

32. Landscaping and other scenic beautification, 

33. Historic preservation, 

34. Rehabilitation and operation of historic transportation buildings, structures or facilities including historic railroad facilities and canals,  

35. Preservation of abandoned railway corridors including the conversion and use thereof for pedestrian or bicycle trails, 

36. Control and removal of outdoor advertising, 

37. Archaeological planning and research, 

38. Environmental mitigation to address water pollution due to highway runoff, 

39. Reduce vehicle-caused wildlife mortality while maintaining habitat connectivity, and  

40. Establishment of transportation museums. 

 3.3.9: Surface Transportation Program (STP)  provides flexible funding that may be used by states and localities for projects on any Federal- 

aid highway, including the NHS, bridge projects on any public road, transit capital projects, and public bus terminals and facilities.  An average 

of $700k is available annually for the Island County sub-regional transportation planning organization (RTPO) 

 3.3.10: Transportation Improvement Board  invests state gas tax funds in local community through grant programs serving cities, urban 

counties, and transportation benefit districts in Washington State. The TIB identifies and funds the highest-ranking transportation projects 

based on criteria established by the Board. TIB programs include: 

41. Urban Arterial Program—best suited for roadway projects that improve safety and mobility 

42. Urban Corridor Program— best suited for roadway projects with multiple funding partners that expand capacity. 

43. Sidewalk Program—suited for sidewalk projects that improve safety and connectivity. 

44. Road Transfer Program—provides state funding to offset extraordinary costs associated with the transfer of state highways to cities. 

45. Pedestrian Safety & Mobility Program (SCPSMP—funds pedestrian improvements for safety, pedestrian generators, convenience, public 

acceptance, and project cost. 

46. New Streets for Small Cities— 

 3.3.11 Centennial Clean Water Fund—grants and loans administered by the Department of Ecology under the Centennial Clean Water Program 

(Referendum 39), a water quality program that provides grants for up to 75% of the cost of water quality/fish enhancement studies. CCWF 

monies can be applied to public and park developments that propose to restore, construct or otherwise enhance fish producing streams, ponds 

or other water bodies. CCWF funds are limited to the planning, design and construction of water pollution control facilities, storm water 

management, ground water protection, and related projects.  

156



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  61 

 3.3.12: Water Pollution Control State Revolving Fund—low interest loans and loan guarantees for water pollution control projects. The 

Washington State Department of Ecology distributes WPCSRF loans. The applicant must show water quality need, have a facility plan for 

treatment works, and show a dedicated source of funding for repayment. 

 3.3.13: Building for the Arts—provides state grants through CTED to performing arts, art museums, and cultural organizations to defray up to 

20% of the cost of new facilities or major renovation projects to match monies raised locally from non-state sources. The program intent is to 

fund temporary construction jobs as well as permanent arts-related jobs and employment opportunities in businesses that support new arts 

facilities.  

 3.3.14: Local Capital Projects—provides state appropriates for capital construction projects that benefit local governments and nonprofit 

organizations. Each appropriate, sponsored by the Governor or the Legislature, is tailored to the needs of the recipient organization.  

 3.3.15: Job Creation & Infrastructure—provides targeted capital facilities funding for local governments and community nonprofits to stabilize 

and stimulate the state’s long-term economic through infrastructure development. Previous JCIP projects have funded a wide range of capital 

facilities including small business incubators, ball fields, wastewater treatment plants, parks, and museums. 

 3.3.16: Department of Health Water Systems Support—grants for upgrading existing water systems, ensuring effective management, and 

achieving maximum conservation of safe drinking water. The Washington State Department of Health (DOH) distributes DOHWSS grants 

through intergovernmental review and with a 60% local match requirement. 

3.4.  Direct Federal grants and loans 

 3.4.0: Federal Aid Urban System  are revenues available for the construction and reconstruction improvements to arterial and collector roads 

that are planned for by an MPO and the Federal Highway Administration. FAUS funds may also be used for non-highway related public mass 

transit projects. The Washington State Department of Transportation distributes FAUS funds with a 16.87% local match requirement. 

 3.4.1: Federal Aid Safety Programs  are revenues available for improvements at specific locations that constitute a danger to vehicles or 

pedestrians as shown by frequency of accidents. The Washington State Department of Transportation distributes FASP funds from a statewide 

priority formula with a 10% local match requirement. 

 3.4.2: CDBG: Community Development Block Grants (CDBG)—the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development's (HUD) 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program dispense discretionary funds to local governments for the development of local public 

facilities or services assisting low income or disadvantaged neighborhoods.  

 CDBG grants are available through CTED for non-entitlement cities and towns of less than 50,000 population and counties with less than 

200,000 population. Projects must principally benefit low- and moderate-income persons (less than 80% of county median income) under 8 

different programs dealing with: 

47. General Purpose Grants, 

48. Planning-Only Grants, 

49. Housing Enhancement Grants, 

50. Float-Funded Activity Grants, 

51. Community Investment Fund, 

52. Public Service Grant,  

53. Imminent Threat Grant 

157



Appendix B  •  Financial Resources for Capital Facility Planning and Implementation 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  62 

54. Section 108 Loan Guarantees 

CDBG funds are primarily intended for facility construction and may not be used to finance operation and maintenance costs. The program is 

authorized and funded by annual federal appropriations that have fluctuated widely in recent years due to other federal budgetary needs and 

philosophies. Eligible activities include: 

55. New housing construction and rehabilitation projects, 

56. Economic development revolving loan funds, infrastructure, and incubators, 

57. Community facilities including community centers, health care facilities, and ECEAP/Headstart facilities, 

58. Public facilities including water, wastewater, storm sewer, and streets, 

59. Comprehensive projects requiring a combination of activities such as housing rehabilitation and infrastructure improvements, 

60. Public services providing counseling, job training, or other benefits, 

61. Barrier removal for handicap accessibility. 

 

158



Appendix C.  •  Maps 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  63 

 

Appendix C  •  Maps 

Map 1.  City of Oak Harbor Boundaries 

 

159



Appendix C.  •  Maps 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  64 

Map 2.  City of Oak Harbor Street Classification 
                           

 

160



Appendix C.  •  Maps 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  65 

Map 3.  City of Oak Harbor Parks Inventory 

 

161



Appendix C.  •  Maps 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  66 

Map 4.  City of Oak Harbor Public Facilities Inventory 

 

162



Appendix C.  •  Maps 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  67 

Map 5.  Existing Wastewater Collection System, City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Sewer Plan 

 

  

163



Appendix C.  •  Maps 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  68 

Map 6.  Existing Stormwater System 

 

  

164



Appendix C.  •  Maps 

The City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan, 2015-2020 FINAL DRAFT  •  69 

Map 7.  Existing Water System 

 

165



Ordinance No. 1708: 2015-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 1708 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 18.10.015, CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENTS PLAN, ADOPTING A REVISED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN.  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor first adopted a Comprehensive Plan consistent with the requirements of the 

Washington State Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW) in 1995 by Ordinance 1027, and adopted 

amendments to the plan in 1997 by Ordinance 1100, in 1998 by Ordinance 1161, in 2000 by Ordinance 1215, in 

2001 by Ordinance 1287, in 2003 by Ordinance 1340, in 2004 by Ordinance 1396, in 2005 by Ordinance 1439, 

in 2007 by Ordinance 1488,  in 2008 by Ordinance 1542, in 2009 by Ordinance 1564; in 2010 by Ordinance 

1594; in 2012 by Ordinance 1647; and in 2014 by Ordinance 1703; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor, in the public interest, may adopt amendments as revisions to the 

Comprehensive Plan no more frequently than once per year in accordance with the State of Washington Growth 

Management Act RCW 36.70A.130(2), except for an amendment to the capital facilities element of a 

comprehensive plan that occurs concurrently with the adoption or amendment of a city budget as allowed by 

RCW 36.70A.130(2)(iv); and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor determined it was desirable to have the schedule for the Capital 

Improvements Plan update track concurrently with the schedule for the adoption of the City’s 2015-2016 

Budget and to therefore adopt the CIP separately from the balance of the Comprehensive Plan amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the preliminary docket for the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments was compiled and noticed 

to the public, and the review of which included public hearings held by the Planning Commission and City 

Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after holding a public hearing, approved a final docket for the 2014 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 18, 2014 and said docket included an update to the Capital 

Improvements Plan; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public meeting on the draft 2015-2020 Capital Improvements 

Plan in September 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan on 

October 28, 2014, recommending its approval; and 

WHEREAS, a SEPA Determination of Nonsignificance was issued for the 2014 Comprehensive Plan 

amendments on October 8, 2014 with a 14 day appeal period ending on October 24, 2014, which received no 

substantive comment; and  

WHEREAS, the 2014 Comprehensive Plan amendment review process beginning in March 2014 and 

continuing through the adoption of this Ordinance involved early and continuous public involvement through 

public meetings and hearings, as required by the Growth Management Act and the City’s public participation 

plan; and 

166



Ordinance No. 1708: 2015-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, as required by RCW 36.70A.106, the City provided 60-days’ notice to the Department of 

Commerce on August 29, 2014 and received no substantive comments from the Department; and 

 

WHEREAS, changes in conditions have occurred in the community since adoption of the previous 

Comprehensive Plan making it desirable to amend the plan and the Capital Improvements Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, after due and proper notice, public hearings were conducted by the Planning Commission on 

October 28, 2014 and City Council on November 5, 2014 and December 2, 2014 covering all proposed changes 

in the update of the Comprehensive Plan, including those related to the 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan;  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

 

Section One. Section 18.10.015 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code last amended by Section 3 of Ordinance 

1647 in 2012 is amended to read as follows: 

 

 The Capital Improvements Plan 2015-2020, a copy of which is on file with the city clerk, and is 

available for inspection, is hereby adopted on December 2, 2014 as Oak Harbor's capital improvements 

plan, amending and revising the capital improvements plan as adopted under Ordinance No. 1647.  

 

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance 

is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision to other persons or 

circumstances is not affected. 

 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force (5) five days following publication. 

 

 

PASSED by the City Council this 2nd day of December, 2014. 

 

(    )  APPROVED by its Mayor this _____ day of _______________, 2014. 

(    )  Vetoed 

       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

 

              

       Mayor 

167



Ordinance No. 1708: 2015-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

       

City Attorney 

 

Published:       

 

168



 

 

 
City of Oak Harbor 

Development Services 

Department 

Memo 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Steve Powers, Director 

CC:  

Date: September 17, 2014 

Re: Draft 2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan 

Purpose 
This memorandum transmits to the Planning Commission the draft 2015-2020 Capital Improvements 
Plan (CIP).  This item is for information and discussion only.  No action is requested of the Planning 
Commission at this time. 
 
 
Background 
The Capital Facilities Plan is a six to twenty year plan of capital projects with estimated costs and 
proposed methods of financing.  Capital facilities plans are required by State statute for jurisdictions 
fully planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA); Oak Harbor is a fully planning jurisdiction.  
The capital facilities plan (sometimes referred to as the capital facilities element) implements the land 
use element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The specific requirements for the capital facility element are 
set forth in the GMA.  A jurisdiction’s comprehensive plan must include: 

A capital facilities plan element consisting of: (a) An inventory of existing capital facilities owned 
by public entities, showing the locations and capacities of the capital facilities; (b) a forecast of 
the future needs for such capital facilities; (c) the proposed locations and capacities of expanded 
or new capital facilities; (d) at least a six-year plan that will finance such capital facilities within 
projected funding capacities and clearly identifies sources of public money for such purposes; 
and (e) a requirement to reassess the land use element if probable funding falls short of meeting 
existing needs and to ensure that the land use element, capital facilities plan element, and 
financing plan within the capital facilities plan element are coordinated and consistent. Park and 
recreation facilities shall be included in the capital facilities plan element. (RCW 36.70A.070(3))  

The term capital facilities plan (CFP) is typically used to refer to the twenty year planning horizon while 
the term capital improvements plan (CIP) is typically used to refer to the six year planning horizon.  An 
important distinction between the two plans is that funding sources must be identified for the CIP while 
they are not required for the CFP.   

169



 

 Page 2 

 

For the purposes of Oak Harbor’s CIP a capital facility is defined as any new public facility or public 
improvement of the City costing $50,000 or more, (including financing, design, permitting, 
environmental analysis, land acquisition and construction costs) requiring the expenditure of public 
funds over and above annual operational expenses and having a life expectancy of more than twenty 
(20) years. 
 
 
Discussion 
The CIP includes projects for the following types of facilities: streets, parks, wastewater, water, 
stormwater, general government, and the marina.  The projects identified in the CIP typically were first 
identified in the individual facility’s comprehensive plan (e.g. the Sewer Comprehensive Plan 
determines the needed sewer projects).  The timing and sequencing of necessary projects are also 
determined by the facility’s comprehensive plan.  Some facilities such as water, sewer, stormwater and 
marina are funded by enterprise funds (those that have user fees).  Other facilities such as streets, 
parks and general government are non-enterprise funds (those that rely on general tax or unrestricted 
revenues).   
 
 
The Draft 
The draft CIP included in this month’s Planning Commission packet is a work in progress.  The draft 
represents staff’s work to date but it is by no means complete.  Similarly, the formatting of the draft is 
still in rough form.  A few other notes for the Commission’s information: 
 

 The draft is a revision to the existing CIP.  The document is significantly shorter in length than 
the previous version as a concerted effort was made to simplify the type of information and 
manner in which it is presented. 

 The CIP from 2006 through 2013 included a lengthy section devoted to a 2006 effort to 
prioritize a list of significant projects (e.g. Marina Redevelopment, Municipal Pier, Special 
Events Center, etc.).  The City Council recently completed a re-prioritization of these projects 
and the results of that effort are incorporated in the draft as appropriate.  Information related to 
these projects has been greatly simplified. 

 At this point projects have been identified for both the six and twenty year timeframes.  While 
likely funding sources have been identified, actual or projected dollar amounts for all sources 
have not yet been calculated.  It is expected that the funding sections of the CIP will be 
completed before next month’s meeting.  Please also note that as staff work continues it is 
likely that some projects will be moved from the six to the twenty year list. 

 
 
Recommended Action 
No action is required.  This item is for information only at this time. Staff will schedule a public hearing 
on the CIP for the October Planning Commission meeting.  At that time the Commission will be asked 
to make a recommendation to the City Council on the CIP. 

170



Planning Commission 
September 23, 2014 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
September 23, 2014 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Bruce Freeman, Greg Wasinger and Mike Piccone  

Absent: Sandi Peterson and Ana Schlecht 
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Services 
Administrator, Mike McIntyre; Senior Planner, Cac Kamak and Associate Planner 
Ray Lindenburg  

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO APPROVE THE AUGUST 26, 2014 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None  
 
PERMIT EXTENSION FOR ADULT DAY CARE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – Public 
Hearing 
Senior Services Administrator, Mike McIntyre detailed the purpose of the building and the 
reason for the conditional use permit extension.  Mr. Powers explained that the Municipal Code 
allows for the use of modular buildings in Public Facilities zoned properties with a conditional 
use permit and recommended the Planning Commission hold a public hearing and adopt the 
Findings, Conclusions and Record of Decision and approve the two-year extension for the use 
of an existing modular structure in the Public Facilities zoning district. 
  
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing for public comment at 7:37 p.m.  Seeing none the 
public hearing was closed.  
 
ACTION: MR FREEMAN MOVED, MR.PICCONE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

ADOPT THE FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECORD OF DECISION AND 
APPROVE THE TWO-YEAR EXTENSION FOR THE USE OF AN EXISTING 
MODULAR STRUCTURE IN THE PUBLIC FACILITIES ZONING DISTRICT. 

 
2015 – 2020 CAPITIAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN – Public Meeting 
Mr. Powers summarized the purpose and background of the Capital Improvement Plan and 
guided the Planning Commission through the organization of the document. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commission asked Mr. Powers if General Funds can be used for capital projects, how 
the amount (1.5 million) for future parks was determined, will rates increase and are the projects 
on schedule.  Planning Commission also asked if the NE 7th Avenue improvements have been 
postponed. 
 
Mr. Powers’ responses: 
General Funds – General Funds can be used for capital projects but General Fund demands 
are too great since they are used for Parks projects, Police, Fire and many of the functions of 
the City. 

171



Planning Commission 
September 23, 2014 

Page 2 of 2 

Future parks – 1.5 million for future parks is an educated guess and is determined by acreage 
and our sense of what past projects and acquisitions have cost us.  The numbers will be refined 
once the projects get started.  
 
Rate increases – rate increases depend on the utility.  Since we knew that the new wastewater 
treatment facility would be a significant expenditure the rates were increased a few years ago.  
We routinely look at our rates and have incremental increases so that we can afford projects. 
 
NE 7th Avenue project – Staff was successful in receiving two grants from the Regional 
Transportation Organization but the City lacked the matching funds so the City had to return the 
grant funds.  The project is still ranked high. 
 
Project schedule – The City tries to make a realistic list of projects that can be accomplished but 
what happens to the list is that other things may come up that take away staff resource to 
administer the projects. That is what typically changes the schedule. 
 
Mr. Powers also noted that the City does a 2-year budget and a 6-year Capital Improvement 
Plan. The City is working to see that the 2-year budget matches the first 2-years of the Capital 
Improvement Plan.  
 
Mr. Powers stated that the goal is to have the Planning Commission public hearing on the CIP 
next month and if the Planning Commission is comfortable with the document make a 
recommendation to the City Council then the City Council will have a public hearing on 
November 5th and they will potentially take action.  If not, the fall-back date will be the November 
18th meeting. 
 
 
ADJOURN: 8:24 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

172



 City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

Bill No. _______________________ 

Date:    October 28, 2014 

Subject: 2014 Comprehensive 

Plan Amendments 

FROM:    Cac Kamak, AICP 

Senior Planner 

PURPOSE  
This memo presents the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  The amendments include 

updates to the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP), amendments to the future land use map to 

correct the UGA boundaries and change the designation of 1000 SE City Beach Street from High 

Density Residential to Public Facilities, and amending Goal 5 of the Urban Design Element to 

add scenic corridors identified through a scenic view study.   

The Planning Commission is requested to open a public hearing at the October 28
th

 meeting and

take public testimony.  The Planning Commission is expected to make a recommendation to the 

City Council on the amendments.     

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 

The Comprehensive Plan for any city includes plans, projects and programs that have a fiscal 

impact on the city’s budget.  Oak Harbor’s Comprehensive Plan includes several elements such 

as Utilities, Transportation, Economic Development, Capital Facilities etc. that includes policies 

and improvements system wide that have fiscal impacts.  However, these are “planning” 

documents and inclusion of project and policies do not directly relate to immediate fiscal 

impacts.  For example, the Capital Improvements Plan
1 

is a planning document that lists the

projects the City anticipates to plan, design and implement over a six year planning period.  It 

includes projects in Enterprise
2
 Funds such as wastewater, stormwater, etc and also Non-

Enterprise Funds such as streets, parks and recreation, fire and law enforcement.  Since this is a 

“planning” document, it includes all the anticipated capital needs of the City and their cost 

estimates and amendments are made every year based on available resources. 

The fiscal impacts to note in an annual comprehensive plan update is the update to the Capital 

Improvements Plan, especially the first two years that relate to the two year budget cycle.  These 

reflect the community’s intention for scheduling and building the projects listed based on the 

funding available.   

The 2014 Amendments that include Future Land Use Map amendments and the amendment to 

include scenic corridors are not anticipated to have any immediate fiscal impacts. 

1 Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) is a six-year planning document and the Capital Facilities Plan (CFP) is a twenty 

year and beyond planning document. 
2 Enterprise Funds are self supporting funds with user fees and includes utilities such as Water, Sewers, Stormwater, 

Solid Waste and Marina 

173



 City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council approved the docket for the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments on March 

18, 2014.  The docket included an update to the Capital Improvements Plan, UGA boundary 

corrections to the Future Land Use Map, Land Use change for 1000 SE City Beach Street from 

High Density Residential to Public Facilities and inclusions of scenic view corridors based on a 

scenic view study.   

 

1000 SE City Beach Street – High Density Residential to Public Facilities 

The property at 1000 SE City Beach Street is owned by the City and designated as High Density 

Residential.  The property was placed on the 2013 docket for a land use change since the City 

determined that the current High Density Residential land use designation is not likely to be 

realized under City ownership. A more appropriate designation would be Public Facilities since 

most land owned by the City is designated as Public Facilities and used as such. The property is 

also under consideration to be used as a private burial ground/cemetery to accommodate the 

cultural resources that were uncovered with the construction of Pioneer Way.  The Planning 

Commission held a public hearing to consider this amendment at its June 24, 2014 meeting.  A 

detailed analysis of this amendment is included in the Planning Commission report (Attachment 

X).  The Planning Commission has recommended amending the Future Land Use map and 

changing the designation from High Density Residential to Public Facilities. 

 

UGA Boundary Correction – Future Land Use Map 

This item was added to the docket to correct the UGA boundary and reflect the County’s 

decision on the 2005 UGA amendments.  Since the Future Land Use map was amended in 2005 

to reflect the changes with a dotted line, the correction to remove these areas must be done 

within the regular amendment process.  The Planning Commission was introduced to this 

amendment on July 22, 2014.  A public hearing on this item was held on August 26, 2014.  

Please refer to the Planning Commission report (Attachment X) for details on this amendment.  

The Planning Commission has recommended amending the Future Land Use map and correcting 

the UGA boundary. 

 

Scenic View Corridors 

The Planning Commission chose to add the Scenic View study to the Comprehensive Plan 

Docket in 2012.  The study was categorized as “Discretionary” in accordance with the priority 

system established in OHMC 18.50.050.  The study was initiated with a public outreach effort 

that solicited photos from citizens on scenic views within Oak Harbor.  The Planning 

Commission also established a weighted criteria system to evaluate the scenic views. Based on 

the public outreach and staff survey, a list of twenty seven views was compiled for the Planning 

Commission’s consideration.  The views were discussed with the Planning Commission and each 

view was rated against the pre-established criteria.  The criteria based evaluation narrowed the 

scenic views of interest to nine potential views.  The Planning Commission reviewed the nine 

potential views and narrowed it down further to 4 views after considering impacts on private 

property.  The Planning Commission has recommended that Goal 5 of the Urban Design Element 

be amended to recognize and protect the four views.  More details on the view study and the 

process of evaluation can be found in the Planning Commission report (Attachment X) 

174



 City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

 

considered on August 26, 2014. 

    

Capital Improvements Plan 2015-2020 –  

The Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) is part of the annual amendments to update revenues and 

adjust schedules on projects.  This year there have been some significant changes to how the 

information is organized within the document.  The newer format is intended to provide more 

information to the public and also assist in project scheduling and planning.  Some of the 

noteworthy projects that are scheduled over the next six years include Whidbey Avenue 

crosswalk(streets), Veteran’s Park trail improvements(streets), NE 7
th

 Avenue(streets), splash 

park(parks), park land acquisition(parks), wastewater treatment facility(wastewater), Ault Field 

booster pump replacement(water), cross city transmission main(water), Scenic Heights Liszak 

outfall(stormwater), animal shelter(general) and a new fire station(general). The first two years 

of the Capital Improvements Plan is closely linked to the budget.  The Planning Commission was 

introduced to the document at its September 23, 2014 meeting.  The Planning Commission is 

requested to hold a public hearing on the CIP and forward a recommendation to the City 

Council. 

 

DISCUSSION 

The Future Land Use Map Amendments (UGA Boundary amendments & 1000 SE City Beach 

Street) and the Scenic View Study have been reviewed against the Comprehensive Plan review 

criteria established in OHMC 18.15.080 and are provided in the Planning Commission reports 

that are attached to this report.  The Capital Improvements Plan 2015-2020 is reviewed against 

the criteria below. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Review Criteria  

In accordance with OHMC 18.15.080 the Planning Commission shall review and make a 

recommendation on the CIP 2015-2020 to the City Council based on the criteria listed below. 

 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in any 

significant way. 

The proposed CIP and related amendments will not adversely affect the public health, 

safety and welfare.   Projects in the CIP are scheduled based on need identified in 

approved plans and are intended to serve the public needs and improve health, safety and 

welfare.   

 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

The proposed CIP and schedule of projects are intended to implement the goals and 

intent of approved Plans and are therefore consistent with the existing goals and policies 

of the Comprehensive Plan.  .  

 

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the Countywide 

Planning Policies. 

The amendments are in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the 

Countywide Planning Polices.  The Capital Improvements Plan includes projects from 

175



 City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

 

other adopted plans.  

  

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community as a 

whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

 The amendments to the Capital Improvements Plan reflect the ongoing changes to 

projects and schedules based on budget, permits or other related issues. The Capital 

Improvements Plan 2015-2020 has been generated by taking into account the changing 

circumstances within the community and based on available resources. 

  

(5) Environmental impact from the amendments have been addressed through the SEPA 

review and /or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

A SEPA checklist has been prepared for the amendments.  No significant environmental 

impacts have been identified with the adoption of the amended CIP.  However, projects 

that are in the CIP may have environmental impacts and mitigation.  Each individual 

project will have a separate SEPA review and impacts will be addressed on a project by 

project basis. 

 

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which were the 

basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 

The projects within the CIP have their source in adopted Plans that are based on the 

projected population growth and allocations.  Therefore there are several projects in the 

CIP that are intended to address level of service issues which is primarily related to land 

use and population growth. 

 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 

neighborhoods. 

The CIP document and its adoption do not create any land use changes.  However, there 

may be individual projects within the CIP that may have to address compatibility during 

permitting and design process.  These will be dealt on a project by project basis. 

 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city council. 

The amendments to the CIP update include decisions made by the City Council during 

the course of the year.   

 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified as the beginning of the process. 

No special criteria were identified as the beginning of the process to consider this year’s 

amendments. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 The Planning Commission is recommended to hold a public hearing on the CIP 2015-202 

and take public testimony.   

 The Planning Commission is requested to forward a recommendation to the City Council 

on the adoption of the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments that include updates to the 

Capital Improvements Plan (CIP), amendments to the future land use map to correct the 

176



 City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

 

UGA boundaries and change the designation of 1000 SE City Beach Street from High 

Density Residential to Public Facilities, and amending Goal 5 of the Urban Design 

Element to add scenic corridors identified through a scenic view study.   

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Planning Commission Report – 1000 City Beach Street 

2. Planning Commission Report – UGA Boundary amendment/correction 

3. Planning Commission Report – Scenic View Corridors 

4. Capital Improvements Plan 2015-2020 

 
 

177



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
October 28, 2014 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Ana Schlecht and 

Cecil Pierce 
Absent: Greg Wasinger and Mike Piccone 
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; City Engineer, 
Joe Stowell; Senior Planner, Cac Kamak and Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg  

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. SCHLECHT SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO APPROVE THE SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None.  
 
SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) – Public Hearing 
Mr. Stowell displayed a PowerPoint presentation (PC Attachment 1) summarizing the purpose, 
background and projects listed in the TIP.  Mr. Stowell concluded by recommending that the 
Planning Commission hold a public hearing and recommend that the City Council to approve 
the 2015-2020 TIP. 
  
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing for public comment at 7:38 p.m.  Seeing none the 
public hearing was closed.  
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commission asked how accessible grants are for the projects listed on the TIP and the 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  Mr. Stowell said that the projects have to meet certain 
criteria and that there are finite funds available. Mr. Powers explained that for the TIP, the focus 
is on Regional Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO) grants which are federal dollars 
that flow through the State, through the County to local jurisdictions.  The primary reason for the 
TIP is to make the projects listed in the TIP eligible for RTPO grant funds.  The grant funds 
listed next to some of the projects in the Capital Improvement Program are staff’s best estimate 
of realistically available sources for grants.  Street projects include RTPO grants and 
Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) grants. 
 
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FREEMAN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT THE 2015-2020 SIX-
YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM. 

 
2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS; 2015 – 2020 CAPITIAL IMPROVEMENT 
PLAN – Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (PC Attachment 2) which summarized the 
Comprehensive Plan amendment process, background, criteria and the amendments which 
include: 
 

• Updates to the Capital Improvement Plan 2015 - 2020  
• Amendment to the future land use map to correct the UGA boundaries  

178



• Amendment to the future land use map to change the land use designation of 1000 SE 
City Beach Street from High Density Residential to Public Facilities 

• Amending Goal 5 of the Urban Design Element to add scenic corridors identified through 
a scenic view study  

 
Mr. Kamak concluded his presentation by recommending that the Planning Commission hold a 
public hearing on the CIP 2015-2020 and make a recommendation to the City Council to adopt 
the 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  
 
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing at 7:58 p.m. for public comment.  Seeing none the 
public hearing was closed. 
 
ACTION: MS. SCHLECHT MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT THE 2014 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS THAT INCLUDE UPDATES TO THE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (CIP), AMENDMENTS TO THE FUTURE 
LAND USE MAP TO CORRECT THE UGA BOUNDARIES AND CHANGE THE 
DESIGNATION OF 1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET FROM HIGH DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL TO PUBLIC FACILITIES, AND AMENDING GOAL 5 OF THE 
URBAN DESIGN ELEMENT TO ADD SCENIC CORRIDORS IDENTIFIED 
THROUGH A SCENIC VIEW STUDY. 

 
DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES – Public Meeting 
Mr. Powers displayed a PowerPoint presentation (PC Attachment 3) which summarized the 
Growth Management Act requirements for county-wide planning policies including what the 
policies must address. Mr. Powers also introduced Will Simpson of the Island County Planning 
and Community Development.   
 
Mr. Powers explained that the county-wide planning policies establish a framework by which all 
of the jurisdictions produce their GMA Comprehensive Plan.  GMA requires that jurisdictions 
have Comprehensive Plans that are consistent with each another and the County takes the lead 
in the process. Mr. Powers stated that the current draft has clear definitions, is more detailed, 
acknowledges differences between rural and urban area and includes a “how to“ section.   
 
The next steps will be to continue work with County & others, a joint workshop with City Council 
and Planning Commission and public hearings with the Planning Commission and then the City 
Council. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commission asked staff about annexations and county enclaves. 
 
Mr. Fakkema asked for public comment seeing none the meeting was adjourned. 
 
ADJOURN: 8:20 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

179



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
Carollo Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 10

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to seek City Council’s approval of Amendment Number 10 to the 
Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers for final design of the new Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(WWTP).

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. a.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
Carollo Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 10

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
The purpose of this agenda bill is to seek City Council’s approval of Amendment Number 10 to the 
Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers for final design of the new Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(WWTP).

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTIONFISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required:    $4,586,959
Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund        

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Background
The City has been actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment facilities with a 
new wastewater treatment facility capable of addressing the current and future needs of the City.

The attached amendment to the consultant agreement increases the scope of services with Carollo 
Engineer’s to provide final design of the wastewater treatment plant.

Scope of Services
The proposed scope of services include the following elements –
- Task 100 – Project Management
- Task 200 – Not Used
- Task 300 – Public Process Support
- Task 400 – WWTP Final Design and Permitting
- Task 500 – Project Delivery Coordination
- Task 600 – Not Used
- Task 700 – Management Reserve

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required:    $4,586,959
Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund        

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Background
The City has been actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment facilities with a 
new wastewater treatment facility capable of addressing the current and future needs of the City.

The attached amendment to the consultant agreement increases the scope of services with Carollo 
Engineer’s to provide final design of the wastewater treatment plant.

Scope of Services
The proposed scope of services include the following elements –
- Task 100 – Project Management
- Task 200 – Not Used
- Task 300 – Public Process Support
- Task 400 – WWTP Final Design and Permitting
- Task 500 – Project Delivery Coordination
- Task 600 – Not Used
- Task 700 – Management Reserve

 11.

180



 
The tasks have been coordinated to match those in the existing contract. Task 200, Value Engineering, 
and 600, Outfall Design, are not necessary elements of the final design amendment. A detailed 
breakdown of each task can be found in Exhibit B, with the cost breakdown shown in Exhibit D-3.
 
Validating Scope of Services
There are several metrics that can be used to validate the cost associated with the proposed scope of 
services; the most common way is to calculate the proposed engineering fee as a percentage of the 
estimated construction cost.
 
Prior to City Council approval of Carollo’s preliminary design amendment in March of 2013 staff 
researched WA industry guidelines, a 2012 benchmark study of numerous similar projects, and specific 
costs of 6 regional MBR plants recently constructed. The results of that research were presented to 
Council on March 19, 2013 and suggested that a reasonable expectation for Oak Harbor would be to 
anticipate engineering fees through final design at 10% of total construction cost.
 
The proposed fee to prepare final design documents for the new WWTP is $4,368,533 with a proposed 
management reserve of $218,427 (5%). When added to the preliminary design (30%) scope of services, 
the total anticipated design costs for WWTP and outfall are estimated to be $6,736,039. The best 
current construction cost estimate for the new Oak Harbor facility is $75,441,030 including the outfall. 
This equates to engineering fees of approximately 8.93% of anticipated construction cost. A spreadsheet 
summary of these figures is presented in the attached Carollo Contract Summary.
 
Schedule
The proposed schedule is shown in Attachment 2 of Amendment 10. The following milestones are 
expected as part of this amendment.

 
The tasks have been coordinated to match those in the existing contract. Task 200, Value Engineering, 
and 600, Outfall Design, are not necessary elements of the final design amendment. A detailed 
breakdown of each task can be found in Exhibit B, with the cost breakdown shown in Exhibit D-3.
 
Validating Scope of Services
There are several metrics that can be used to validate the cost associated with the proposed scope of 
services; the most common way is to calculate the proposed engineering fee as a percentage of the 
estimated construction cost.
 
Prior to City Council approval of Carollo’s preliminary design amendment in March of 2013 staff 
researched WA industry guidelines, a 2012 benchmark study of numerous similar projects, and specific 
costs of 6 regional MBR plants recently constructed. The results of that research were presented to 
Council on March 19, 2013 and suggested that a reasonable expectation for Oak Harbor would be to 
anticipate engineering fees through final design at 10% of total construction cost.
 
The proposed fee to prepare final design documents for the new WWTP is $4,368,533 with a proposed 
management reserve of $218,427 (5%). When added to the preliminary design (30%) scope of services, 
the total anticipated design costs for WWTP and outfall are estimated to be $6,736,039. The best 
current construction cost estimate for the new Oak Harbor facility is $75,441,030 including the outfall. 
This equates to engineering fees of approximately 8.93% of anticipated construction cost. A spreadsheet 
summary of these figures is presented in the attached Carollo Contract Summary.
 
Schedule
The proposed schedule is shown in Attachment 2 of Amendment 10. The following milestones are 
expected as part of this amendment.expected as part of this amendment.
• Notice to Proceed: December, 2014
• 60% Design Submittal: May, 2015
• 90% Design Submittal: September, 2015
• Final Design: December, 2015
 
Summary
Carollo Engineers Consultant Agreement Amendment Number 10 has been reviewed by staff and the 
proposed scope of services appears to be complete and reflect the expected level of effort. Further, the 
proposed fee, as a percentage of estimated construction cost, is 8.93% which is within the previously 
established benchmark expectation of 10% for engineering costs through final design.
 
Anticipated future amendments to the base agreement with Carollo Engineers, beyond amendment 10, 
will likely include the following general scope items:
• Bid period services to support GC/CM bidding for non-self performed work
• Construction support services for WWTP, sitework and outfall
• Preparation of operation and maintenance (O&M) manuals
• Assistance with start-up, training, and facility commissioning

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

expected as part of this amendment.
• Notice to Proceed: December, 2014
• 60% Design Submittal: May, 2015
• 90% Design Submittal: September, 2015
• Final Design: December, 2015
 
Summary
Carollo Engineers Consultant Agreement Amendment Number 10 has been reviewed by staff and the 
proposed scope of services appears to be complete and reflect the expected level of effort. Further, the 
proposed fee, as a percentage of estimated construction cost, is 8.93% which is within the previously 
established benchmark expectation of 10% for engineering costs through final design.
 
Anticipated future amendments to the base agreement with Carollo Engineers, beyond amendment 10, 
will likely include the following general scope items:
• Bid period services to support GC/CM bidding for non-self performed work
• Construction support services for WWTP, sitework and outfall
• Preparation of operation and maintenance (O&M) manuals
• Assistance with start-up, training, and facility commissioning

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

181



PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item was discussed at November 19, 2014 City Council Workshop.

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment Number 10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of 
$4,586,959, which includes a 5% management reserve to be authorized by staff if necessary, for final 
design of the new wastewater treatment plant. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 10
2. Consultant Original PSA
3. Carollo Contract Summary

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.
 
August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
This item was discussed at November 19, 2014 City Council Workshop.

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment Number 10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of 
$4,586,959, which includes a 5% management reserve to be authorized by staff if necessary, for final 
design of the new wastewater treatment plant. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 10
2. Consultant Original PSA
3. Carollo Contract Summary

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.
 
August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.
  
October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.
 
January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo Engineers 
for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.
 
March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

 
October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.
 
January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo Engineers 
for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.
 
March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

182



Consultant Agreement Amendment 
Number 10 

Organization and Address 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 

Phone: 360-279-4500 

Original Agreement Title:  Engineering 
Services for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and 
Facilities Plan 
Project Number:  8549A.00 (Amendments 1-5) 
8549A.10 (Amendment 6,7,8,9,10) 

Execution Date 
09/16/10 

Completion Date (Prior) 
December 2014 

Project Title:  Engineering, Facilities Plan and 
Preliminary Design 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
$7,907,388 

Description of Work:  This Amendment authorizes services to complete final design documents 
and assist the City in negotiating a Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) with the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM). 

The City of Oak Harbor  
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with     Carollo Engineers, Inc.______  
and executed on __09/16/10_____ and identified as Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan. 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scope of Services (Exhibit B) for additional phases of work. ____ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following: 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

183



PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO:  January 2016 _____________________ 
TIME OF COMPLETION – SCOPE OF SERVICES:  _______________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
The maximum total contract value is increased from $3,320,429 to $7,907,388. This maximum 
upper limit includes a Management Reserve of $218,427that must be authorized in writing by the 
City prior to use. Exhibit D-3 summarizes the level of effort associated with Amendment 10 
services. _______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  

If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 

By:  Brian R. Matson, Senior Vice President By:  Scott Dudley, Mayor 

Consultant Signature Approving Authority Signature 

Date 

184



 

November 20, 2014 Page 1 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

FINAL DESIGN PHASE 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed Preliminary Design documents and Value 
Engineering (VE) for a new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) and marine outfall constructed 
in the “Windjammer Vicinity” on approximately 2.5 acres. The new membrane bioreactor (MBR) 
treatment facility will treat 3.2 mgd, maximum month basis by the year 2030, and is expandable 
to treat projected Year 2060 flows generated within the City’s service area (5.3 mgd, maximum 
month basis). The project will be completed in several phases using the general 
contractor/construction manager (GC/CM) “heavy civil” method of delivery, with Hoffman, Inc. 
serving as the City’s GC/CM. 
 
This Scope of Services is authorized as an amendment to an existing contract between the City 
and Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo), and includes the following activities: 
 

 Coordinating procurement of process equipment (e.g. MBR, ultraviolet (UV) disinfection, 
solids processing) by the GC/CM. 

 Developing final engineering documents for negotiating a Maximum Allowable 
Construction Cost (MACC) and final bidding of the following project elements, which may 
be constructed in multiple packages: 
 Early sitework, including clearing, demolition, shoring installation, and excavation; 
 WWTP construction (liquid and solids stream process and non-process 

[administration, laboratory, and maintenance] facilities); 
 A 200-seat training facility integrated with the new administration building; and 
 Surrounding sitework and landscaping as shown on Attachment 1, including the 

extension of Bayshore Drive along the southern boundary of the new WWTP and 
parking for the WWTP and training facility. 

 Assisting the City in obtaining permits for the work, as defined herein. 
 For the work packages described above, assisting the City in negotiating a MACC with 

the GC/CM at the 90 Percent level of design. 
Subsequent phases are anticipated to include: 

 Bid period services to support GC/CM bidding of work packages outside of self-
performed work. 

 Construction Support Services for the WWTP and Outfall Projects. 
 Preparation of Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manuals. 
 Start-up, Training, and Facility Commissioning. 
 Assistance with securing NPDES Discharge and Biosolids Permits. 

 

185



 

November 20, 2014 Page 2 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

Project Team 
 
Carollo will serve as the Prime Consultant for the Project, and will be responsible for overall 
Project management and delivery. In completing the work defined by this Scope of Services, 
Carollo is authorized to use the following Subconsultants: 
 

Subconsultant Role 
ESA  Environmental/Cultural Resources Permitting Support 
EnviroIssues (EI) Public Meeting Facilitation and/or Support 
MWA Architects (MWA)  Architectural Design Services 
GeoEngineers (Geo) Geotechnical Design Services 
Greenworks P.C. (GW) Landscape Architectural Design Services 
Webster Environmental (WE) Odor Control Design Services 
Harmsen Associates, Inc. (HAI) Topographical Surveying, Stormwater 
Notes: 
1) Structural, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing (S, MEP) subconsultants performing under MWA will 

be used for non-process building design. Specific budgets and deliverables for these activities are 
included in this Scope of Services. 

2) Specialty subconsultants for air quality permitting and noise abatement will be added as needed. Not-
to-exceed budget allowances for these activities are included in this Scope of Services. 

 
Related Documents 
 
The following documents provide background information for this project:  

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Evaluation, City of Oak Harbor, October 2007. 
 City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Sewer Plan, TetraTech/KCM, December 2008. 
 City of Oak Harbor Draft Facilities Plan, Carollo, March 2013. 
 Preliminary Design Documents, Carollo, November 2013. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Carollo (Consultant) will provide engineering and other services for the City of Oak Harbor 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Final Design Phase (Project), as defined by this Scope of 
Services. Work products submitted electronically will be produced using software as defined 
below: 

 Word Processing Microsoft Word 
 Spreadsheets  Microsoft Excel 
 Scheduling  Microsoft Project 
 Drawings  Bentley MicroStation and Portable Document Format (PDF) 

 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 

 Task 100 Project Management. 
 Task 200 Not Used. 
 Task 300 Public Process Support. 
 Task 400 WWTP Final Design and Permitting. 

186



 

November 20, 2014 Page 3 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

 Task 500 Project Delivery (GC/CM) Coordination. 
 Task 600 Not Used. 
 Task 700 Management Reserve. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
A preliminary schedule for the Project is attached (Attachment 2). The Schedule defines 
anticipated durations for major tasks, Project milestones, and major deliverable dates, assuming 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) in December 2014. Throughout this Scope of Services, anticipated 
delivery dates for major deliverables are established based on this preliminary schedule. The 
Consultant and City recognize that the preliminary schedule and corresponding delivery dates 
are subject to change, should NTP be issued after December 2014 and/or for other reasons. 
Schedule changes may be approved by the City without an amendment to this Scope of 
Services, provided both Consultant and City staff approve of the change. An amendment 
modifying the Project schedule and dates for major deliverables will be issued if required by 
either the City or Consultant. 
 
TASK 100 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
The objective of this task is to manage and coordinate engineering and related services 
required for Project completion. Consultant will provide the following services for Task 100: 
 
Subtask 110 – Project Management Plan 
 
Update the existing Project Management Plan (PMP) including scope, work plan and products, 
work breakdown structure, budget, schedule, organization and staffing, communication protocol, 
and project standards within ten (10) days of NTP. Monitor the PMP throughout the project and 
provide one update of the PMP upon request by the City. 
 
Subtask 111 – Quality Management 
 
Develop and follow a Quality Management Plan (QMP) for the Project to be included in the 
PMP. Review technical memos, documents, drawings, reports, and address review comments 
addressed prior to submission in accordance with the QMP. For major work products develop a 
Record of Comment (ROC) to document City comments and Consultant responses. 
 
Subtask 110 Assumptions: 

1. The PMP will be updated once during the project. 
2. Budget for Consultant’s QA/QC activities is included in Task 400. 

 
Subtask 120 – Project Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Manage the Project team to track time and budget, work elements accomplished, work items 
planned for the next period, manpower, scope changes, and time and budget needed to 
complete this Scope of Services. Prepare monthly project status reports that compare work 
accomplished with schedule activities and compare expenditures with task budgets, and submit 
reports to the City’s Project Manager with monthly invoices. Document expenditures on a task 
basis, and show hours by project personnel and other direct expenses related to work. Include a 

187



 

November 20, 2014 Page 4 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

project S-curve developed using Earned Valve Management (EVM) detailing anticipated 
progress, percent complete, and percent billed for each month. 
 
Subtask 120 Assumptions:  

1. Total Project duration for this phase is 12 months. 
 
Subtask 130 – Project Management Meetings 
 
Schedule and conduct Project Management Meetings throughout the project as directed by the 
City’s Project Manager. Meetings will be used to discuss project status, action items, and 
potential areas of concern. Publish meeting minutes with Action Items that require a response 
by team members, City staff, or other agencies identified at the meeting. A draft of the minutes 
will be submitted to the City within three (3) working days after the meeting. The final version will 
be submitted within five (5) working days after comments on the draft have been received from 
the City. 
 
Subtask 130 Assumptions:  

1. Up to six (6) Project Management Meetings will be held. 
2. Agendas, meeting minutes, and Action Items will be distributed electronically by the 

Consultant to City’s Project Manager. 
 
Task 100 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

(1) Updated PMP 110 January 2015 

(12) Monthly Invoices and Progress Reports 120 Monthly 

(6) Project Management Meeting Agendas 130 As Needed 

(6) Project Management Meeting Action Items Log 130 As Needed 
 
TASK 200 – (NOT USED) 
 
TASK 300 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 
 
The objective of this task is to continue supporting the City’s public process efforts for the 
project. As defined below, the City will lead public process activities for the Project, with 
significant support from the Consultant. Consultant will provide services for Task 300 as defined 
by the following Subtasks. 
 
Subtask 310 – (Not Used) 
 
Subtask 320 – (Not Used) 
 
Subtask 330 – (Not Used)  
 

188



 

November 20, 2014 Page 5 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

Subtask 340 – Public Meetings/City Council Workshops 
 
Assist in planning for and delivering joint Public Meetings/City Council Workshops, defined 
below. Participate in up one (1) preparation session for each meeting. Coordinate with City staff 
to direct Public Meetings/Workshops and produce one (1) draft and one (1) final summary 
(minutes). For each meeting: assist City to arrange for suitable meeting locations; prepare 
meeting plans; produce presentation materials; develop sign-in sheets and public comment 
forms; develop draft and final agendas; and develop draft and final meeting 
announcements/save the date notices.  
 

Public Meeting/Council Workshop Objectives 

P1 – Public Meeting No. 1, Q1 2015 
(Input on Final Design Progress) 

Report Project Status 
Obtain Input to Assist With Final Design Decisions 
Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P2 – Public Meeting No. 2, Q2 2015 
(Input on Final Design Progress) 

Report Project Status 
Obtain Input to Assist With Final Design Decisions 
Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P3 – Public Meeting No. 3, Q4 2015 
(Input on MACC and Next Steps) 

Report Project MACC and Next Steps 
Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

 
Subtask 340 Assumptions: 

1. Public Meetings will be held in conjunction with City Council Workshops to enhance 
efficiency for sharing information. 

2. The City will arrange and pay for meeting locations and facilities. 
3. The City will publish announcements in the local paper and include notices of meetings 

on their website. 
4. The City will pay for all costs related to meeting notifications, including printing and 

postage.  
 
Subtask 350 – Working Group Meetings 
 
Working Group Meetings will be used to inform design decisions related to project features, 
architecture, public spaces, landscaping, etc. Assist City in planning for and conducting two (2) 
Working Group Meetings during the final design process. Coordinate with City staff to prepare 
information necessary to communicate design layouts, facility and landscaping renderings, and 
to obtain input. Document input and issue meeting minutes with decisions to City. 
 
Subtask 350 Assumptions: 

1. Working Group Meetings will held at City of Oak Harbor facilities 
2. City staff will select community participants, schedule meetings, and communicate with 

participants as needed to maximize participation. 
3. Working Group Meetings will be attended by approximately six (6) to twelve (12) 

members of the community, in addition to Consultant and City staff. 

189



 

November 20, 2014 Page 6 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

4. Consultant Project Manager, Design Manager, Lead Architect, and Lead Landscape 
Architect will attend Working Group Meetings. 

5. Deliverables include two (2) renderings to communicate facility architecture and 
landscaping concepts. 

 
Subtask 360 – Council Meeting/Workshop Participation 
 
Assist the City in planning and conducting up to six (6) Council Meetings or Workshops during 
the final design phase, to cover information as needed and directed by the City. Prepare 
meeting objectives, agendas, roles and responsibilities, and presentation materials in advance 
of the meetings. Participate in up to one (1) preparation session for each meeting. 
 
Subtask 360 Assumptions: 

1. Council Meetings/Workshops will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 
2. The City will coordinate announcements for meetings and deliver meeting materials to 

attendees. 
3. Consultant Project Manager will attend City Council Meetings/Workshops, and assist 

City staff in presenting technical information as requested. 
 
Subtask 370 – Public/Stakeholder Involvement Product Development 
 
In consultation with City staff, develop a project website and periodically update the website 
content. Other options for products and activities, subject to Oak Harbor authorization and 
decisions from the PIP include:  

 Project brochures/mailers. 
 In consultation with City staff, the Consultant may produce a segment for the City of Oak 

Harbor public access channel. As directed, Consultant will prepare a script and be 
involved in organizing productions that are filmed and produced by the City. 

 Consultant will assist with strategy and development of presentations for local 
community groups made by City staff. 

 
Task 370 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff/consultants.  

2. City will print and send materials to the public.  
3. Costs for production of materials and Public Access TV productions are paid by the City 

outside of this contract. 
 
Task 300 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date
(4) Public Meeting/Council Workshop Materials 340 Per Schedule 

(2) Working Group Meeting Materials and Minutes 350 Per Schedule 

(6) Presentations for Council/Committee Meetings 360 Per Schedule 

190



 

November 20, 2014 Page 7 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date
(1) Project Website 370 As Needed 

(12) Updates to Project Website 370 As Needed 

(6) Project Brochure/Public Information Materials 370 As Needed 

(1) Public Access TV Production Plan 370 As Needed 
 
TASK 400 – WWTP FINAL DESIGN AND PERMITTING 
 
The objective of this task is to complete a Final Design of the recommended WWTP (as defined 
in the Preliminary Design Documents) to 100 percent level of completion, and assist the City in 
obtaining permits as defined by Attachment 3. The Final Design will consist of Final Design 
Drawings and Specifications. The expected project elements list for the WWTP is included as 
Attachment 4. 
 
Final Design documents will be submitted in electronic (PDF) and hard copy format for City and 
GC/CM review. Five (5) hard copies of will be provided. City and GC/CM review comments will 
be documented using the Record of Comment (ROC) log. Comments, modifications, and 
revisions to the Design documents will be incorporated during subsequent development of 
design documents. 
 
Subtask 410 – (Not Used) 
 
Subtask 420 – (Not Used) 
 
Subtask 430 – (Not Used) 
 
Subtask 450 – Technical Team Meetings 
 
The objective of this task is to collect information from City staff, enhance communication with 
the design team, and to present design concepts. Plan for and conduct up to (10) Technical 
Team Meetings during the final design process, to review and discuss design information and to 
review 60 and 90 percent design documents. Prepare information necessary to communicate 
with City staff and obtain input. Document input and issue meeting minutes with decisions to 
City. 
 
Subtask 450 Assumptions: 
 

1. Technical Team Meetings will held at City of Oak Harbor facilities 
2. Technical Team Meetings will be approximately four (4) hours in duration. 
3. Approximately three (3) members of Consultant design team will attend each meeting, 

including Design Manager and other necessary staff/discipline engineers. 
4. Meeting materials and minutes will be distributed electronically. 

 
Subtask 460 – (Not Used) 
 
 

191



 

November 20, 2014 Page 8 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

Subtask 470 – Final Design 
 
Perform engineering work to develop a final set of contract documents (drawings and technical 
specifications) for construction of the WWTP based on the Preliminary Design Submittal 
(November 2014), and incorporated review comments received from the City. The Detailed 
Design will be documented with three submittals as defined by the following subtasks.  
 
Subtask 471 – 60 Percent Design 
 
The 60 Percent Submittal will advance the project design from 30 percent status to 
approximately a 60 percent level of completion, including the incorporation of City and GC/CM 
comments (as approved by City). Some drawings will be more complete than others; overall the 
level of completion for this submission will be approximately 60 percent and will include the 
following elements: 

 Written response log to City comments on the Preliminary Design Submittal. 
 Five (5) half-sized (11” x 17”) hard copy sets of the following 2D drawings: 

 General Drawings. 
 Paving and Grading Drawings. 
 Yard Piping Drawings. 
 Preliminary Landscaping Plans. 
 Architectural Plans and Elevations. 
 Structural Plans and Sections of major structures. 
 Mechanical Plans and Sections of major process areas. 
 Preliminary Odor Control Plans. 
 Electrical One Line Diagrams and MCC Elevations. 
 Electrical Site Plans. 
 Preliminary Electrical Power and Control Plans. 
 Preliminary Electrical Lighting Plans. 
 Preliminary Electrical Grounding Plans. 
 Tagging System. 
 Control Block Diagram. 
 P&IDs. 

 Five (5) hard copy sets of select 3D renderings based on the 60 percent model. 
 Five (5) hard copy sets of the following specifications: 

 Work Restrictions/Construction Sequencing. 
 Draft Structural Specifications. 
 Major Equipment Specifications. 
 Piping Schedule. 
 Electrical Equipment Specifications. 
 Control Strategies. 

 60 Percent Construction Cost Estimate (Budget included under Subtask 477). 

192



 

November 20, 2014 Page 9 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

 
Subtask 472 – 90 Percent Design 
 
The 90 Percent Submittal will incorporate City and GC/CM comments (as approved by the City) 
to the 60 Percent Submittal. The engineering design will be substantially complete, and the 
plans will show all sections and details. The 90 Percent Submittal will be made when the 
drawings and specifications have been checked by Consultant’s independent multidisciplinary 
review team, and the check comments have been incorporated, as defined by Subtask 474. 

 Written response log to City comments on the 60 Percent Design Submittal. 
 Five (5) half-size (11”x17”) hard copy sets of drawings. 
 Five (5) hard copy sets of select 3D renderings based on the 90 percent model. 
 Five (5) hard copy sets of the final specifications. 

 
Subtask 473 – Final Design 
 
The Final Design Submittal will be made when the project is 100 percent complete, including 
incorporation of City and GC/CM comments (as approved by the City) to the 90 Percent 
Submittal. All plans and specifications will be stamped and signed by an engineer registered in 
the State of Washington. The anticipated Final Design Submittal drawing list is included in 
Attachment 5. The anticipated Final Design Submittal specification list is included in Attachment 
6. 
 
Subtask 474 – Quality Assurance/Quality Control 
 
The objective of this task is to prepare a Quality Management Plan (QPM) for the project and 
administer Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) procedures in accordance with the QMP. 
All documents will be subject to Consultant’s standard quality management procedures for 
planning, coordination, checking, reviewing, and scheduling the work. Signatures of the 
respective checkers will be included where appropriate. 
 
Administer detailed quality control procedures to provide plans and specifications that meet the 
standard of care for public works construction. Develop a quality management approach that 
includes work from the Preliminary Design through the preparation of the Final Contract 
Documents. Specific quality management tasks include: 
 

 Prepare a Quality Management Plan for the project that addresses Project 
Communications; File Management/Document Control; Format and Standards for 
Documents; Quality Assurance Procedures; and Project Review Team (consisting of 
qualified individuals not directly involved in the design or supervision of the work). 

 Complete 60 Percent Design Review, including: 
 Detailed review of the 60 Percent Design Submittal by the project design team. 
 Discipline checks on all design calculations, drawings, specifications, cost estimates, 

and reports. 

193



 

November 20, 2014 Page 10 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

 Complete 90 Percent Design Review, consisting of: 
 A multidisciplinary design review (check) by the Project Review Team, prior to 

submitting 90 Percent Design to the City, to provide a final quality check and 
design/discipline coordination. 

 
Subtask 475 – Early Site Preparation Package 
 
The objective of this task is to prepare a separate and early set of design documents for 
completing site preparation for the new WWTP. Site preparation is expected to include: 
demolition of existing WWTP facilities; site clearing and contractor staging area preparation; site 
security and contractor’s temporary facilities; installation of shoring and dewatering systems; 
excavation; and stockpiling of excavated material. 
 
Prepare a set of stand-alone design documents, including select site and demolition plans 
(approximately 20 drawings), and technical specifications needed for the Early Site Preparation 
Package. The stand-alone set of documents will be suitable for bidding or negotiated self-
performance by the GC/CM. 
 
Subtask 476 – Solids Dryer Equipment Procurement 
 
The objective of this task is to assist the City in selecting a manufacturer for solids drying 
equipment using a competitive bidding or GC/CM negotiated procurement process. Final design 
information prepared under Task 400 will be developed around the selected equipment 
manufacturer based on the specific details of the selected solids drying equipment 
manufacturer. 
 
Prepare documents for solids drying equipment procurement, including: preliminary layout 
drawings for each manufacturer; general ancillary facility requirements; and required technical 
specifications. Coordinate with City and GC/CM staff to include terms, conditions, and contract 
times (submittal dates and delivery dates) into procurement documents. Meet with City and 
GC/CM staff to review draft documents, incorporate comments, and issue final documents. 
 
Assist the City during the equipment procurement period by answering questions from the solids 
drying equipment manufacturers and preparing addenda. Assist the City and GC/CM in 
evaluating all bids/proposals and in selecting equipment manufacturer. 
 
Subtask 476 Assumptions: 

1. Bid documents will be prepared and bids solicited for up to three (3) solids drying 
equipment manufacturers. 

2. The contract for the selected manufacturer will include assistance with design phase. 
Contracts for production and delivery of process equipment will be the responsibility of 
the City’s GC/CM. 

3. Consultant standard procurement documents will be used for technical and front-end 
documents, in coordination with the GC/CM. 

4. One (1) addendum will be prepared during the equipment procurement period. 
5. The City will cover reproduction costs for bid sets as required. 

 

194



 

November 20, 2014 Page 11 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

Subtask 477 – Cost Estimate Development 
 
The objective of this task is to revise and update the Engineer’s Opinion of Probable 
Construction Costs (cost estimate) developed at the conceptual design level as part of 
preliminary design. Revise, update and submit cost estimates at the following levels of design 
development: 

 30 Percent Cost Estimate, based on preliminary design documents developed during the 
preliminary design phase. 

 60 Percent Cost Estimate, based on 60 percent design documents developed during the 
final design phase. 

 
Subtask 470 – Architectural Design and Associated Subconsultants 
 
Architectural Design will be led by MWA Architects (MWA). General Architecture will include the 
following (in addition to supporting Task 300 activities as defined): 

 Design of site elements and landscaping as shown in Attachment 1. 
 Overall design of facility aesthetics and composition. 
 Complete architectural design of non-process building including Admin, Maintenance, 

Interpretive Lobby, and Training Facility, including: 
 Management of and coordination with MWA sub-consultants for non-process building 

structure, plumbing, HVAC, electrical, lighting, and fire protection. 
 Interior design. 
 Water Quality Laboratory design. 
 Fixture, Furniture, and Equipment selection, design, placement – assume 

coordination with a local furniture rep to help specify modular furniture. 
 Building signage design – interior room and exterior building signage. 

 Design support for Process Buildings, including: 
 Architectural building enclosures; walls, roofs, floor plans showing exiting, doors, 

windows, relites, and canopies. 
 Space planning assistance. 
 Operational considerations. 
 Code analysis and diagrams. 
 Building signage. 

 QA/QC process for each milestone deliverable. 
 Cost estimating assistance. 
 Coordination with GC/CM. 

 
MWA will retain three (3) sub-consultants to assist in development and documentation of the 
architectural portion of the design, including: 
 
Greenworks, P.C. (GW) will provide the following design services (in addition to supporting Task 
300 activities as defined): 

195



 

November 20, 2014 Page 12 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

 Hardscape and landscape design from edge of building to property line or ROW curb, 
including a public plaza. 

 Irrigation design. 
 Input and advice on site lighting. 
 Leadership for initial site stormwater design and grading at workshop with Consultant, 

who will then complete the technical drawings and specifications. 
 QA/QC process for each milestone deliverable. 
 Cost estimating assistance. 
 Coordination with GC/CM. 

 
WRK Engineers (WRK) will provide structural engineering for non-process buildings, and limited 
assistance with architectural elements within process buildings, including: 

 Full structural design and coordination of non-process building (maintenance, admin, 
lab, interpretive lobby, training facility). 

 Engineering design assist for process facility wall and roof design. 
 QA/QC process for each milestone deliverable. 
 Cost estimating assistance. 
 Coordination with GC/CM. 

 
Interface Engineers (IA) will provide HVAC, Plumbing, and Electrical design for non-process 
buildings, and plant-wide Fire Protection (performance specification for Design Build delivery of 
this element), including: 

 Full service design for mechanical, plumbing, electrical, and lighting of non-process 
building. 

 Low voltage raceway design for non-process building. 
 Performance based specification for fire sprinkler and fire alarm systems for entire 

facility. 
 Note that energy modeling for LEED certification or other sustainability benchmarks, 

energy consulting, envelope design, and alternative energy systems design are 
excluded from this authorized Scope of Services. 

 
Subtask 470 Assumptions 

1. Consultant will continue work on all aspects of the project while City staff reviews prior 
design submittals. The City and GC/CM will provide a comment log in electronic format 
to document comments for each submittal. City and GC/CM comments will be combined 
and coordinated, and conflicting comments resolved, before forwarding to Consultant. 
Consultant will respond to each comment on a response log, and City comments (and 
GC/CM comments approved by City) will be incorporated as appropriate and submitted 
with the next project submittal. 

2. Plans and specifications will be prepared in accordance with the standard of care for 
public works construction. The facilities will be designed in accordance with the latest 
editions of the pertinent codes and regulations, as adopted by the City or as agreed to 

196



 

November 20, 2014 Page 13 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

by the City and Consultant. Specifications will be based on the Construction 
Specifications Institute MasterFormat 95 numbering standard. 

3. Construction contract front end documents will be provided by the City or GC/CM. 
Consultant will provide project-specific edits to the front end documents for coordination 
with the technical specifications and project design requirements. 

4. WWTP improvements will be modeled using three-dimensional (3D) software 
(Microstation format) to facilitate design reviews. The model may be used by the GC/CM 
for convenience. 

5. The Final Contract Plans will be two-dimensional (2D) drawings that are extracted from 
the 3D model. The final 2D drawings will be delivered in Microstation format. 

6. For the 60 Percent and 90 Percent submittals, Typical Details will be submitted in 8-1/2” 
x 11” format, similar to the specifications. As part of the Final Submittal, Typical Details 
will be incorporated into the Drawings. 

7. The budget is based on preparing two (2) packages of Final Design documents for 
construction of the project, including: Early Site Preparation and WWTP Construction. 
For each of these two packages, Consultant will provide comprehensive final design 
drawings, technical specifications, and contract documents for construction. Parsing of 
the design for subcontractor bid packages for particular portions of the work into 
subcontractor bid packages will be completed by the GC/CM using the Final Design 
Submittal packages prepared by Consultant. 

8. A Geotechnical Basis of Design Report will be submitted with the 30 Percent 
Documents. The budget for Final Design includes an allowance for Geotechnical 
coordination (up to 120 hours) plus associated Technical Memoranda and/or Letter 
Reports to document recommendations. No further geotechnical exploration, sampling 
or analysis is planned. 

9. The City will complete a comment log in electronic format and Consultant will respond to 
each comment on a response log. City comments will be incorporated into the 
subsequent Submittal. Comments that are not incorporated will be logged with a 
description as to why they were not incorporated for City review. 

10. Detailed construction schedules will be prepared by the GC/CM. Consultant will 
coordinate with the GC/CM for overall project duration, major schedule milestones, and 
schedule constraints. Consultant will also provide a review of GC/CM schedules for 
general conformance with the project design requirements and submit review comments 
to the City and GC/CM. 

11. Significant changes to the Consultant’s design based on GC/CM input for value 
engineering, constructability, and risk management will be authorized by the City. 
Budget to incorporate authorized changes will be covered through Task 700 – 
Management Reserve. 

 

197



 

November 20, 2014 Page 14 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

Subtask 470 Deliverables 
 
Deliverable  Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

(10) Technical Team Meeting Materials and Notes 450 Per Schedule 

(5) 60 Percent Design Submittal (WWTP) 471 Per Schedule 

(5) 90 Percent Design Submittal (WWTP) 472 Per Schedule 

(5) Final Design Submittal (WWTP) 473 Per Schedule 

(5) QA/QC Materials 474 Per Schedule 

(5) Final Design Submittal (Early Site Prep) 475 Per Schedule 

(5) Draft and Final Procurement Documents 476 Per Schedule 

(5) 30 Percent Cost Estimate 477 Per Schedule 

(5) 60 Percent Cost Estimate 477 Per Schedule 
 
Subtask 480 – Permitting Support 
 
The objective of this task is to support the City with permitting activities and applications 
required to construct the WWTP improvements. This task is based on the permits identified by 
the Consultant during the preliminary design phase of the project as documented in Attachment 
3. Consultant’s level of effort associated with this Subtask, as further defined by assumptions 
and deliverables below, is estimated at 300 hours plus $30,000 for support by a specialty 
subconsultant (ESA). Additional effort authorized by the City will be covered by Task 700 – 
Management Reserve. 
 
Subtask 480 Assumptions: 

1. The City has separately contracted technical services to support the Section 106 
consultation documentation (cultural resources). The results of the studies may be used 
by Consultant as a technical basis to support other permits. Consultant will provide up to 
40 hours of services to review and coordinate associated documentation.  

2. The developed design will not overlap with the delineated Class III wetland immediately 
west of the WWTP site but will impact the associated buffer. Consultant will develop a 
Conceptual Wetland Buffer Mitigation Plan based on the guidelines presented in the 
Interagency guidance on Wetland Mitigation in Washington State issued by the Corps, 
Ecology, and the EPA in 2006. 

3. The justification provided to abandon the existing outfall in place is acceptable to the 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to receive the aquatic land lease permit for the 
proposed outfall. No additional data collection is required. 

4. Endangered Species Act (ESA) consultation with EPA and the Services has been 
completed for the WWTP project. No further action for ESA consultation is required. 

5. Lead and analyze results from up to six (6) forage fish sampling events immediately prior 
to on-site construction efforts for the outfall. 

6. The Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be developed by the GC/CM. 

198



 

November 20, 2014 Page 15 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

7. Consultant will attend and participate in up to three (3) pre-application meetings with City 
staff. Up to 40 hours is allocated for preparation and participation of permit coordination 
and pre-app meetings. 

8. The Grading and Site Plan Review Permit Applications will be submitted in two (2) parts 
to support the early sitework and WWTP construction phases of work. 

9. All applications will be transmitted to the City for final review and submittal to the lead 
agency. Consultant will provide up to 40 hours for technical support and responses to 
agency comments. 

10. All permit application fees will be paid directly by the City. 
11. The City will lead public/hearing examiner effort and determination on whether the 

WWTP site will undergo a zoning code change or conditional use application. Consultant 
will provide technical support documents, as requested. 

12. Consultant will quantify air quality pollutant emissions based on modeling of proposed 
systems and evaluation against the pollutant threshold levels. The level of effort 
assumes that the air treatment and dissipation strategy proposed in the preliminary 
design results in an agency exemption from new source review based on a “de minimus 
impact” (below the acceptable threshold impact level that is assumed to be protective of 
health and safety in compliance with Chapter 173-460 WAC). 

13. The following potential activities are excluded from Consultant’s authorized scope, and 
may be authorized by the City out of Task 700 – Management Reserve on an as needed 
basis: 
a. Wetland buffer mitigation design for elements that extend beyond areas shown in 

Attachment 1. 
b. Transportation impact study following confirmation of parking needs, and associated 

traffic engineering calculations and support. 
 
Subtask 480 Deliverables: 

1. Draft and Final Agendas, supporting information, and meeting minutes with Decisions 
and Action Items for three (3) pre-app meetings.  

2. Draft permit applications transmitted electronically for City review. 

3. Final applications incorporating one consolidated set of client comments (electronic files 
and up to seven (7) hard copies) for submission to the lead agency. 

4. Up to six (6) brief reports presenting findings from results of forage fish survey (1 per 
sampling event) for submittal to WDFW. 

5. The following Environmental Permit Applications: 
a. Addendum to SEPA Checklist.  
b. Update to SERP documentation.  
c. Shoreline Substantial Development. 
d. Conceptual wetland buffer mitigation plan. 
e. Review comments for Section 106 documentation. 
f. Critical area ordinance package with brief reports (CARA, geo-hazard, frequently 

flooded). 

199



 

November 20, 2014 Page 16 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

g. Notice of Construction with air quality exemption justification. 

6. The following WWTP Development Permit Applications: 
a. Site Plan Review Type II (2 parts). 
b. Grading permit (2 parts). 
c. Demolition. 
d. Building Occupancy (mechanical, plumbing, electrical). 
e. Fire – Construction Plan review.  
f. Air quality – minor source review. 
g. Right of Way.  
h. Floodplain development. 

 
Subtask 490 – Biosolids Management Plan 
 
The objective of this task is to prepare a biosolids management plan to document conformance 
of the City’s plan to reuse and/or dispose of biosolids consistent with the requirements of the 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 173-308 and the Biosolids Management Guidelines for 
Washington State (Ecology, 2000). 
 
Determine the expected quantity of waste activated sludge (WAS), and thermally dried biosolids 
to be produced on an annual and monthly basis at milestones throughout the design life of the 
facility. Develop and evaluate alternatives for disposal of and beneficial use of biosolids 
produced at the WWTP, including liquid and dewatered WAS (disposal), and thermally dried 
biosolids (disposal or reuse). 
 
For each alternative, summarize regulatory requirements, life-cycle costs, and other non-cost 
factors that should be considered in selecting the preferred alternative(s). Assist the City in 
identifying potential locations for land application or other beneficial reuse, and in determining 
an overall strategy to incorporate these sources into an overall biosolids management strategy. 
Review and evaluate potential phasing scenarios that could be used to implement the 
recommended alternative(s).  
 
Summarize results of the analysis and recommend next steps that will likely include permitting, 
monitoring, and reporting requirements, public outreach activities, or other marketing activities 
needed for successful plan implementation. Participate in up to two (2) meetings with the 
Washington Department of Ecology (Ecology) to review potential alternatives, phasing 
scenarios, and recommended plan. 
 
Subtask 490 Assumptions 

1. WAS and biosolids production rates will be determined at startup (Year 2017), midpoint 
(Year 2022), and Year 2030 using biological models developed during Facilities 
Planning.  

2. Alternatives for beneficial reuse of thermally dried biosolids will include: local bulk land 
application, local distribution as a soil amendment, hauling to Eastern Washington, and 
biofuel sources. Alternatives for disposal are expected to include landfilling of dewatered 
WAS or dried biosolids, and/or interim pumping of liquid WAS to the existing lagoon at 
Crescent Harbor. 

200



 

November 20, 2014 Page 17 of 17 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Scope_Final Design_141119.docx 

3. Preparation of and application for permits, public outreach activities, and marketing 
plans that may be required to implement the recommended alternative(s) are not 
included in this Scope of Services. 

 
Subtask 490 Deliverables 

1. Draft and Final Biosolids Management Plan. 
2. Ecology meeting materials and minutes. 

 
TASK 500 – PROJECT DELIVERY (GC/CM) COORDINATION 
 
Subtask 510 – GC/CM Coordination 
 
The objective of this task is to coordinate with the GC/CM in developing and validating cost 
estimates for the project, including: 

 Review/comment on GC/CM Cost Estimating Methodology. 
 Review/validate 30 Percent Cost Estimate: Participate in two (2) half-day meetings with 

the GC/CM to assist in developing and reconciling the 30 Percent Cost Estimate. 
 Review/validate 60 Percent Cost Estimate: Participate in two (2) half-day meetings with 

the GC/CM to assist in developing and reconciling the 30 Percent Cost Estimate. 
 
Subtask 510 Assumptions: 

1. Two (2) individuals from the Consultant’s design team will attend the 30 and 60 Percent 
cost development coordination meetings. 

2. Additional meetings and coordination efforts with the GC/CM (outside of those defined 
under Tasks 400 and 500) will be authorized by the City. Budget for authorized efforts 
will come from Task 700 – Management Reserve.  

 
Subtask 510 Deliverables: 

1. Written comments to GC/CM Estimating Methodology Report. 
2. Written comments to 30 and 60 Percent Construction Cost Estimates. 

 
TASK 600 – (NOT USED) 
 

201



Attachment 1 
Approximate Limits of Project and Landscaping  

Treatment Plant 

APPROX. LIMITS OF 
PROJECT & LANDSCAPING 

NOTE: ENTRANCE TO PARKING 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE BASED ON 

“PHASE 1” BAYSHORE EXTENSION 

202



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors
1 DESIGN PHASE 705 days Mon 4/1/13 Fri 12/11/15

2 TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 325 days Mon 4/1/13 Mon 6/30/14

6 TASK 200 - VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT 126 days Mon 4/1/13 Mon 9/23/13

22 TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 705 days Mon 4/1/13 Fri 12/11/15

57 TASK 400 - PRELIMINARY DESIGN 283 days Wed 10/23/13 Fri 11/21/14

101 Subtask 470 - Final Design 275 days Mon 11/24/14 Fri 12/11/15

102 Subtask 471 - 60% Design 135 days Mon 11/24/14 Fri 5/29/15 96

103 Subtask 472 - 90% Design 70 days Mon 6/1/15 Fri 9/4/15 102

104 Subtask 473 - Final Design 40 days Mon 10/19/15 Fri 12/11/15105

105 Subtask 474 - QA/QC 30 days Mon 9/7/15 Fri 10/16/15 103

106 TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY OPTIONS/COORDINATION 160 days Wed 10/23/13 Tue 6/3/14

125 Subtask 510 - GC/CM Coordination 275 days Mon 11/24/14 Fri 12/11/15102SS

F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2013 2014 2015

Task

Critical Task

Milestone

Summary

Rolled Up Task

Rolled Up Critical Task

Rolled Up Milestone

Rolled Up Progress

Split

External Tasks

Project Summary

Group By Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

Progress

Deadline

ATTACHMENT 2 - PROJECT SCHEDULE

Page 1

Project: DRAFT Predesign Schedule_1
Date: Wed 11/19/14

203



Attachment 3 ‐ Oak Harbor WWTP and Outfall Projects ‐ Permit Matrix with no impacts to wetland and the CORPs permits outfall for continuous use with NMFS concurrence

Design/Construction Activity S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D

Antic. 

Applic. 

Preparer

Antic. 

Prep. Lead Agency

Antic. 

Review/ 

Approval

Package 

Ref.

2014 2015 2016 2017

Status

pw:\\PHX‐POP‐PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Schedule\OH Permitting Matrix.xlsx:No TP wetland impacts Printed: 11/13/2014

Design/Construction Activity S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D

1 WWTP 30% Design Development

2 WWTP 60% Design Development

3 WWTP 90% Design Development

4 WWTP Final Design

5 Early WWTP Sitework Construction

Preparer Prep. Lead Agency Approval Ref. Status

5 Early WWTP Sitework Construction 

6 WWTP Construction

7 WWTP Commissioning

8 Outfall 100% Design/Bid

9 Outfall Construction

Permitting Activity
10 SEPA Environmental Checklist

outfall

treatment plant

11 SERP

SERPESA 6 mo. Ecology 2 mo. MDNS  Issued 9/11/13. Addendum to MDNSw/ updated TP description.

Outfall and TP selected for FY2015. Currently finalizing cross‐cutter 11 SERP

outfall

treatment plant

12 NPDES Discharge Permit

treatment plant CE 2‐4 wk. Ecology 3‐6 mo. Not started

13 Biosolids Disposal Application (coverage under general permit)

6 mo. Ecology 2 mo.ESA

Outfall and TP selected for FY2015. Currently finalizing cross cutter 

review prior to fund issuance. Updates required (w/o Navy) for project 

description & sole source aquifer checklist.

13 Biosolids Disposal Application (coverage under general permit)

treatment plant CE 4 wk. Ecology 3‐6 mo. Not started. Prepare Biosolids Management Plan first.

14 NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit

outfall Hoff. 2 wk. Ecology 1‐2 mo. Not started

treatment plant Hoff. 1 mo. Ecology 1‐2 mo. Not started

15 S ti 404

Biosolids Management Plan

15 Section 404

outfall ‐ NWP 12

treatment plant

16 Section 401 

outfall
JARPA

ESA 1 mo. Corps 6‐12 mo. JARPA Submitted 2013. Pending w/ CORPs ‐ Mtg needed?

Submitted 2013. Concurrent with Section 404.ESA 1 mo. Ecology 6‐12 mo.
treatment plant

17 CZM Concurrency

outfall

treatment plant

18 Hydraulic Project Approval 

JARPA

Issued 10/31/13. May need to be revised to reflect outfall removal (see 

Submitted 2013.  Concurrent with Section 404.

ESA 1 mo. Ecology 6‐12 mo. JARPA Submitted 2013.  Concurrent with Section 404.

ESA 1 mo. Ecology 6‐12 mo.

y j pp

outfall ESA 2‐4 wk. WDFW 1‐2 mo. JARPA

19 Aquatic Land Lease

outfall ESA ‐‐‐ DNR 3‐6 mo. Justification provided

20 Section 106 Review ‐ NHPA

outfall ERCI 1 mo. DAHP 6‐12 mo. Submitted 7/14/14. Under review. Timing?

/ / y (

DNR).

outfall ERCI 1 mo. DAHP 6 12 mo. Submitted 7/14/14. Under review. Timing?

treatment plant ERCI 1 mo. DAHP 6‐12 mo., 18? Conducting field investigations. Timing?

21 Archaeological Excavation Permit

outfall ERCI 2‐4 wk. DAHP 2 mo. Not started?

treatment plant ERCI 2‐4 wk. DAHP 2 mo. Not started?

22 Air Quality notice of construction (permit needed?)22 Air Quality ‐ notice of construction (permit needed?)

treatment plant CE 2‐4 wk. NWCAA 2‐3 mo. Not started

23 Shoreline Substantial Development

outfall ESA 2‐4 wk. OHDS/Ecology 2‐6 mo. Ecology reviewing draft

treatment plant ESA 2‐4 wk. OHDS/Ecology 2‐6 mo. Not started

l ( h f fl d d) / k d               Critical Areas ID (CARA, geo haz, freq flooded) CE/Geo 2‐4 wk. OHDS 2‐6 mo. Not started

24 Building Permit Review/Occupancy Permit

treatment plant (mechanical, plumbing, electrical) CE/Hoff. 1 mo. OHDS 1‐3 mo. Not started

25 Grading Permit

outfall CE 2‐4 wk. OHDS 2‐3 mo. Not started?

review occupancy

treatment plant CE 2‐4 wk. OHDS 2‐3 mo. Not started

26 Floodplain Development Permit 

outfall CE 2‐4 wk. OHDS 2‐4 wk. Not started

treatment plant CE 2‐4 wk. OHDS 2‐4 wk. Not started, need wetland delineation

27 Right‐of‐Way Permit/ Street Opening Inspection Permitg y / p g p

treatment plant CE 2‐4 wk. OHDS 1 wk. Not started

28 Site Plan Review Type II 

treatment plant (landscape, heavy civil, stormwater) CE 2‐4 wk. OHDS 4 mo. Not started

29 C‐3 Zoning Use

treatment plant OHDS 2‐4 wk. OHDS 1‐3 mo.? Not started. Code change or conditional use?

r insp

treatment plant OHDS 2‐4 wk. OHDS 1‐3 mo.? Not started. Code change or conditional use?

30 Boundary Line Adjustment

treatment plant OHDS 2‐4 wk. OHDS 2‐4 wk.? Not started.

31 Demolition Permit

treatment plant CE 1 mo. OHDS 1‐3 mo. Not started. 

32 Transportation Concurrency/Impact32 Transportation Concurrency/Impact

treatment plant CE 2‐4 wk. OHDS 2‐4 wk. Not started

33 Fire Marshal ‐ Construction Plan Review Permit/Inspection

treatment plant (fire alarm, sprinkler, standpipe, chem.) CE 1 mo. OHDS 1‐3 mo. Not started. Submitted with Building Permit review? review inspection

pw:\\PHX‐POP‐PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Schedule\OH Permitting Matrix.xlsx:No TP wetland impacts Printed: 11/13/2014pw:\\PHX‐POP‐PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Schedule\OH Permitting Matrix.xlsx:No TP wetland impacts Printed: 11/13/2014

204



 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements_Final Design.docx 

ATTACHMENT 4 
MAJOR PROJECT ELEMENTS LIST 

 
The Scope of Services for the Oak Harbor WWTP Final Design Project will result in a full set of 
contract plans and specifications for the recommended Phase 1 improvements without 
substantial changes as required by the State of Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 173-
240-060. The Scope of Services for Preliminary Design Documents is based on the major 
elements identified in the following Project Elements List: 
 
 

Facility Area 
 

Name 
0X General  
1X Yard Site Systems 
2X Preliminary Treatment 
3X Aeration/Equalization Basin 
4X Membrane System  
5X UV Disinfection/Effluent Equalization 
6X Solids Handling 
7X Ancillary Systems 

 Gallery (mechanical equipment) 
 Chemical System 
 Odor Control  
 Standby Generator  

8X Non-Process Facilities 
 Administration Building 
 Maintenance Building 
 Electrical Building 
 Landscaping  
 Public Areas 

 

Facility Area 0X – General  
General information for the overall project such vicinity and location maps, design 
data/schematics, existing site/utilities, and explanation for symbols and abbreviations. Area 
includes: 
Design Criteria. 
Process Flow Diagrams. 
Hydraulic Profile. 
Notes, Schedules, and Abbreviations. 
Building Analysis. 

205



 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements_Final Design.docx 

Facility Area 1X – Yard Site Systems 
Plans depicting new structure footprints, locations, and orientation onsite/offsite. 
1. Existing Facility Demolition. 
2. Site Preparation. 
3. Anticipated ground improvements such as stone columns. 
4. Off-site Yard Utilities: 

1. Influent Diversion Structure from collection system and piping to site. 
2. Piping to effluent outfall connection. 

5. Electrical site service. 
6. Paving and Grading. 
7. On site Stormwater System.  
8. Routing of general process piping. 
9. Routing of Small Diameter Piping Utilities (during final design):  

a. Potable Water. 
b. Non-Potable Water (potable with air gap). 
c. Plant Water (low pressure). 
d. Plant Water (high pressure). 
e. Natural Gas. 
f. Service/Instrument Air. 
g. Plant Building/Process Drains. 
h. Fire Flow Water. 

10. Routing of Other Utilities (during final design): 
a. Electrical distribution system. 
b. Communication Devices. 
c. Site Lighting. 
d. Site Security. 
e. Telephone/Fiber Optic System. 

Facility Area 2X – Preliminary Treatment 
Plans depicting specific preliminary treatment components: 
1. First-stage coarse screening. 
2. Screenings washer/compactor. 
3. Influent pump station. 
4. Influent flow measurement and sampling. 
5. Grit removal system and grit handling. 
6. Flow splitting to flow equalization basin. 
7. Second-stage fine screening. 

206



 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements_Final Design.docx 

Facility Area 3X – Aeration/Equalization Basins 
Plans depicting specific secondary components: 
1. Flow distribution structure. 
2. 2-below grade aeration basins (4 stages) in MLE configuration (2 anoxic zones, 2 aerobic 

zones). 
3. 1-below grade flow equalization basin with provisions to convert to aeration basin in the 

future. 
4. Associated mechanical equipment. 
5. Fine bubble diffusers in each aerobic zone. 
6. Flow equalization pump system. 
7. Scum handling (spray and removal), flushing systems, etc. 

Facility Area 4X – Membrane System 
Initial design will be capable of accommodating footprint needs of proven manufacturers to 
assist in early procurement. Final design will be based on specific requirements of selected 
manufacturer. General components include: 
1. 5 –MBR trains/tanks. 
2. Membrane cassettes and ancillary instrumentation. 
3. Provisions for 1 future MBR train. 

Facility Area 5X – UV Disinfection/Effluent Equalization 
Initial design for UV Disinfection and effluent system will be capable of accommodating footprint 
needs of proven manufacturers to assist in early procurement. Final design will be based on 
specific requirements of selected manufacturer. General components include: 
1. 3-trains of ultraviolet (UV) disinfection reactor units, cleaning system, power distribution, 

and control. 
2. Flow measurement per train. 
3. Single Effluent equalization/storage tank. 

Facility Area 6X – Solids Handling 
Solids handling will produce Class B solids for components include: 

1. Aerated WAS storage tank. 
2. Dewatering systems and equipment. 
3. Thermal drying facilities. 
4. Truck loadout facilities. 

Facility Area 7X – Ancillary Systems 
Ancillary facility areas support the main process units. Specific components include: 
1. Mechanical Gallery below-grade. 

a. Aeration basin blowers. 
b. Membrane blowers. 
c. Membrane feed pumps (mixed liquor pump station). 
d. Membrane permeate pumps and flow measurement per train. 

207



 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements_Final Design.docx 

e. Plant water pump system. 
2. Chemical Systems: 

a. Sodium hydroxide (NaOH) feed for alkalinity content. 
b. Sodium hypochlorite (NaOCl) feed for membrane cleaning and potentially to support 

odor control and/or introduction of chlorine residual. 
c. Citric acid or phosphoric acid feed for membrane cleaning and potentially UV cleaning 
d. Lime feed for solids stabilization. 

3. Odor Control System – odor scrubbing technology to treat foul air streams. Areas scrubbed 
are anticipated to include: 
a. Headworks. 
b. Aeration Basins. 
c. Pump wetwells/open channels. 
d. Solids handling area (to extent necessary) 

4. Standby Generator – a single diesel unit capable of providing continuous operation for the 
entire facility in the event of a loss of utility power. The unit will be housed in the mechanical 
building and sound dampening devices will be employed to decrease the noise level while 
in operation.  

Facility Area 8X – Non-Process Buildings 
Process support buildings and areas highly visible/accessed by the public: 
1. Administration Building meeting ADA standards to support plant control, meeting/training, 

break areas, restroom/lockers, building mechanical systems, office(s), and laboratory. 
2. Maintenance Building for plant maintenance activities such as disassembling pumps, 

working on instrumentation, and in-house fabrication. The building will include a parking 
stall /loading dock. 

3. Electrical Building for housing electrical equipment such as main switch gear, motor control 
centers, variable frequency drives, programmable logic controllers, and other control 
panels. 

208



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
GENERAL

1 00 G 01 COVER SHEET
2 00 G 02 DRAWING INDEX - 1
3 00 G 03 DRAWING INDEX - 2
4 00 G 04 DESIGN CRITERIA
5 00 G 05 PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM
6 00 G 06 HYDRAULIC PROFILE
7 00 G 07 OVERALL SITE PLAN
8 00 G 08 ABBREVIATIONS
9 00 G 09 PIPING SYMBOLS AND GENERAL MECHANICAL NOTES

10 00 G 10 HVAC SYMBOLS AND NOTES
11 00 G 11 GENERAL STRUCTURAL NOTES - 1
12 01 G 12 GENERAL STRUCTURAL NOTES - 2
13 00 G 13 ARCHITECTURAL SYMBOLS AND CODE ANALYSIS
14 00 G 15 CODE PLAN - HEADWORKS AND SOLIDS
15 00 G 16 CODE PLAN - SECONDARY TREATMENT
16 00 G 17 CODE PLAN - ADMIN AREA
17 00 G 18 CODE PLAN - MAINTENANCE AREA
18 00 G 19 CODE PLAN - COMMUNITY AREA
19 00 G 20 CODE PLAN - ELECTRICAL/GEN/BLOWERS BUILDING
20 00 G 21 EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE
21 00 G 22 STAGING PLAN

CIVIL
22 10 C 01 VICINITY PLAN AND GENERAL CIVIL NOTES
23 10 C 02 SITE DEMOLITION KEY PLAN
24 10 C 03 SITE DEMOLITION PLAN - 1
25 11 C 04 SITE DEMOLITION PLAN - 2
26 12 C 05 SUB-GRADE PREPARATION AT STRUCTURES - 1
27 13 C 06 SUB-GRADE PREPARATION AT STRUCTURES - 2
28 14 C 07 SUB-GRADE PREPARATION AT STRUCTURES - 3
29 10 C 08 SUB-GRADE PREPARATION AT STRUCTURES - 4
30 10 C 09 TEMP UTILITY RELOCATION
31 10 C 10 UTILITY RELOCATION DETAILS
32 10 C 11 EARLY CIVIL PACKAGE NOTES, STAGING AND SPECIAL DETAILS
33 10 C 12 EARLY CIVIL SHEET PILE PLAN -1
34 10 C 13 EARLY CIVIL SHEET PILE PLAN - 2
35 10 C 14 EARLY CIVIL SHEET PILE TIE-BACK AND DETAILS
36 10 C 15 EARLY CIVIL DETWATERING PLAN AND DETAILS
37 10 C 16 TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN AND DETAILS
38 10 C 17 PAVING AND GRADING COORDINATE CONTROL DATA
39 10 C 18 SITE PAVING AND GRADING - 1
40 10 C 19 SITE PAVING AND GRADING - 2
41 10 C 20 SITE PAVING AND GRADING - 3
42 10 C 21 SITE PAVING AND GRADING - 4
43 10 C 22 YARD PIPING - 1
44 10 C 23 YARD PIPING - 2
45 10 C 24 YARD PIPING - 3
46 10 C 25 YARD PIPING - 4
47 10 C 26 PLANT DRAIN AND STORM DRAIN SCHEMATICS
48 10 C 27 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
49 10 C 28 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
50 10 C 29 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
51 10 C 30 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
52 10 C 31 ENTRANCE GATES PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
53 10 C 32 ENTRANCE GATES SECTIONS AND DETAILS
54 10 C 33 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
55 10 C 34 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL DETAILS - 1

SHEET 
NO DWG NO.

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 1 of 12

11/13/2014
209



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
56 10 C 35 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL DETAILS - 2
57 10 C 36 MISCELLANEOUS CIVIL DETAILS - 1
58 10 C 37 MISCELLANEOUS CIVIL DETAILS - 2

SUPPORT FACILITIES STRUCTURAL
59 01 S 01 GENERAL NOTES
60 01 S 02 SCHEDULES
61 01 S 03 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 1
62 01 S 04 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 2
63 01 S 05 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 3
64 01 S 06 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 4
65 01 S 07 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 5
66 01 S 08 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 6
67 01 S 09 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 7
68 01 S 10 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 8
69 01 S 11 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 9
70 01 S 12 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING  - FRAMING PLANS - 10
71 01 S 13 ELEVATIONS - 1
72 01 S 14 ELEVATIONS - 2
73 01 S 15 ELEVATIONS - 3
74 01 S 16 ELEVATIONS - 4
75 01 S 17 ELEVATIONS - 5
76 01 S 18 DETAILS - 1
77 01 S 19 DETAILS - 2
78 01 S 20 DETAILS - 3
79 01 S 21 DETAILS - 4
80 01 S 22 DETAILS - 5
81 01 S 23 DETAILS - 6
82 01 S 24 DETAILS - 7
83 01 S 25 DETAILS - 8
84 01 S 26 DETAILS - 9
85 01 S 27 DETAILS - 10
86 01 S 28 DETAILS - 11

PROCESS STRUCTURAL
87 20 S 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
88 20 S 02 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
89 20 S 03 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ROOF FRAMING PLAN
90 20 S 04 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS - 1
91 20 S 05 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS - 2
92 20 S 06 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
93 20 S 07 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
94 20 S 08 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
95 20 S 09 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 4
96 20 S 10 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 5
97 20 S 11 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 6
98 30 S 01 SECONDARY TREATMENT - BUILDING OVERVIEW PLAN
99 30 S 02 SECONDARY TREATMENT - BOTTOM PLAN - 1

100 30 S 03 SECONDARY TREATMENT - BOTTOM PLAN - 2
101 30 S 04 SECONDARY TREATMENT - BOTTOM PLAN - 3
102 30 S 05 SECONDARY TREATMENT - BOTTOM PLAN - 4
103 30 S 06 SECONDARY TREATMENT - TOP PLAN - 1
104 30 S 07 SECONDARY TREATMENT- TOP PLAN - 2
105 30 S 08 SECONDARY TREATMENT - TOP PLAN - 3
106 30 S 09 SECONDARY TREATMENT - TOP PLAN - 4
107 30 S 10 SECONDARY TREATMENT - ROOF FRAMING PLAN - 1
108 30 S 11 SECONDARY TREATMENT - ROOF FRAMING PLAN - 2
109 30 S 12 SECONDARY TREATMENT - ROOF FRAMING PLAN - 3 (AERATION BLOWER BLDG)

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 2 of 12

11/13/2014
210



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
110 30 S 13 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS - 1
111 30 S 14 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS - 2
112 30 S 15 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS - 3
113 30 S 16 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS - 4
114 30 S 17 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS - 5
115 30 S 18 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (BASINS) - 1
116 30 S 19 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (BASINS) - 2
117 30 S 20 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (BASINS) - 3
118 30 S 21 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (BASINS) - 1
119 30 S 22 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (BASINS) - 2
120 30 S 23 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (BASINS) - 3
121 30 S 24 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (PROCESS BLDG) - 1
122 30 S 25 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (PROCESS BLDG) - 2
123 30 S 26 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (PROCESS BLDG) - 3
124 30 S 27 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (PROCESS BLDG) - 4
125 30 S 28 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (BLOWER BLDG) - 1
126 30 S 29 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (BLOWER BLDG) - 2
127 30 S 30 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (MISC) - 1
128 30 S 31 SECONDARY TREATMENT - SECTIONS AND DETAILS (MISC) - 2
129 50 S 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - PLAN
130 50 S 02 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - ROOF FRAMING PLAN
131 50 S 03 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS
132 50 S 04 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - DETAILS - 1
133 50 S 05 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - DETAILS - 2
134 50 S 06 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - DETAILS - 3
135 60 S 01 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - BOTTOM PLAN
136 60 S 02 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - TOP PLAN
137 60 S 03 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS - 1
138 60 S 04 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS - 2
139 60 S 05 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - DETAILS - 1
140 60 S 06 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - DETAILS - 2
141 70 S 01 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING - PLANS
142 70 S 02 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING - SECTIONS 
143 70 S 03 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
144 70 S 04 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING - DETAILS - 1
145 70 S 05 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING - DETAILS - 2
146 70 S 06 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING - DETAILS - 3
147 90 S 07 PERIMETER ROOF - PLANS
148 90 S 08 PERIMETER ROOF - SECTIONS
149 90 S 09 PERIMETER ROOF - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
150 90 S 10 PERIMETER ROOF - DETAILS

SUPPORT FACILITIES MECHANICAL
151 01 M 01 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - SCHEDULES
152 01 M 02 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - EAST (MAINTENANCE)
153 01 M 03 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - SOUTHWEST (ADMIN)
154 01 M 04 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (LOBBY)
155 01 M 05 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (TRAINING)
156 01 M 06 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 1
157 01 M 07 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 2
158 01 M 08 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 3

SUPPORT FACILITIES FIRE PROTECTION
159 01 FP 01 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - SCHEDULES
160 01 FP 02 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - EAST (MAINTENANCE)
161 01 FP 03 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - SOUTHWEST (ADMIN)
162 01 FP 04 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (LOBBY)
163 01 FP 05 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (TRAINING)

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 3 of 12

11/13/2014
211



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
164 01 FP 06 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 1
165 01 FP 07 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 2
166 01 FP 08 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 3

SUPPORT FACILITIES FIRE PLUMBING
167 01 P 01 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - SCHEDULES
168 01 P 02 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - EAST (MAINTENANCE)
169 01 P 03 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - SOUTHWEST (ADMIN)
170 01 P 04 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (LOBBY)
171 01 P 05 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (TRAINING)
172 01 P 06 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 1
173 01 P 07 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 2
174 01 P 08 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 3

PROCESS MECHANICAL
175 20 M 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM  PLAN
176 20 M 02 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP  PLAN
177 20 M 03 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PARTIAL PLAN - 1
178 20 M 04 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PARTIAL PLAN - 2
179 20 M 05 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PARTIAL PLAN - 1
180 20 M 06 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PARTIAL PLAN - 2
181 20 M 07 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PARTIAL PLAN - 3
182 20 M 08 HEADWORKS BUILDING - DRAINAGE PLAN
183 20 M 09 HEADWORKS BUILDING - VENTILATION PLAN
184 20 M 10 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
185 20 M 11 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
186 20 M 12 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
187 20 M 13 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 4
188 20 M 14 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 5
189 20 M 15 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 6
190 30 M 01 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
191 30 M 02 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - TOP PLAN
192 30 M 03 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - SECTIONS
193 31 M 01 AERATION BASIN 1 - BOTTOM PLAN
194 31 M 02 AERATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
195 31 M 03 AERATION BASIN 2 - BOTTOM PLAN
196 31 M 04 AERATION BASIN 2 - TOP PLAN
197 31 M 05 EQUALIZATION BASIN - BOTTOM PLAN
198 31 M 06 EQUALIZATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
199 31 M 07 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
200 31 M 08 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
201 31 M 09 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
202 31 M 10 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 4
203 32 S 01 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING PLAN
204 32 S 02 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING SECTIONS - 1
205 32 S 03 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING SECTIONS - 2
206 32 S 04 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING DETAILS - 1
207 32 S 05 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING DETAILS - 2
208 32 S 06 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING DETAILS - 3
209 33 S 01 WAS STORAGE BOTTOM PLAN
210 33 S 02 WAS STORAGE TOP PLAN
211 33 S 03 WAS STORAGE SECTIONS AND DETAILS
212 34 M 01 MEMBRANE BIO-REACTOR - BOTTOM PLAN
213 34 M 02 MEMBRANE BIO-REACTOR - TOP PLAN
214 34 M 03 MEMBRANE BIO-REACTOR - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
215 34 M 04 MEMBRANE BIO-REACTOR - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
216 34 M 05 MEMBRANE BIO-REACTOR - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
217 34 M 06 MEMBRANE BIO-REACTOR - DETAILS - 1

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 4 of 12

11/13/2014
212



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
218 34 M 07 MEMBRANE BIO-REACTOR - DETAILS - 2
219 34 M 08 MEMBRANE BIO-REACTOR - DETAILS - 3
220 35 M 01 RAS/WAS PUMPING - PLAN
221 35 M 02 RAS/WAS PUMPING - SECTIONS
222 35 M 03 RAS/WAS PUMPING - DETAILS
223 36 M 01 UV DISINFECTION - PLAN
224 36 M 02 UV DISINFECTION - SECTIONS
225 36 M 03 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
226 37 M 01 CHEMICAL FACILITY - PLAN
227 37 M 02 CHEMICAL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
228 37 M 03 CHEMICAL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
234 37 M 04 CHEMICAL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
230 38 M 01 UTILITY WATER SYSTEM - PLAN
231 38 M 02 UTILITY WATER SYSTEM - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
232 38 M 03 UTILITY WATER SYSTEM - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
233 40 M 01 PLANT DRAIN PUMP STATION - PLAN
234 40 M 02 PLANT DRAIN PUMP STATION - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
235 50 M 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
236 50 M 02 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - TOP PLAN
237 51 M 03 TRUCK LOADOUT - PLANS
238 50 M 04 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
239 50 M 05 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
240 50 M 06 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
241 51 M 07 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 4
242 50 M 08 TRUCK LOADOUT - SECTION AND DETAILS
243 60 M 01 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - PLAN
244 60 M 02 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 1
245 60 M 03 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 2
246 60 M 04 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS - 3
247 70 M 01 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING PLAN
248 70 M 02 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING SECTIONS 
249 70 M 03 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING DETAILS - 2
250 70 M 04 ELECTRICAL/GENERATOR BUILDING DETAILS - 1

ARCHITECTURAL
251 00 A 01 OVERALL ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN/KEY PLAN
252 00 A 02 OVERALL ROOF PLAN
253 00 A 03 OVERALL ELEVATIONS
254 00 A 04 PERSPECTIVE RENDERING FROM SW
255 00 A 05 PERSPECTIVE RENDERING FROM WIB BUILDING
256 00 A 06 PERSPECTIVE RENDERING TO SOUTH ALONG CITY BEACH
257 00 A 07 OVERALL ROOF PLAN
258 00 A 08 OVERALL ELEVATIONS - 1
259 00 A 09 OVERALL ELEVATIONS - 2
260 00 A 10 RENDERED ELEVATION + WALL SECTION - Non Process #1
261 00 A 11 RENDERED ELEVATION + WALL SECTION - Non Process #2
262 00 A 12 RENDERED ELEVATION + WALL SECTION - West
263 00 A 13 RENDERED ELEVATION + WALL SECTION - North
264 00 A 14 RENDERED ELEVATION + WALL SECTION - East 
265 00 A 15 RENDERED ELEVATION + WALL SECTION - South
266 00 A 16 RENDERED ELEVATION + WALL SECTION - Gate
267 00 A 17 OVERALL SECTIONS
268 00 A 18 VERTICAL ASSEMBLIES - 1
269 00 A 19 VERTICAL ASSEMBLIES - 2
270 00 A 20 HORIZONTAL ASSEMBLIES - 1
271 00 A 21 HORIZONTAL ASSEMBLIES - 2
272 00 A 22 WINDOW SCHEDULES
273 00 A 23 WINDOW TYPES

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 5 of 12

11/13/2014
213



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
274 00 A 24 DOOR AND LOUVER SCHEDULES
275 00 A 25 DOOR AND LOUVER TYPES
276 00 A 26 F,F, & E AND FINISH SCHEDULES
277 00 A 27 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - DOORS
278 00 A 28 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - WINDOWS
279 00 A 29 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - LOUVERS AND OTHER PENETRATIONS
280 00 A 30 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - EXTERIOR - 1
281 00 A 31 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - EXTERIOR - 2
317 00 A 32 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - EXTERIOR - 3
283 00 A 33 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - EXTERIOR - 4
284 00 A 34 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - INTERIOR - 1
285 00 A 35 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - INTERIOR - 2
286 00 A 36 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - INTERIOR - 3
287 00 A 37 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - INTERIOR - 4
288 00 A 38 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - GATES AND SCREENING - ELEVATIONS - 1
289 00 A 39 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - GATES AND SCREENING - ELEVATIONS - 2
290 00 A 40 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - GATES AND SCREENING - DETAILS - 1
291 00 A 41 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - GATES AND SCREENING - DETAILS - 2
292 00 A 42 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - SIGNAGE
293 00 A 43 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - MISC - 1
313 00 A 44 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - MISC - 2
295 00 A 45 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - MISC - 3
296 00 A 46 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - MISC - 4
313 00 A 47 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - MISC - 5
298 00 A 48 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - MISC - 6
299 00 A 49 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - MISC - 7
300 00 A 50 ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS - MISC - 8
301 01 A 01 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL/KEY PLAN
302 01 A 02 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN - OVERALL/KEY PLAN
303 01 A 03 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - EAST (MAINTENANCE)
304 01 A 04 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - MEZZANINE (MAINTENANCE)
305 01 A 05 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - SOUTHWEST (ADMIN)
306 01 A 06 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (LOBBY AND STAIR)
307 01 A 07 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (TRAINING FACILITY)
308 01 A 08 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - RCOF PLAN
309 01 A 09 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER RCP - EAST (MAINTENANCE)
310 01 A 10 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER RCP - SOUTHWEST (ADMIN)
311 01 A 11 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER RCP - NORTH (LOBBY AND STAIR)
312 01 A 12 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER RCP - NORTH (TRAINING FACILITY)
313 01 A 13 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FF&E PLAN - EAST (MAINTENANCE)
314 01 A 14 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FF&E PLAN - SOUTHWEST (ADMIN)
315 01 A 15 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FF&E PLAN - NORTH (LOBBY AND STAIR)
316 01 A 16 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER FF&E PLAN - NORTH (TRAINING FACILITY)
317 01 A 17 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - ELEVATIONS - SOUTH X 2 (@ 1/4" SCALE)
318 01 A 18 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - ELEVATIONS - WEST X 2 (@ 1/4" SCALE)
319 01 A 19 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - ELEVATIONS - NORTH X 2 (@ 1/4" SCALE)
320 01 A 20 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - ELEVATIONS - EAST X 2 (@ 1/4" SCALE)
321 01 A 21 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - BUILDING SECTIONS - 1
322 01 A 22 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - BUILDING SECTIONS - 2
323 01 A 23 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - BUILDING SECTIONS - 3
324 01 A 24 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - BUILDING SECTIONS - 4
325 01 A 25 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - STAIR SECTIONS - 1
326 01 A 26 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - STAIR SECTIONS - 2
327 01 A 27 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - WALL SECTIONS - 3
328 01 A 28 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - WALL SECTIONS - 4
329 01 A 29 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - ENLARGED PLANS - LAB, BREAK ROOM, CONFERENCE ROOM
330 01 A 30 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - ENLARGED PLANS - LOCKER ROOMS, RESTROOMS
331 01 A 31 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - ENLARGED PLANS - TRAINING FACILITY SUPPORT AREAS - KITCHEN, ETC

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 6 of 12

11/13/2014
214



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
332 01 A 32 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - 1
333 01 A 33 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - 2
334 01 A 34 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - 3
335 20 A 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - FLOOR PLAN
336 20 A 02 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
337 20 A 03 HEADWORKS BUILDING - RCP
338 20 A 04 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ELEVATIONS - 1
339 20 A 05 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ELEVATIONS - 2
340 20 A 06 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BUILDING SECTIONS
341 30 A 01 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN
342 30 A 02 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN
343 30 A 03 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
344 30 A 04 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - LOWER FLOOR RCP
345 30 A 05 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - UPPER FLOOR RCP
346 30 A 06 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - ELEVATIONS - 1
347 30 A 07 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - ELEVATIONS - 2
348 30 A 08 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - BUILDING SECTIONS - 1
349 30 A 09 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - BUILDING SECTIONS - 2
350 32 A 01 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING - FLOOR PLAN
351 32 A 02 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
352 32 A 03 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING - RCP
353 32 A 04 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING - ELEVATIONS
354 32 A 05 AERATION BLOWER BUILDING - BUILDING SECTIONS
355 50 A 01 SOLIDS HANDLING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN
356 50 A 02 SOLIDS HANDLING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN
357 50 A 03 SOLIDS HANDLING - LOWER FLOOR RCP
358 50 A 04 SOLIDS HANDLING - UPPER FLOOR RCP
359 50 A 05 SOLIDS HANDLING - ROOF PLAN
360 50 A 06 SOLIDS HANDLING - ELEVATIONS - 1
361 50 A 07 SOLIDS HANDLING - ELEVATIONS - 2
362 50 A 08 SOLIDS HANDLING - SECTIONS
363 50 A 09 SOLIDS HANDLING - ENLARGED VIEWS/STAIR SECTION
364 70 A 01 ELECTRICAL BUILDING - FLOOR PLAN
365 70 A 02 ELECTRICAL BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
366 70 A 03 ELECTRICAL BUILDING - RCP
367 70 A 04 ELECTRICAL BUILDING - ELEVATIONS - 1
368 70 A 05 ELECTRICAL BUILDING - ELEVATIONS - 2
369 70 A 06 ELECTRICAL BUILDING - BUILDING SECTIONS

LANDSCAPING
370 05 L 01 MATERIALS PLAN FOR SITE HARDSCAPE AND PLANT SIDE ROW
371 05 L 02 LAYOUT PLAN FOR SITE HARDSCAPE AND PLANT SIDE ROW
372 05 L 03 PLANTING PLAN
373 05 L 04 IRRIGATION PLAN
374 05 L 05 SITE DETAILS - 1
375 05 L 06 SITE DETAILS - 2
376 05 L 07 SITE DETAILS - 3
377 05 L 08 SITE DETAILS - 4
378 05 L 09 SITE DETAILS - 5
379 05 L 10 SITE DETAILS - 6
380 06 L 11 PLANTING DETAILS - 1
381 07 L 12 PLANTING DETAILS - 2
382 08 L 13 IRRIGATION DETAILS - 1
383 09 L 14 IRRIGATION DETAILS - 2

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 7 of 12

11/13/2014
215



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
SUPPORT FACILITIES LIGHTING

384 01 E 01 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - SCHEDULES
385 01 E 02 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - EAST (MAINTENANCE)
386 01 E 03 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - SOUTHWEST (ADMIN)
387 01 E 04 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (LOBBY)
388 01 E 05 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (TRAINING)
389 01 E 06 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 1
390 01 E 07 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 2
391 01 E 08 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 3

SUPPORT FACILITIES ELECTRICAL (POWER)
392 01 E 09 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - SCHEDULES
393 01 E 10 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - EAST (MAINTENANCE)
394 01 E 11 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - SOUTHWEST (ADMIN)
395 01 E 12 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - LOWER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (LOBBY)
396 01 E 13 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - UPPER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH (TRAINING)
397 01 E 14 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 1
398 01 E 15 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 2
399 01 E 16 ADMIN/MNT/TRAINING - DETAILS - 3

PROCESS ELECTRICAL
400 00 GE 01 LEGENDS
401 00 GE 02 ABBREVIATIONS
402 00 E 01 OVERALL SITE PLAN
403 00 E 02 SITE PLAN DETAIL - 1
404 00 E 03 SITE PLAN DETAIL - 2
405 00 E 04 SITE PLAN DETAIL - 3
406 00 E 05 SITE PLAN DETAIL - 4
407 00 E 10 DUCT BANK SECTIONS - 1
408 00 E 11 DUCT BANK SECTIONS - 2
409 00 E 20 OVERALL ONE-LINE
410 00 E 21 SWGR-MAIN ELEVATION
411 00 E 22 SWGR-MAIN ONE-LINE - 1
412 00 E 23 SWGR-MAIN ONE-LINE - 2
413 00 E 30 SWGR-HWSH ELEVATION
414 00 E 31 SWGR-HWSH ONE-LINE
415 00 E 32 MCC-HW ELEVATION
416 00 E 33 MCC-HW ONE-LINE - 1
417 00 E 34 MCC-HW ONE-LINE - 2
418 00 E 35 MCC-SH ELEVATION
419 00 E 36 MCC-SH ONE-LINE
420 00 E 40 SWGR-ABRW ELEVATION
421 00 E 41 SWGR-ABRW ONE-LINE
422 00 E 42 MCC-AB ELEVATION
423 00 E 43 MCC-AB ONE-LINE
424 00 E 44 MCC-RW ELEVATION
425 00 E 45 MCC-RW ONE-LINE
426 00 E 50 SWGR-MUE ELEVATION
427 00 E 51 SWGR-MUE ONE-LINE
428 00 E 52 MCC-MBRUV ELEVATION
429 00 E 53 MCC-MBRUV ONE-LINE - 1
430 00 E 54 MCC-MBRUV ONE-LINE - 2
431 00 E 55 MCC-EB ELEVATION
432 00 E 56 MCC-EB ONE-LINE
433 00 E 60 MCC-HW PANELBOARD SCHEDULES
434 00 E 61 MCC-SH PANELBOARD SCHEDULES
435 00 E 62 MCC-AB PANELBOARD SCHEDULES
436 00 E 63 MSS-RW PANELBOARD SCHEDULES

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 8 of 12

11/13/2014
216



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
437 00 E 64 MCC-MBUV PANELBOARD SCHEDULES
438 00 E 65 MCC-EB PANELBOARD SCHEDULES
439 00 E 66 MAINTENANCE PANELBOARD SCHEDULES
440 00 E 67 ADMINISTRATION PANELBOARD SCHEDULES
441 00 E 70 LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE 
442 00 E 71 MANHOLE & HANDHOLE SCHEDULE
449 00 E 72 DISCONNECT SCHEDULE 
444 01 E 10 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
445 01 E 11 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING - TOP PLAN
446 01 E 30 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING - GROUNDING PLAN
448 01 E 31 MAINTENANCE BUILDING - ELECTRICAL & GROUNDING PLAN
448 01 E 40 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING - HVAC
449 01 E 41 MAINTENANCE BUILDING - HVAC
450 20 E 10 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
451 20 E 11 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
452 20 E 12 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ELECTRICAL AND CONTROL ROOM PLAN
453 20 E 20 HEADWORKS BUILDING - LIGHTING & RECEPTACLE BOTTOM PLAN 
454 20 E 21 HEADWORKS BUILDING - LIGHTING & RECEPTACLE TOP PLAN
455 20 E 30 HEADWORKS BUILDING - GROUNDING PLAN
456 20 E 40 HEADWORKS BUILDING - HVAC PLAN
457 30 E 01 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - OVERALL BOTTOM PLAN
458 30 E 02 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - OVERALL TOP PLAN
459 30 E 10 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - ELECTRICAL BOTTOM PLAN - I
460 30 E 11 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - BOTTOM PARTIAL PLAN - 1
461 30 E 12 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - BOTTOM PARTIAL PLAN - 2
462 30 E 13 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - BOTTOM PARTIAL PLAN - 3
463 30 E 15 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - TOP PARTIAL PLAN - 1
464 30 E 16 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - TOP PARTIAL PLAN - 2
465 30 E 17 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - TOP PARTIAL PLAN - 3
466 30 E 18 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING -  TOP PARTIAL PLAN - 4
467 30 E 20 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - LIGHTING & RECEPTACLE BOTTOM PLAN
468 30 E 21 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - LIGHTING & RECEPTACLE TOP PLAN
469 30 E 30 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - GROUNDING BOTTOM PLAN
470 30 E 31 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - GROUNDING TOP PLAN
471 30 E 40 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - HVAC BOTTOM PLAN
472 30 E 41 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - HVAC TOP PLAN
473 31 E 01 AERATION BASIN - OVERALL PLAN
474 31 E 10 AERATION BASIN - BASIN 1 PLAN - 1
475 31 E 11 AERATION BASIN - BASIN 1 PLAN - 2
476 31 E 20 AERATION BASIN - BASIN 2  PLAN - 1
477 31 E 21 AERATION BASIN - BASIN 2 PLAN - 2
478 31 E 30 AERATION BASIN - BASIN 3 PLAN - 1
479 31 E 31 AERATION BASIN BASIN 3 - PLAN - 2
480 32 E 01 BLOWER BUILDING - OVERALL PLAN
481 32 E 10 BLOWER BUILDING - PLAN - 1
482 32 E 11 BLOWER BUILDING - PLAN - 2
483 32 E 20 BLOWER BUILDING - LIGHTING & RECEPTACLE PLAN
484 32 E 30 BLOWER BUILDING - GROUNDING PLAN
485 32 E 40 BLOWER BUILDING - HVAC PLAN
486 40 E 10 PLANT DRAIN PUMP STATION -  PLAN
487 40 E 20 PLANT DRAIN PUMP STATION - LIGHTING, RECEPTACLE, AND GROUNDING PLAN
488 50 E 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - OVERALL PLAN
489 50 E 10 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - PLAN - 1
490 50 E 11 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - PLAN - 2
491 50 E 12 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - ELECTRICAL AND CONTROL ROOM PLAN

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 9 of 12

11/13/2014
217



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
492 50 E 20 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - LIGHTING & RECEPTACLE PLAN
493 50 E 30 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - GROUNDING PLAN
494 50 E 40 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - HVAC PLAN
495 60 E 10 ODOR CONTROL - PLAN
496 60 E 20 ODOR CONTROL - LIGHTING, RECEPTACLE, & GROUNDING PLAN
497 70 E 01 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - OVERALL PLAN
498 70 E 10 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - CONTROL ROOM PLAN
499 70 E 11 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - ELECTRICAL ROOM PLAN - 1
500 70 E 12 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - ELECTRICAL ROOM PLAN - 2
501 70 E 13 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - GENERATOR AND TRANSFORMER PLAN
502 70 E 20 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - LIGHTING & RECEPTACLE PLAN - 1
503 70 E 21 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - LIGHTING AND RECEPTACLE PLAN - 2
504 70 E 30 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - GROUNDING PLAN - 1
505 70 E 31 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - GROUNDING PLAN - 2
506 70 E 40 MAIN ELECTRICAL BUILDING - HVAC PLAN

INSTRUMENTATION
507 00 GN 01 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS - 1
508 00 GN 02 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS - 2
509 00 GN 03 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS - 3
510 00 GN 04 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS - 4
511 00 GN 05 SCHEMATIC SYMBOLS
512 00 GN 06 EQUIPMENT TAGGING
513 00 N 20 PCM PANEL TYPE 1 TYPICAL ELEVATION
514 00 N 21 PCM PANEL TYPE 2 TYPICAL ELEVATION
530 00 N 22 NETWORK PANEL TYPICAL ELEVATION
516 00 N 23 SCADA NETWORK RACK TYPICAL ELEVATION
521 00 N 24 PCM AND NP PANEL TYPICAL WIRING DIAGRAM
518 00 N 30 CONTROL SYSTEM BLOCK DIAGRAM - 1
519 00 N 31 CONTROL SYSTEM BLOCK DIAGRAM - 2
520 00 N 40 CONTROL SYSTEM NETWORK ROUTING DIAGRAM - 1
521 00 N 41 CONTROL SYSTEM NETWORK ROUTING DIAGRAM - 2
522 00 N 60 INSTRUMENTATION CONTROL SCHEMATIC SYMBOLS
523 00 N 61 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 1
524 00 N 62 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 2
525 00 N 63 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 3
526 00 N 64 CONTROL SCHEMATICS -4
527 00 N 65 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 5
528 00 N 66 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 6
529 00 N 67 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 7
530 00 N 68 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 8
531 00 N 69 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 9
532 00 N 70 CONTROL SCHEMATICS - 10
537 01 N 01 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING - HVAC - 1
534 01 N 02 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING - HVAC - 2
535 01 N 03 MAINTENANCE BUILDING - HVAC - 1
536 20 N 01 COARSE SCREENING P&ID
537 20 N 02 INFLUENT PUMP STATION - 1
538 20 N 03 INFLUENT PUMP STATION - 2
539 20 N 04 GRIT REMOVAL - 1
540 20 N 05 GRIT REMOVAL - 2
541 20 N 06 GRIT REMOVAL - 3
542 20 N 07 FINE SCREENING - 1
543 20 N 08 FINE SCREENING - 2
544 20 N 09 PCM-HW CABINET AND NETWORK PANEL
545 20 N 10 HEADWORKS BUILDING HVAC - 1
546 20 N 11 HEADWORKS BUILDING HVAC - II

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 10 of 12

11/13/2014
218



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
547 30 N 01 PCM-ST CABINET AND NETWORK PANEL
548 30 N 02 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - HVAC - 1
549 30 N 03 SECONDARY TREATMENT BUILDING - HVAC - 2
550 31 N 01 AERATION BASIN NO. 1 - 1
551 31 N 02 AERATION BASIN NO. 1 - 2
552 31 N 03 AERATION BASIN NO. 2 - 1
553 31 N 04 AERATION BASIN NO. 2 - 2
554 31 N 05 FLOW EQUALIZATION TANK - 1
555 31 N 06 FLOW EQUALIZATION TANK - 2
556 31 N 07 MIXED LIQUOR DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL
557 32 N 01 AERATION BLOWERS NOS. 1 AND 2
558 32 N 02 AERATION BLOWER NO. 3
559 33 N 01 WAS STORAGE
560 33 N 02 WAS BLOWER NO. 1
561 33 N 03 WAS BLOWER NO. 2
562 33 N 04 WAS TRANSFER PUMPS
563 34 N 01 MEMBRANE TRAIN 1 TANK
564 34 N 02 MEMBRANE TRAIN 2 TANK
565 34 N 03 MEMBRANE TRAIN 3 TANK
566 34 N 04 MEMBRANE TRAIN 4 TANK
567 34 N 05 MEMBRANE TRAIN 1 PERMEATE PUMP
568 34 N 06 MEMBRANE TRAIN 2 PERMEATE PUMP
569 34 N 07 MEMBRANE TRAIN 3 PERMEATE PUMP
570 34 N 08 MEMBRANE TRAIN 4 PERMEATE PUMP
571 34 N 09 MEMBRANE BLOWER 1
572 34 N 10 MEMBRANE BLOWER 2
573 34 N 11 MEMBRANE BLOWER 3
574 34 N 12 MEMBRANE BLOWER 4
575 34 N 13 MEMBRANE SYSTEM AIR COMPRESSORS
576 34 N 14 MEMBRANE SYSTEM TANK DRAIN PUMP STATION
577 34 N 15 MEMBRANE SYSTEM CITRIC ACID SYSTEM - 1
578 34 N 16 MEMBRANE SYSTEM CITRIC ACID SYSTEM - 2
579 34 N 17 MEMBRANE SYSTEM SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE SYSTEM - 1
580 34 N 18 MEMBRANE SYSTEM SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE SYSTEM - 2
581 34 N 19 PCM-TT CABINET AND NETWORK PANEL
582 35 N 01 WAS PUMPING
583 35 N 02 RAS PUMPING
584 36 N 01 UV TRAIN 1
585 36 N 02 UV TRAIN 2
586 36 N 03 UV TRAIN 3
587 38 N 01 EFFLUENT SYSTEM
588 38 N 02 UW PUMP STATION
589 40 N 01 PLANT DRAIN PUMP STATION
590 50 N 01 CENTRIFUGE NO. 1
591 50 N 02 CENTRIFUGE NO. 2
592 50 N 03 FEED HOPPER
593 50 N 04 BIOSOLIDS DRYER
594 50 N 05 CONVEYORS
595 50 N 06 THERMAL FLUID HEATER
596 50 N 07 VAPOR CONDENSER
597 50 N 08 POLYMER SYSTEM - 1
598 50 N 09 POLYMER SYSTEM - 2
599 50 N 10 PCM-SH CABINET AND NETWORK PANEL
600 50 N 11 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING HVAC - 1
601 60 N 01 ODOR TREATMENT SYSTEM NO. 1 - 1
602 60 N 02 ODOR TREATMENT SYSTEM NO. 1 - 2
603 60 N 03 ODOR TREATMENT SYSTEM NO. 2 - 1
604 60 N 04 ODOR TREATMENT SYSTEM CITRIC ACID SYSTEM

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 11 of 12

11/13/2014
219



ATTACHMENT 5
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Final Design Drawing List

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST

DRAWING
SHEET 

NO DWG NO.
605 60 N 05 ODOR TREATMENT SYSTEM SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE SYSTEM
606 70 N 01 SWGR-MAIN MONITORING AND CONTROL
607 70 N 02 SWGR-HES MONITORING AND CONTROL
608 70 N 03 SWGR-ST MONITORING AND CONTROL
609 70 N 04 SWGR-TT MONITORING AND CONTROL
610 70 N 05 GENERATOR MONITORING AND CONTROL
611 70 N 06 LOAD BANK MONITORING AND CONTROL
612 80 N 01 FACILITY FIRE ALARM MONITORING

TYPICAL DETAILS
613 00 CT 01 CIVIL TYPICAL DETAILS
614 00 CT 02 CIVIL TYPICAL DETAILS
615 00 DT 01 CORROSION PROTECTION TYPICAL DETAILS
616 00 DT 02 CORROSION PROTECTION TYPICAL DETAILS
617 00 ET 01 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL GROUNDING - EG
618 00 ET 02 ELECTRICALTYPICAL DETAIL GROUNDING - EG
619 00 ET 03 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL LIGHTING - EL
620 00 ET 04 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
621 00 ET 05 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
622 00 ET 06 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
623 00 ET 07 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
624 00 ET 08 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
625 00 ET 09 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL NAMEPLATES - EN
626 00 ET 10 ELECTRICALTYPICAL DETAIL OPERATORS - EO
627 00 HT 01 HVAC TYPICAL DETAILS - 1
628 00 HT 02 HVAC TYPICAL DETAILS - 2
629 00 NT 01 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS - 1
630 00 NT 02 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS - 2
631 00 NT 03 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS - 3 
632 00 NT 04 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS - 4
633 00 NT 05 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS - 5
634 00 NT 06 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS - 6
635 00 NT 07 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS - 7
636 00 MT 01 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 1
637 00 MT 02 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 2
638 00 MT 03 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 3
639 00 PT 02 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 1
640 00 PT 03 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 2
641 00 PT 04 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 3
642 00 PT 05 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 4
643 00 PT 06 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 5
644 00 PT 07 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 6
645 00 PT 08 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 7
646 00 PT 09 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 8
647 00 PT 10 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS - 9
648 00 ST 01 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 1
649 00 ST 02 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 2
650 00 ST 03 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 3
651 00 ST 04 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 4
652 00 ST 05 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 5
653 00 ST 06 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 6
654 00 ST 07 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 7
655 00 ST 08 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS - 8

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A10\Project Management\Contracts\Attachment 5.xlsx
Page 12 of 12

11/13/2014
220



Attachment 6

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant

Technical Specifications

Name Description

01001 Introduction

01010 Summary of Work

01046 Control of Work

01060 Regulatory Agency and Utility Requirements

01101 Safety, Health and Emergency Response

01110. Disputes Review Board

01115 Escrow Bid Documents

01116 Contract Document Language

01120 Project Partnering

01140 Work Restrictions

01201 Payment Procedures

01210 Allowances

01292 Schedule of Values

01312 Project Meetings

01322 Web Based Construction Document Management (EADOC)

01324A Progress Schedules and Reports

01330 Submittal Procedures

01340 Photographic and Videographic Documentation

01350 Special Procedures

01410 Code Requirements

01424 Abbreviations

01450 Quality Control

01455 Special Tests and Inspections

01460 Contractor Quality Control Plan

01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls

01561 Biological and Cultural Resources Environmental Controls

01562 Dust Control

01570 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

01571 Traffic Control

01600 Product Requirements

01610 Project Design Criteria

01612 Seismic Design Criteria

01614 Wind Design Criteria

01660 Testing, Training, and Commissioning

01710 Cleaning

01722 Field Engineering

01732 Cutting and Patching

01734 Work Within Public Right‐of‐Way

01740 Warranties and Bonds

01757 Disinfection

01759 Water Leakage Test for Concrete Structures

01770 Closeout Procedures

01782 Operation and Maintenance Data

Division 1 ‐ General Requirements

221



Attachment 6

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant

Technical Specifications

Name Description

02050 Soils and Aggregates for Earthwork

02084 Utility Structures

02200 Site Clearing

02222 Building Demolition

02240 Dewatering

02251 Stone Column Densification

02260 Excavation Support and Protection

02280 Subsurface Utility Engineering

02300 Earthwork

02312 Controlled Low Strength Material (CLSM)

02318 Trenching

02352 Geogrid Reinforcement for Interlocking Block Retaining Wall

02353 Geogrid Reinforcement For Pavement Subgrade

02372 Stone Slope Protection (Rip Rap)

02467A Drilled Concrete Piers

02553 In Plant Temporary Bypass Pumping

02581 Precast Electrical Handholes and Electrical Manholes

02620 Filter Fabric

02621 Stabilization Fabric

02666 High Density Polyethylene Geomembrane Liners

02742A Asphaltic Concrete Paving

02762 Pavement Markings

02772 Concrete Curbs, Gutters, and Sidewalks

02776 Precast Concrete Curbs

02820 Fences and Gates

02836 Interlocking Block Retaining Wall

02939 Seeding

03055 Epoxy Bonding Reinforcing Bars and All Thread Rods in Concrete

03071 Epoxies

03072 Epoxy Resin/Portland Cement Bonding Agent

03102 Concrete Formwork

03142 Bridge Falsework

03150 Concrete Accessories

03154 Hydrophilic Rubber Waterstop

03200 Concrete Reinforcing

03212 Reinforcing Bar Couplers

03214 Reinforcing Bar End Anchors

03300 Cast‐In‐Place Concrete

03302 Mass Concrete

03366 Tooled Concrete Finishes

03565 Basin Bottom Grout

03600 Grouting

03926 Structural Concrete Repair

03931 Epoxy Injection System

Division 2 ‐ Site Construction

Division 3 ‐ Concrete

222



Attachment 6

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant

Technical Specifications

Name Description

04055 Epoxy Bonding Reinforcing Bars and All Thread Rods in Masonry

04090 Masonry Accessories

04100 Mortar and Masonry Grout

04220 Concrete Unit Masonry

05120 Structural Steel

05140 Structural Aluminum

05216 Open Web Steel Joist Framing

05310 Steel Decking

05500 Metal Fabrications

06072 Preservative Pressure Treated Wood

06074 Fire Retardant Treated Wood

06076 Laminated Veneer Lumber

06100 Rough Carpentry

06174 Shop‐Fabricated Wood Trusses

06200 Finish Carpentry

06400 Architectural Woodwork

06608 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic

06611 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Fabrications

06616 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Handrail and Guardrail

07110 Dampproofing

07190 Water Repellents

07214 Batt Insulation

07220 Roof and Deck Insulation

07414 Metal Siding

07415 Standing Seam Sheet Metal Roofing

07600 Flashing and Sheet Metal

07840 Firestopping

07900 Joint Sealants

08110 Hollow Metal Doors and Frames

08212 Flush Wood Doors

08332 Overhead Coiling Doors

08412 Aluminum Entrances and Storefronts

08550 Wood Windows

08710 Door Hardware

08800 Glazing

Division 4 ‐ Masonry

Division 5 ‐ Metals

Division 6 ‐ Wood and Plastics

Division 7 ‐ Thermal and Moisture Protection

Division 8 ‐ Doors and Windows

223



Attachment 6

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant

Technical Specifications

Name Description

09250 Gypsum Board

09310 Ceramic Tiling

09652 Resilient Base and Accessories

09656 Resilient Sheet Flooring

09714 Metal Faced Acoustical Panels

09910 Painting

09960 High‐Performance Coatings

09974 Coating for Welded Steel Water Storage Tanks

10155 Metal Toilet Compartments

10290 Plastic Spike Bird Deterrent

10400 Signage

10500 Lockers

10520 Fire Protection Specialties

10810 Toilet Accessories

11212 Potable Water Storage and Booster System

11223A Submerged Turbine Mixers

11242 Diaphragm‐Type Metering Pumps

11245 Peristaltic Tube Metering Pumps

11246 Polymer Blending and Feed Equipment ‐ Liquid

11287 Low‐Pressure/High Output Ultraviolet Disinfection Systems

11293 Slide Gates

11294B Heavy‐Duty Fabricated Stainless Steel Slide Gates

11298B Stop Plates

11312C Horizontal Recessed Impeller Centrifugal Pumps

11312G Submersible Large Capacity Centrifugal Pumps

11312I Progressing Cavity Pumps

11312J Submersible Sump Pumps

11312K Medium Capacity Submersible Pumps

11312L Horizontal Axial Flow Centrifugal Pumps

11317B Submersible Mixers: Slow Speed

11322 Mechanically‐Induced Vortex Grit Removal Equipment

11324 Free Vortex Grit System

11332A Mechanical Bar Screens

11332C Band Screens

11333A Screenings Washer Compactor

11376A Rotary‐Lobe Aeration Blowers

11378A Membrane Disk Fine Bubble Diffused Aeration System

11378B Coarse Bubble Aeration System

11452 Residential Appliances

11510 Safety Equipment

11610 Fixed Laboratory Equipment

11620 Laboratory Fume Hoods

11635 Automatic Samplers

Division 9 ‐ Finishes

Division 10 ‐ Specialties

Division 11 ‐ Equipment

224



Attachment 6

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant

Technical Specifications

Name Description

12346 Laboratory Work Surfaces

12349 Laboratory Service Fittings

12352 Laboratory Wood Casework

13110 Water Storage Tank Cathodic Protection System

13112 Pipeline Corrosion Monitoring Facilities

13122 Metal Building System

13206A Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Aboveground Storage Tanks

13206F Hydropneumatic Bladder Tank

13209A Pressure Filter Vessel

13210 Welded Steel Tanks

13217 Plastic Liner for Concrete Structures

13446 Manual Actuators

13447 Electric Motorized Actuators

13920 Packaged Electric‐Drive, Centrifugal Fire Pump System

13930 Wet Pipe Fire Extinguishing Systems

14555 Shaftless Screw Conveyor System

14612 Davit Cranes

14624 Monorail Crane System

15050 Common Work Results for Mechanical Equipment

15052 Common Work Results for General Piping

15053 Seismic Restraints for Piping

15054 Expansion Control for Piping

15061 Pipe Supports

15062 Preformed Channel Pipe Support System

15063 Non‐Metallic Pipe Support System

15075 Equipment Identification

15076 Pipe Identification

15082 Piping Insulation

15084 Ductwork Insulation

15110 Common Work Results for Valves

15111 Ball Valves

15112 Butterfly Valves

15114 Check Valves

15115 Gate, Globe, and Angle Valves

15116 Plug Valves

15117 Specialty Valves

15118 Pressure Reducing and Pressure Relief Valves

15119 Air and Vacuum Relief Valves

15120 Piping Specialties

15121 Pipe Couplings

15122 Fire Hydrants

15125 Strainers and Filters

Division 13 ‐ Special Construction

Division 14 ‐ Conveying Systems

Division 15 ‐ Mechanical

Division 12 ‐ Furnishings

225



Attachment 6

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant

Technical Specifications

Name Description

15128 Force Balanced Ductile Iron Ball‐Type Flexible Expansion Joints

15130 Station Monitors

15210 Cast Iron Soil Pipe, ASTM A 74

15211 Ductile Iron Pipe, AWWA C151

15230 Plastic Piping and Tubing

15270 Steel Pipe‐Galvanized and Black, ASTM A 53

15274 Plastic Tape Wrap For Pipe

15281 Copper Water Tube‐Seamless, ASTM B 88

15286 Stainless Steel Pipe and Tubing

15293 Double Containment Piping

15400 Plumbing Fixtures and Equipment

15430 Emergency Eye/Face Wash and Shower Equipment

15732 Air Conditioning Units

15762 Heating Units

15812 Metal Ductwork

15814 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Ductwork

15815 Flexible Ductwork

15816 Duct for Corrosive Fume Exhaust

15820 Ductwork Accessories

15830 Fans

15852 Louvers

15936 Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning Controls

15954 HVAC Systems Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing

15956 Piping Systems Testing

15958 Mechanical Equipment Testing

16050 Common Work Results for Electrical

16052 Hazardous Classified Area Construction

16060 Grounding and Bonding

16070 Hangers and Supports

16075 Electrical Identification

16123 600 Volt or Less Wires and Cables

16125 Fiber Optic Cable and Appurtenances

16130 Conduits

16133 Duct Banks

16134 Boxes

16136 Wireway

16140 Wiring Devices

16150 Low Voltage Wire Connections

16210 Utility Coordination

16222 Low Voltage Motors up to 500 Horsepower

16232 Single Diesel Fueled Engine Generator Above 200 KW

16240 Battery Systems

16245 Load Bank ‐ Stationary Resistive

16262 Variable Frequency Drives 0.50 ‐ 50 Horsepower

16264 Variable Frequency Drives 60 ‐ 500 Horsepower

16272 Dry Type Transformers

Division 16 ‐ Electrical

226



Attachment 6

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant

Technical Specifications

Name Description

16285 Surge Protective Devices

16290 Power Meters

16295 Protective Relays

16305 Electrical System Studies

16411 Disconnect Switches

16412 Low Voltage Molded Case Circuit Breakers

16414 Low Voltage Power Circuit Breakers

16422 Motor Starters

16430 Low Voltage Switchgear

16433 Service Entrance Automatic Transfer Switchgear

16444 Low Voltage Motor Control Centers

16445 Panelboards

16452 Busway

16494 Low Voltage Fuses

16500 Lighting

16670 Lightning Protection

16710 Fire Sprinkler Monitoring and Alarm System

16950 Field Electrical Acceptance Tests

16970 Lighting Acceptance Testing

17050 Common Work Results for Process Control and Instrumentation Systems

17100 Control Strategies

17101‐03A Specific Control Strategies ‐ REW Storage Ponds

17101‐04A Specific Control Strategies ‐ Plant Drain Pump Station

17101‐04B Specific Control Strategies ‐ Storm Water Pump Station

17101‐10 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Headworks/Septage Receiving

17101‐11 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Odor Control Facility

17101‐20 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Oxidation Ditch

17101‐21 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Secondary Clarifiers

17101‐23 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Scum Pump Station

17101‐28 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Filter Influent Pump Station

17101‐30 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Tertiary Filters

17101‐31 Specific Control Strategies ‐ UV Facility

17101‐32 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Chemical Facility

17101‐40 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Effluent Pump Station

17101‐50 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Solids Storage Tanks, RAS/WAS

17101‐51 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Dewatering

17101‐60 Specific Control Strategies ‐ Potable Water

17201 Level Measurement ‐ Switches

17206 Level Measurement ‐ Ultrasonic

17208 Level Measurement ‐ Radar Pulse Time of Flight (PTOF)

17301 Flow Measurement ‐ Switches

17302 Flow Measurement ‐ Magnetic Flowmeters

17316 Flow Measurement ‐ Rotameters (Variable Area Flowmeters)

17401 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement ‐ Diaphragm and Annular Seals

17402 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement ‐ Instrument Valves

17403 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement ‐ Switches

Division 17 ‐ Instrumentation and Control System

227



Attachment 6

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant

Technical Specifications

Name Description

17404 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement ‐ Gauges

17405 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement ‐ Direct

17406 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement ‐ Differential

17407 Pressure Measurement ‐ Submersible

17505 Analyzers ‐ Residual Chlorine

17506 Analyzers ‐ Dissolved Oxygen (DO)

17509 Analyzers ‐ Turbidity

17515 Ultraviolet Intensity Meters

17516 Ultraviolet Transmittance Monitors

17601 Temperature Measurement ‐ Temperature Switch

17602 Temperature Measurement ‐ Temperature Gauge

17622 Weight Measurement ‐ Strain Gauge

17710 Control Systems ‐ Panels, Enclosures, and Panel Components

17712 Control Systems ‐ Uninterruptible Power Supplies 10 kVA and Below

17713 Control Systems ‐ SCADA Consoles

17720 Control Systems ‐ Programmable Logic Controllers Hardware

17721 Control Systems ‐ Human Machine Interface Hardware

17730 Control Systems ‐ SCADA Computer Equipment

17733 Control Systems ‐ Network Materials and Equipment

17740 Process Cameras Closed Television

17761 Control Systems ‐ PLC Programming Software

17762 Control Systems ‐ SCADA Software

17765 Control Systems ‐ Human Machine Interface Software

17901 Schedules ‐ Field Instruments

17903 Schedules ‐ I/O List

17905 Schedules ‐ SCADA List

17950 Testing, Calibration, and Commissioning

228



City of Oak Harbor

Wastewater Treatment Plant Final Design & Permitting

Level of Effort Estimate

November 19, 2014

TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT $132,986

TASK 200 - NOT USED $0

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT $113,413

TASK 400 - WWTP FINAL DESIGN & PERMITTING $3,701,276

TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY COORDINATION $25,425

TASK 600 - NOT USED $0

CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $337,332

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $58,100

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $4,368,533

TASK 700 - MANAGEMENT RESERVE (5% of Authorized Budget) $218,427

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $4,586,959

229



City of Oak Harbor

Wastewater Treatment Plant Final Design & Permitting

Level of Effort Estimate 2.5%

November 19, 2014 Matson CAMP Hadler Misc Misc. Staff Enriquez Misc Lish 1.9 $10.00

Subconsultant Cost

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $88 $85 $74 $62 $58 $42 $40 $27 $27

TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Subtask 110 - Project Management Plan 16 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 8 32 $2,209 $4,198 $480 $6,887 $6,887

Subtask 120 - Project Monitoring and Reporting 312 0 48 0 0 0 0 0 48 408 $32,264 $61,302 $6,419 $99,985 $99,985

Subtask 130 - Project Management Meetings 72 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 12 108 $8,422 $16,001 $1,691 $26,114 $26,114

Task 100 Subtotal 400 0 80 0 0 0 0 0 68 548 $42,895 $81,501 $8,590 $132,986 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $132,986

TASK 200 NOT USED

Task 200 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT

Subtask 340 - Public Meetings/Council Workshops 18 0 18 0 0 0 12 0 8 56 $3,606 $6,851 $821 $11,278 $11,278

Subtask 350 - Working Group Meetings 12 0 12 0 0 8 8 0 4 44 $2,708 $5,145 $636 $8,489 $6,500 $32,000 $25,000 $71,989

Subtask 360 - Council/Committee Meetings 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 24 $1,620 $3,078 $357 $5,056 $6,500 $11,556

Subtask 370 - Public/Stakeholder Product Development 14 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 8 38 $2,089 $3,969 $531 $6,590 $12,000 $18,590

Task 300 Subtotal 60 0 30 0 0 8 36 0 28 162 $10,023 $19,043 $2,347 $31,413 $0 $25,000 $32,000 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $113,413

TASK 400 - WWTP FINAL DESIGN & PERMITTING

Subtask 450 - Technical Team Meetings 3 0 73 87 0 132 0 0 0 295 $16,593 $31,527 $4,151 $52,271 $52,271

Subtask 471 - 60% Design 6 0 257 1,521 0 2,303 1,003 718 203 6,010 $275,600 $523,641 $80,086 $879,327 $296,500 $34,000 $10,000 $15,000 $1,234,827

Subtask 472 - 90% Design 6 0 257 1,521 0 2,303 1,129 807 407 6,429 $288,429 $548,015 $85,201 $921,644 $284,500 $35,000 $34,000 $10,000 $10,000 $1,295,144

Subtask 473 - Final Design 3 0 110 174 0 263 376 269 68 1,263 $54,333 $103,232 $16,571 $174,136 $210,000 $30,000 $10,000 $5,000 $429,136

Subtask 474 - QA/QC 12 1,260 37 174 0 263 0 0 0 1,745 $132,688 $252,107 $27,073 $411,868 $25,000 $10,000 $25,000 $471,868

Subtask 475 - Early Site Prep Package 8 12 16 0 0 60 0 24 12 132 $6,403 $12,166 $1,784 $20,354 $20,354

Subtask 476 - Solids Equipment Procurement 8 12 24 40 0 60 30 0 26 200 $10,398 $19,756 $2,754 $32,908 $32,908

Subtask 477 - Cost Estimate Development 8 16 16 40 0 160 0 0 8 248 $12,706 $24,141 $3,401 $40,247 $40,247

Subtask 480 - Permit Coordination 12 0 20 0 160 72 0 20 16 300 $15,794 $30,008 $4,145 $49,946 $34,500 $1,500 $85,946

Subtask 490 - Biosolids Management Plan 18 6 0 0 120 52 0 12 24 232 $12,196 $23,173 $3,204 $38,574 $38,574

Task 400 Subtotal 83 1,306 810 3,556 280 5,667 2,539 1,850 764 16,855 $825,140 $1,567,766 $228,370 $2,621,276 $34,500 $0 $816,000 $36,500 $108,000 $25,000 $30,000 $30,000 $3,701,276

TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY COORDINATION

Subtask 510 - GC/CM Coordination 16 0 16 32 32 32 0 0 12 140 $8,083 $15,357 $1,986 $25,425 $25,425

Task 500 Subtotal 16 0 16 32 32 32 0 0 12 140 $8,083 $15,357 $1,986 $25,425 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,425

TASK 600 - NOT USED

Task 600 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 559 1,306 936 3,588 312 5,707 2,575 1,850 872 17,705 $886,141 $1,683,668 $241,292 $2,811,101 $34,500 $25,000 $848,000 $36,500 $133,000 $25,000 $30,000 $30,000 $3,973,101

CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $337,332

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $1,725 $1,250 $42,400 $1,825 $6,650 $1,250 $1,500 $1,500 $58,100

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $4,368,533

TASK 700 - MANAGEMENT RESERVE (5% of Authorized Budget)

Task 700 Subtotal $218,427

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $4,586,959

Carollo DL 

Cost

WORK TASKS
Project 

Manager

QA/QC 

Team

Design 

Manager

Senior 

Engineer

Design 

Lead

Staff 

Engineer

Sr. CAD/ 

Graphics 

Tech.

CAD/ 

Graphics 

Tech.

WP/ Admin. 

Support
Carollo 

Hours

Carollo 

Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 

Expenses

Subtotal 

Carollo 

Cost

Total Cost
ESA EI

MWA + 

SMEP
Geo GW WE HAI

Air Quality 

& Sound

230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



Carollo Contract Summary
City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Contract Purpose Authorized by
Approval 
Date

 Facilities Plan 
Authorized 
Amount

Preliminary 
Design 

Authorized 
Amount

 Final Design 
Authorized 
Amount

Authorized 
Management 

Reserve

Available 
Management 

Reserve

Base + 
Management 

Reserve
Original Contract Facilities Plan City Council 8/4/10 1,039,561$     50,000$          50,000$          1,089,561$    
Amendment 1 Increase No. of Alternatives Staff 7/6/11 14,683$          35,317$         
Amendment 2 Additional Field Investigation Staff 5/8/12 3,404$            31,913$         
Amendment 3 Added Charrette Process Staff 8/1/12 18,084$          13,829$         
Amendment 4 Complete Eel Grass Survey Staff 10/9/12 9,896$            3,933$           
Amendment 5 Geotech, Survey, Freund City Council 10/16/12 121,021$        28,679$          32,612$          149,700$       
Email Geotech Staff 3/13/13 28,679$          3,933$           
Amendment 6 Preliminary Design, Outfall City Council 3/19/13 1,982,065$     99,103$          103,036$        2,081,168$    
Amendment 7 ESA to Complete SEPA Staff 5/29/13 9,327$            93,709$         
Amendment 8 GC/CM Assist, Pump Test, Camera Staff 3/17/14 22,260$          47,107$           24,342$         
Amendment 9 Facilities Re‐Design, GC/CM Coord. Staff 9/23/14 20,804$           3,538$           
Amendment 10 Final Design City Council PENDING 4,368,533$     218,427$        221,965$        4,586,960$    

Total 1,266,915$     2,049,976$     4,368,533$     396,209$        7,907,389$    

Engineering Cost To Date Less Facilities Plan 6,736,039$    
WWTP Mid‐point Construction Cost Estimate $72,181,030

Outfall Construction Cost Estimate $3,260,000
Total $75,441,030

Engineering Percentage of Construction 8.93%

November 20, 2014

282



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
General Contractor/Construction 
manager GMP Amendment No. 1

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill recommends approval of Hoffman Construction Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment
#1 (GMP#1) for early procurement of Membrane Bio Reactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection (UV) 
equipment in Connection with Construction of the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: December 2, 2014

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
General Contractor/Construction 
manager GMP Amendment No. 1

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

PURPOSE
This agenda bill recommends approval of Hoffman Construction Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 
#1 (GMP#1) for early procurement of Membrane Bio Reactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection (UV) 
equipment in Connection with Construction of the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).

AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTIONFISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required:    $2,553,317      
Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council 
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work. 
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services. 

 Pending December 2nd, 2014 approval – GMP component #1 for early procurement of UV
and MBR equipment. 

  Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project
GMP: 

 Construction of the new outfall 
 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment)
 Early site work (mobilization, excavation, shoring, dewatering, etc.)
 WWTP construction
 Sitework improvements (landscape, Bayshore, parking, etc.)

FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION
Funds Required:    $2,553,317      
Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund

SUMMARY STATEMENT
Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council 
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work. 
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services. 

 Pending December 2nd, 2014 approval – GMP component #1 for early procurement of UV 
and MBR equipment. 

  Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 
GMP: 

 Construction of the new outfall 
 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment)
 Early site work (mobilization, excavation, shoring, dewatering, etc.)
 WWTP construction
 Sitework improvements (landscape, Bayshore, parking, etc.)

11.

283



GC/CM Early Equipment Procurement Method:

 Equipment is directly solicited by Hoffman under RCW GC/CM provision for “self performed”
work.

 Bids are for design support, equipment, and training after installation.
 Bids are not for installation, which will likely be completed by a mechanical sub-contractor and

included in the cost of a subsequent GMP for the main facility.
 Bids included total capital cost as well as additional data that supported a calculation of 15 year 

O&M costs.

MBR Equipment Bid Summary:
MBR System Equipment GE/Zenon Koch
Performance and Payment Bond $6,500 $31,725
Shop Drawings and Design Support $249,000 $325,000
Membrane Bioreactor System $1,567,000 $1,688,275
Chemical Cleaning System $20,500 $28,750
Spare Parts and Special Tools $47,000 $25,000
Freight (Delivered Duty Paid) $56,000 $26,250
Supervision $203,000 $225,000
Total Capital Bid Price $2,149,000 $2,350,000 

GC/CM Early Equipment Procurement Method:

 Equipment is directly solicited by Hoffman under RCW GC/CM provision for “self performed”
work.

 Bids are for design support, equipment, and training after installation.
 Bids are not for installation, which will likely be completed by a mechanical sub-contractor and

included in the cost of a subsequent GMP for the main facility.
 Bids included total capital cost as well as additional data that supported a calculation of 15 year

O&M costs.

MBR Equipment Bid Summary:
MBR System Equipment GE/Zenon Koch
Performance and Payment Bond $6,500 $31,725
Shop Drawings and Design Support $249,000 $325,000
Membrane Bioreactor System $1,567,000 $1,688,275
Chemical Cleaning System $20,500 $28,750
Spare Parts and Special Tools $47,000 $25,000
Freight (Delivered Duty Paid) $56,000 $26,250
Supervision $203,000 $225,000
Total Capital Bid Price $2,149,000 $2,350,000 

 15 YR O&M cost were also considered for GE & Koch including electricity, various chemical 
annual costs & membrane replacements.

 Although O&M costs were estimated to be slightly higher for GE the savings is not expected to be 
sufficient to offset the lower capital cost.

UV Equipment Bid Summary:
UV Disinfection System Trojan ETS Wedeco
UV Disinfection System $247,131 $236,550 $223,568
Chemical Cleaning System $24,000 $4,000 $4,753
Spare Parts and Special Tools $10,280 $16,432 $38,875
Shop Drawings and Design Support $10,320 $12,450 $15,790
Freight (Delivered Duty Paid) $5,179 $2,818 $4,200
Supervision $45,245 $15,750 $24,258
Performance and Payment Bond $1,845 $11,520 $2,856
Total Capital Bid Price $344,000 $299,520 $314,300 

 15 YR O&M cost were also considered for GE & Koch including electricity, various chemical 
annual costs & membrane replacements.

 Although O&M costs were estimated to be slightly higher for GE the savings is not expected to be
sufficient to offset the lower capital cost.

UV Equipment Bid Summary:
UV Disinfection System Trojan ETS Wedeco
UV Disinfection System $247,131 $236,550 $223,568
Chemical Cleaning System $24,000 $4,000 $4,753
Spare Parts and Special Tools $10,280 $16,432 $38,875
Shop Drawings and Design Support $10,320 $12,450 $15,790
Freight (Delivered Duty Paid) $5,179 $2,818 $4,200
Supervision $45,245 $15,750 $24,258
Performance and Payment Bond $1,845 $11,520 $2,856
Total Capital Bid Price $344,000 $299,520 $314,300 

284



 15 YR O&M cost were considered for Trojan, ETS and Wedeco including annual calibration,
electricity and various replacement parts such as sleeves, lamps, ballasts, sensors and cleaning
equipment.

 Although O&M costs were estimated to be slightly higher for ETS than Trojan the savings is not 
expected to be sufficient to offset the lower capital cost of ETS.  Wedeco had the highest O&M cost
of the three vendors.

Hoffman Recommendation of Award:

 Recommend award to GE for MBR equipment in the amount of $2,149,000
 Recommend award to ETS for UV equipment in the amount of $299,520
 Hoffman’s GC/CM fee per July award of 4.28% = $104,797

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.
11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.
2-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.
6-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.
11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

 15 YR O&M cost were considered for Trojan, ETS and Wedeco including annual calibration,
electricity and various replacement parts such as sleeves, lamps, ballasts, sensors and cleaning
equipment.

 Although O&M costs were estimated to be slightly higher for ETS than Trojan the savings is not
expected to be sufficient to offset the lower capital cost of ETS.  Wedeco had the highest O&M cost 
of the three vendors.

Hoffman Recommendation of Award:

 Recommend award to GE for MBR equipment in the amount of $2,149,000
 Recommend award to ETS for UV equipment in the amount of $299,520
 Hoffman’s GC/CM fee per July award of 4.28% = $104,797

DISCUSSION

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.
-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.
26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.
25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.
-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

6-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.
11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A in the amount of $2,553,317.00 with
Hoffman Construction for early procurement of UV and MBR equipment.

ATTACHMENTS
1. A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
2. A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#1)
3. November 18, 2014 Hoffman recommendation letter

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
12-3-2013 – Adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery method for the 
new wastewater treatment plant.
12-17-2013 - Adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include a provision for 
alternative project delivery methods.
2-18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 

2-18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 

25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.
-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

CONCLUSION

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A in the amount of $2,553,317.00 with 
Hoffman Construction for early procurement of UV and MBR equipment.

ATTACHMENTS
1. A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
2. A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#1)
3. November 18, 2014 Hoffman recommendation letter

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS
-3-2013 – Adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery method for the 

new wastewater treatment plant.
-17-2013 - Adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include a provision for 

alternative project delivery methods.
18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 

18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 

285



2-18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 
Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant project.
2-18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 
Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of Washington Capital Projects 
Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.
7-1-2014 - Authorize the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman Construction in connection
with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project.  

18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 
Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant project.

18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 
Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of Washington Capital Projects 
Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

1-2014 - Authorize the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman Construction in connection 
with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project.  

286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



November 18, 2014 

City of Oak Harbor 
1400 NE 16th Avenue 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

Attention: John Piccone 

RE: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility - Preconstruction 
Hoffman Project No. 5109314  

John, 

At the request of the City of Oak Harbor and utilizing documents provided by Carollo Engineers, 

Hoffman has directly solicited pricing from named vendors for the UV disinfection equipment and the 

Membrane Bio Reactor (MBR) equipment.  The early procurement of this equipment will make the 

design process more efficient for Carollo by allowing them to arrange the facility around the specific 

characteristics of the chosen equipment.  

Proposals received from vendors for the equipment included total capital costs and additional data that 

supported a calculation of a 15 year operations and maintenance life cycle for the equipment. The 

capital cost components included a breakout for the initial shop drawing and engineering support 

services.  

Hoffman proposes to procure this equipment under the ‘Heavy Civil’ provision of RCW39.10.370 as an 

element of our negotiated self-performed work. Ultimately, the installation of this equipment will be 

assigned to a process mechanical contractor, or will be performed by Hoffman, should we determine 

that self-performance of certain mechanical work is in the best interest of the project.  Hoffman will 

retain the warranty responsibility in behalf of the vendor, whereas the installation contractor will 

warrant their own workmanship.   

For the MBR equipment, we are recommending an award to GE/Zenon. The total capital cost quoted by 

GE/Zenon was lowest at a total of $2,149,000.  The initial award to GE Zenon would be for shop 

drawings and engineering support only in the amount of $249,000 with options to exercise full 

equipment purchase for the prices quoted.  

For the UV disinfection equipment, we are recommending an award to Engineered Treatment Systems 

(ETS). The total capital cost quoted by ETS was the lowest total at $299,520. The initial award to ETS for 

shop drawings and engineering support will be $12,450 with options to exercise full equipment 

purchase for the prices quoted.  

327



1505 Westlake Ave. North, Suite 500 
Seattle, Washington 98109 

Ph: 206-286-6697  Lic. #HOFFMCC164NC 

For both vendor agreements, we will include language to ensure that the respective agreements are 

assignable, in the unlikely event that the City and Hoffman are unable to arrive at a mutually agreeable 

MACC. 

To allow Hoffman to enter into agreement with GE/Zenon and ETS, we are requesting Oak Harbor issue 

GMP amendment No. 1 to our contract.  This first amendment would include the following:  

Description Value 

1- MBR Equipment and Engineering Support $2,149,000 

2- UV Disinfection Equipment and Engineering Support $299,520 

Subtotal $2,448,520 

GCCM Fee @4.28% $104,797 

Amendment No. 1 Total $2,553,317 

Amount does not include Washington State Sales Tax. 

Attached are detailed comparisons for the equipment for your use and review.  Please call with any 

questions you may have.  

Sincerely, 

Trevor H. Thies 

Sr. Project Manager 

328


	Regular Agenda for December 2, 2014 Council Meeting
	3.c Proclamation in Recognition of National Impaired Driving Prevention Month 
	C/A 6.a Minutes of the Regular Meeting held November 18, 2014 and Council Workshop and Joint Meeting between City Council and Planning Commission held November 19, 2014.
	Minutes of the November 18, 2014 Regular City Council Meeting
	Minutes of the November 19, 2014 City Council Workshop Meeting
	Minutes of the November 19, 2014 City Council and Planning Commission Joint Workshop Meeting

	C/A 6.b Approval of Accounts Payable and Payroll Checks.
	 Voucher Listing (1)
	 Voucher Listing (2)

	C/A 6.c Approve Contract for 2015 Island County Basic 2% Hotel-Motel Lodging Tax Revenues awarded to the City of Oak Harbor for the Whidbey Island Marathon/ Half Marathon Project in the amount of up to $7,000.
	Letter- Island County Awarding 2% Funds to City of Oak Harbor
	Letter- Island County Awarding 2% Funds Contract Explanation
	Contract- 2015 Island County 2% Tax Revenues Awarded to City of Oak Harbor

	C/A 6.d Resolution 14-50: Surplus Authorization - Marathon Shirts.
	Resolution 14-50

	C/A 6.e Authorize the Mayor to sign a Contract Extension with Jack Kerr for Public Defense Screening Services.
	Amendment to Agreement for Indigent Defense Screening Services

	8.a Resolution 14-44: Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for the 2% Grant Applications.
	November 3, 2014 Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Minutes.
	Projected Lodging Tax Funds for December 31, 2014.
	Resolution 14-44

	8.b Resolution 14-42: Update City Employee Policy Manual Section 5.01 Health and Welfare Benefits.
	Agenda Bill 14-42
	Employee Policy Manual 5.01 - Health and Welfare Supplemental policy
	Resolution 14-42 

	8.c Resolution 14-49: 2015 Non-Represented Staff Market Adjustments
	Bill 14-49 2015 Non-Represented Staff Market Adjustments
	Resolution 14-49
	Exhibit A: Positions recommended for 2015 market adjustments

	9.a Ordinance 1705: Adoption of the 2015-2016 Biennial Budget.
	Draft Ordinance No. 1705

	9.b Ordinance 1708: 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendments and 2015-2020 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).
	2015-2020 Capital Improvements Plan
	Ordinance No. 1708
	Planning Commission report (w/o attachments) and minutes from October 28, 2014
	Planning Commission report (w/o attachments) and minutes from September 17, 2014

	11.a Wastewater Treatment Plant - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 10
	Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 10
	Consultant Original PSA
	Carollo Contract Summary

	11.b Wastewater Treatment Plant - General Contractor/ Construction manager GMP Amendment No. 1
	 A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
	A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP#1)
	November 18, 2014 Hoffman recommendation letter





